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'NI71V97 DNNN2 NN2Na 'T' 7V IDTIP'W 731 1IDND D'DP'NY 7W 7V197 DNNXINT 1WN2
.10 ,NIN' 1D'70 ND7WN D] DIY O'NIN NINYPANT7 n919) DNAN7WN TIWN) NINIDND

.(NT 210D NIN'O 127w O'WDP'NO7 ADITA |ID'DI YN

707 6 P19 IXT, 7KXW NXIAN NI7'VO] NIMNNONN NITIN D'ODII D'D197
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2"nIxa n17'von 3.3

wap n1‘mewnnn v
DN DMITND DNIYA 70WNn MnD NInn 91N NIvowin CPV NXIap 7v NI7'Won NINXIN
YIj7'2 01N 70NN Mn 7Y 0'W'owNn 0Mpin DNARN .AXIRPA 7Y NN Nann Nizvio
.NIDN NINN N7VI0 12 TN 'WADN TN N0 |21 (VX)) 'R IXN v 7owny

NN NV TNIVDYN 10 'WADN TN 1NN, 772D ,Energy Transition NI7'yon DINN7 D2
,7720 .CPV NXIap 7w wab 1 NIvaipn NN NIRNA NIZVIo 0N DNITND NN 70wnin
"N DM71WN DNIND D )2 0001 DRI PR TN NDY 720 ,)0T INT ,0M70 11X 7'0nna
NIDN NINA 7W QNN N7y 7wa CPY NXIAP 7 NN NN 7V 2NY7 V19w N1 01
NIM7 NNy nyownn) 0Udaizan NI7von 'Piva NI7yvion NINNX NID NIINNY7 bni nni7yiay

.(D'NXDI 12 TNNI DNMONDI AWNNNA D'DPINON |2 NIy

7nwNn "'nn
Energy NI7'yon DINN2A NIDN NIINN NI7VID DN DNITXAD TNN 722 DWYXIDD 70N N0 |707
X (NYR'7 DNITNAN 112V 17172 013 0Ynnn) CPV NXIAP 7w Transition

IPUNDNY D'WTIN nWI7W7 IN"NDNY D'YTIN N7 TN
11" 30 DI 11" 30 DI
(N> Nann)

5% 29.47  30.83 1% 31.29 31.72 PJM West (Shore, Maryland)
(1%) 29.04  28.63 (3%) 30.04 29.10 PJM AEP Dayton (Fairview)
6% 27.13 28.64 0% 34.57 34.43 New York Zone G (Valley)
1%  29.07 2928  (8%) 39.76  36.60 Mass Hub (Towantic)
0.7 0.7 22.42 0.7 0.7 24.29 PJM ComEd (Three Rivers)

D7 ISO-N 1T 7V 1IND1OW 193 Day-ahead 'nn 7y DDIAN™

D'DINY IXN D'NI2) N7 oMwy CPV NXIAP 7¥ NIdN NINAN 7w 7v191 70wNn mn 1D X
7ownn 1NN 2 w1onn) Power Basis 7v I0IJ 7w 7'W7 N7202 DAONN MITND 1NN
NI7Y ,N27I0 'XI7'N 7W Xpaio 110 Power Basis-n .(MITND 1'NNY7 NIDN NINN 7Y '91X9DN
72171 0'DI97.0'0DI1 DM NI7INN NP2 DTN, 7DUNT !DIPND W1, 70WN XN 7W DDipn

2023 MW7 IMILPI TN NIT7 'N3.3 VD IN1,2023-2021 01w'7 Power Basis-in 111N
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TPNWN NI7'2P00 NIDIPNT DN YN [1Iva1al NITA N917NA 70¥Nn N'MNN2 0INNN 0''Wn
CPV NX1ap 7v NI7'won MITNA 'Wabi Tan "I'NNA DN |DIND DRIND O1'WND 0PV DA
7ownn nNn L2 102 707 DOND (Towantic -1 Maryland nidN NIANN7 DNANA LYNY)
7v1 7owNn7 wipnaa a7y :CPV NXIAP 7w NI71Y90N MITXA VXN Y17 NINAND D'YOWIN 1NN
DDA 7NYWNT w1721 71T APV 21,nMwYN1l|"7T12,011anNA (710WN) NiXPoMbp7r NINan
, 727702 L(Al) NTAIDNZNN NXAN7DIND NI7'Wod nnmXI "jav"7 1avpnn 7w Data Center-n
2P'VA) NIDATRI N7 X7 NI NIM72IX12207 NI NIRNA NTNIDND ANXIND 'TA 7obna Ty
7v NIDN DNIN ND'ID X7 792 NID NIINA 7Y WTN 7210 YXIE TN (DN NIVAINN NID NINN
NITIN D'DI97 TND NIYTN NIP7XANXIAIP DD NINA 79 Anpgn TV DIRTRNND NINX

707 2'X13 QYD INT,|PNO NIL'79 |Mva EPA -0 Npn

'Vabn 1an "'nn

7v NIDN NIRNA NI7VI90 0N2 0Mpvn OpIwnn TN 721 0'XIDDN 'Wabn 1an "nn |7n7
*(MMBtu-7 17172 D171 DNpn) CPV NXIap

ID"NDAY D'YTIN NWI7W7 IPUNDNY D'YUTIN NnW'W7 -
1111 30 0" 111"1 30 0"
| mvw | 2023 | 2024 | nrw | 2023 | 2024 L

Texas Eastern M-3 (Shore,
Valley-70%)

Transco Zone 5 North
(Maryland)

1% 1.40 1.42 (5%) 1.82 1.72 Texas Eastern M2 (Fairview)
1% 1.43 1.45 (9%) 1.82 1.66 Dominion South Pt (Valley-30%)
)

)

5% 217 2.27 10% 2.67 2.94

(17%) 2.02 1.68 (17%) 3.57 2.97 Algonquin City Gate (Towantic
1.7 0.7 1.65 1.7 1.7 2.25 Chicago City Gate (Three Rivers

10 NN 12 02 LPlatt's Gas Daily-2 innTw 193 Midpoint 13 NITIFia Day-ahead Nnn 1pn*
JNIND 9INA DY N7 DMy CPV NXIAP 7¥ NIDN NINN 7Y 7V19]

IWaLN TN MNP OYAIND 0 170 X7 ,77232 ,2024 N1 7w wn [1vaial NITa N9Ipna
Transco 1ITN2 NNXNIN ,Maryland NIDN NINN7 DNYNNA . TPNWN NI7'2P00 NIDINT NNIpnd
NOIPN7 NXIYNA 17V 'YabA TN "I'ND ,NITN NOIPNA WAL 127 wip'aa Nk Ty n'nw Zone 5
N'DN' NI2IN1 NINI2 N1 'YALN Tan 1'Nn ,Towantic NIDN NINN7 DNMANA . TPNWN 17200
TNN) Algonquin City Gate TNX7 Iroquois Zone 2 NITN |2 101 NIDINI VII'W NI7YD NNXIND

DN 1972 1NPN NN IXNT71NNNNN NN 1110 WK (Towantic NIdN NINN N7VI0 12
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(Spark Spread) CPV nX12 7¥ NI7'von 'givwa 7ownin niinn

QX7 WNWNN) WAL TN NI7Y 127 10211770 1T 70UNn N0 "2 w19nn 1310 Spark Spread
JDA7N NTNA (7nwnn

:IN{P7T2 NNDIN 19 7V avinn Spark Spread

NN NN dNr X ($/MMBtu) 130 1nn] - ($/MWh) 7ownin nn = ($/MWh) Spark Spread
[(MMBtu/MWh) (Heat Rate)

NINN NI7Y19 DN DMP'Vn DPHIYND TNX 722 DXIND (Spark Spread) 7nwn 'ninn |7n7

*(NYW7 DNILNIN 112V 17172 D1IPI Dnnpn) CPY NXIP 7w NdN
IDUNDAY D'UTIN NI7W7 | IDM"ADAY D'UTIN nR'W7

11’1 30 DI 11’1 30 DI
| e | 2023 | 2024 | wmw | 2023 | 2024 |
6% 19.12 20.27 3% 16.04 16.47 Shore
5% 14.50 15.17 (11%) 12.87 11.43 Maryland
8% 16.92 18.25 1% 20.13 20.32 Valley
15% 15.94 18.36 4% 16.56 17.30 Towantic
(3%) 19.94 19.40 (2%) 18.21 17.92 Fairview
0.7 0.7 11.70 0.7 0.7 9.67 Three Rivers

7v (Heat Rate) 'n0N0 npn DN 7W NNIN DY ,7'W7 N'7202 DININDY 192 70wN M'MNp 7V DDIAN*
Three -7 MMBtu/MWh 6.5 7v 'pan nnn oni Valley-1 Shore, Maryland-7 MMBtu/MWh 6.9
oy CPV NXIAJ 7¥ NIDN NINN 7W 79191 70WNN NN 1D N1 Fairview-1 Towantic,Rivers
72010 7PYNN Q7' MY NIA79NNN1 Power Basis 7w DI N7 AN 12 ,')NIND |DIN] DIW NINY
721 71X" 7V 1NN D'DA 7V AWIN IWN) 717 AXI0n 127 CPV 7w Nidn niann2 Off-Peak-1 Peak Niywa

.(Nnnm nivy

Spark ) 7ownin MINp1 MIYRYN MW 70 N7 ,7733 ,2024 7w wn 1vaial NiTn Noipna
N7 P ,Maryland NIdN NINN7 DNMNND .TPNRN NI7'2P0nn NIDIpNn NnIv7 (Spread
Dy ,2024 MY 7Y IYNXIN |1IVII12 NNXD DY'ND N2MADN NV NITR N9INA 70wNn NHNNA
S7DYUNN 1NN JIND JIVP1YADN TN 1NN NM7Vn
7w N |1va1al NITA N9IPNA 7ownn NiNNa Av'7vin 1Py Towantic NIDN NanN7 bnnnd
S7'W7 DI9ND 'WADLN TN NN DT NV 2024

DXNX7 1Ty ,CPV NXIAj 7w 'Wab T2 NIVAIN NIdN NINNA 70WN NN T NN 1D X
NNIND PIY2 70WNN1HYALN TN "'Nn2 0w 2y CPV NXIp 7v 70wnin NNna NN
(707 '"n4 qryp IN1,CPV NXIA 7w 70WN NINND 1T 1DJDN 1272 0'D197)

MITND 2024 7¥ 1w IvaIn DIN7 EOX N1an 7w 'wab 11 70wn mn N'TnN NITIN 010197
707 '"N'.N9D1 IN1,2025-2026 DIW71 2024 NIw DIN TV CPC X127 7w NI7'woONn

707 'N4 91D IXT,CPV NXIAP 7¢ NN NIND NITIN D'9DI 0'D197 3
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(Capacity) my»ntn nipdn !

17020) D'DDIVI Y72 0NN DNTDND 0'ICT 7V 071wWnn 2101 X (Capacity) Nt
2'27 .107VNN NIMON IX7 D'WITIN 0INTA AN 'On7 ON712' 112y ,70WN 11X17 (NDn
NN 2 D71IU0NN) NANIND NN 7Y DDIANN 217100 [NAINI T191,qD11 2127 120 1T ND1IN
77221 NTRYIDN 70WNN NIIDT |22 NDI2N7 NINDT N7 ,INNKD NI 27 NN (7nwnn
7w FERC-n 'T' 7V 0'WAj71N D'OMVNN T 7V NNTDIN LNIDIT IN DI 'I7WN 12T NININ AT
19MYN NYIPY7 0MANIO 0NN 01100 019N ISO-NE-1 PJM, NY-ISO ,nnxnna .jgiv 72
NTN.9M71,CPV 7w NTAINXIN DY NA'DN NIDTA MIMNNA M7V ,0M2T0 Yabn D)X . NImim
NINNN 2270 NN DIANN L,NIND NIND 7Y Q1XPA192 NINWD N17'702 NINXINN 7V nVownn
207 7w 17pwnY 07 17 0'wa NNTEL(INTDN1 70wnn XY 12y Din) Nm7inn nrnina

TIND NN 217 7W0D0 N INa L7720 01T

PJM g1y

DUDIPN VXN WIPA 7Y NXP19D ,Ipa DNITND NN |2 DRAYD NIDTA 017N PIM-n pipa
PIval CPV NXI2j 7¢ NIdN NIINNT 0'DN730 DTN NN NIRMTA 'OMYN 707 .02710 NI7IDN
JIINNND D1 1D 7079 07202 NINATZ |01 L(DI1'Y7 DXIENAD 112V 17172 01211 DNnN) 17700
171" NOIPNT INNNN 71202 NNANA NI 19'1N7 TY NDIPFNT NOIPNN INND NIINTA NN 773D

2026 11 TV 2025

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 ¢CPV NiANN ATN-NN

50 34.13 28.92 269.92 PJM RTO

- 34.13 28.92 269.92 Three Rivers PJM COMED
Fairview,

95.79 49.49 49.49 269.92 Maryland, PJM MAAC
Maple Hill

97.86 49.49 54.95 269.92 Shore PJM EMAAC

PIM D

2026 11" TVI1 2025 '7'0 N9IPNY7 PJM g1 NIMOT 1100 NIXXIN

JINT L2026 211 TV1 2025 1710 NDIPNT NIOT NN 'TI00 NINXIN PJM NnD19 ,2024 71 wTIN2
Oi7IN7 1ID1D1 AWN NIIDTA PIY ANpa 0w FERC-7 wian PJM ;2023 12I0IN wTINAY INXY7
|'2,00'7712 0Mrwn (2025 NIY NXNND 7NNY NIY N2 N91PNY7 AT 27wW31) 'N2IN 112000 700
122N 72 DNLPIO NHNNNI DX NPT NIYIT D07 MDD NIDTA 977 NIDNAN NN

.Q7IN2 NN JI2'D 7¥ 1DNIOT7 7pwn N'7Tan DY

T TVIDD NI'DT I7WNT NINIT ,2023 171 wTINA NMNDN N7Y902 n7Nn WwX Three Rivers nidnnann 4
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7V NTNNYT7 100 22 NDNIM L, 7'W7 N'7202 DII9NI , 11202 NIINTN VN2 ANIYPYNN NY7Vn
2IYN |OIND NIV NIWTD NNXIND 77100 yX'INa AT NIPATIN NIDmMa av7y Lwipnaa
NIIDT 7¥ 0'PODN 2IWN [9IN 1Y .PIM T 7V IXTD NN 7¢ nDpyn 1710 0'j79DN
.PJM j71iwa ni7vion NidN NIINA NN ND0N7 THVINY NINTN 7ODNA |ILYI7 XN NNNN
1P 1} CPV NXIap 7w Energy Transition-n DINN2 NIDN NIINA 7Y 1IDND 1WA NYOWN
,NITN NWIN TVINT CPV NXIAj7 N2Wn7 .79%-27 96%-20 N1'N'7 THVINN NIMTN 7w 790N
1720 ,NITN TYINZ PJM -0 71w ANPTRNAY NIDANIRNAN 7700 NIDTH 'NID12NT7 NODINN
D7vINY 730 ,Maryland -I Shore NIDN NIINN2 NPTRNN NIVIYA AN7Vn NN 12PN Xan7
NI TY1 2025 7MW NDIPNT 1717 |70 54-31 DDNDN7 NN9X L(]707 "A10 9'VD 1IN ,0'D197)
TVI 2026 "71'0W N91PNYT D'NAN NINTA TI0D 52025 210 TVI 2024 1710 N9INN NDIV7 2026

.2024 12nXT wTIN2 0"PNN7 010100 2027 1y

NYISO iy

-0 P12 .10 NIMDT 1Y 1210 N1ADNA NIT NN71wn NYISO piwa ,PIM-n giw7 nniTa
NIPN VXN YIP 7V X190 NIY NINT NIYNAT A7 NNy 0na ,010e 'nn 1oon NYISO
(QQULPIN TY 'ND DWTINA) 2NPN Y'P7 2N 722 DNy 000N Y NYISO .nd7in nizion
DUWTIN D'DI7WN D'TI0ND DMMINN ,qDNA (79K TV 12021 0'WTINL) NP 91IN7 1'NDAl
NIINTN 19YN NN NILANT NIPXYA NN NN .OMNIYA DIT1202 01201 X7 NIt NNt

JNIM707'2 NN NIYXDNL IN'WTINN NIV 110021

IDN' |OINA 17V NPT nn ,NYISO-n 7Iwa DMNAIVA DTN 1AW NIIDTA N0 707
D'WIP'22 19X 7171 NI NINA 72 NDWNND [ANXD ANXIND 17'WA NXTE,NIDTIP NISIPNYT
:(D1'7 DX NAD 2V 17172 DRAIPI DNDN)

1IN

NYISO
153.26 127.25 168.91 Rest of the Market
164.35 128.9 168.91 Valley Lower Hudson Valley

.0I'7 NI NAD 1Y 17IT7 WTINT DNI7'P 212V 17170 0N 11X7 n02nn 72 ,NYISO Nipn

ninN7 7v19a niaetn nni L (Lower Hudson Valley) G 1TXa nnixn Valley nidn nann 1 iy
nmT Np oy ,SPOT-n MNnI DMWTINN 071200 ,0'NIVA D'TI20NNND 0'OvIN Valley Ndn
PJIY2NININPOD 71N DN771D7'2 0'DIDN DI WTIN TN DNWD

NINTI PN PN ,7V NNM 7102 10T TYAY 19 91X VT'D alap CPV AXIAp NDwva7 a1 Q'vpa IDNa °

AN 2 ANXDD (NTIAD NT) NIRIY A7 DY NI CPV NXIAP 7v 'NIDIIN 7V191 1NIWHNNNNT TWNA

o'nIa L(NNNX NMPA N1aDN1 IN PJM JIwd DANN DD'70 IN VY D170 NI217) DMID721 oewn
.CPV NX12p n91wn 0A7 [I2'DN 'NIIAD NI IN TNN 7w DNIN"'INN IN/I N'PDYN N2'2D1 O"I'Y ,0"71V9N
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ISO-NE piv

2019 - 2018 DW7 NIINT 11202 MIYXI7 NONNYN ,NT 71w N7V190 , Towantic NIDN NINN
TINX DXIINAD 725 |21 DY Yaw7 QvNn NN ny2AP1 01"7 DNIENN7 1717 313.97 7w 1nna
2025 'ND WTINT TV 71N WWN ,Handy-Whitman Price Index-n TN

20T NWIDT7 110D (12210 N1ADNA DYXANN NIT nI7wn ISO-NE piwa ,PIM piw7 nniT1a
7V NIX[P2190 NRIY NINOT NIWNAT N7 NIMPY DNAY ,DP1Iw-NN 1000 0wt ISO-NE-N giwa
1-n 700 ,NY 7¥ No1pNn7 Forward '110n NyXan ISO-NE .n271nn N712'1 D'0IPN wipil yXn
NNz omY7en DhMIYE DMYTIN DTN DMYEINAN LD 10D .T1DDN NN DY wI7Y 1l
T2 NI'TN INIZYWN NN NILANT NI'NRA NN NIRNN . Forward-n 'T1202 N1001 X7W NN
JPTTX-IT NN NIVXPDNL IX D'D'7W0Dn 071002 Forward

D'NPN) Towantic NIDN NINA7 DYDIANT7Y WWN DTN NN 1YW NIMTR ND 707
(017 DX 1AV 17172 0l

_ ISO-NE
85.15 85.15 117.70 Towantic Rest of the Market

.07 DNXIENID 1Y 17IT7 WTINT DXI7'P 212 1710 i X7 nann 1y ,NE-ISO ipn

D'7100 ,Forward 'T20NN D'WOWIND Towantic NID NINN 112V 7Y191 NIIMNDTA N0 1D X
D'"7707'2 D'MIDND |21 WTIN 702 DNNAYN NIINT NN QY DUWTIN D720 ,0MY7w0 DNy
Y2 NMNINN 'PJOD DY

2"NIN2 NI7'Y97 DN NN QDR yTn WX

7¢ NNI7'WO N1IDNA ,2023 NIWT NOIPNN NIT7 'X 707 17.1 bl NDK7 qwnna .1

NN 12 Energy Transition-n DINN2 'MIYPYN DD NTRYD pirn7 CPV nxiap

,(Reliable) Da'pNI 07/ ('waD T2) OM7NIINXIQF X WXDN 7Y 71001 NPTNN NIVXDNA

7707 NPy NPT CPV NXIAP NN ,A"NINA 70YNYT 7720 w7 an NN DDN WX

710 D'D'NNN D'NIN WI21A7 91901 0T 7V NIPTRIN AINMDD NID NINNA AIPTNN NN

17 1DNNaw CPV NXIj7 7¢ NIMMYENN NITIN D'D197 DN NID NIINNA DNINN O TND

TVINT 707 "110 9'WD IN1 ,Maryland -1 Shore NIdA NIINNA NI9DIY NINDT NWDT7 2024
ADT7UIVIN/L VXD NIODI NIDIT NIZIVO IN/LIZN NI7IVO 1D NINTH PN NITN WX

,2024 710N wTINQ ,2023 NY7 MOIpNn NIT7 'X p7n7 8.1.4 QvDl 1INN7 wnna .2

npn (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency) NINjJ'IDNN EPA-n N11JID NND1O

,2032 NI 1 017 TV ,0'wTNN 0'7727 DNNNA P2 VIN PIN N1ADNA NILI79 Xpia

71¥97 DMOXN 0N X" IPNNT 90% 7w [DNO ND'ON 1YW NIL'79 NNNON WITN

[122 PN 1700 N7v) (baseload) XN7n DRIV 'wab 122 O'WTN XY 1FNN7I 2039 INN7

DNO1 O'N'J X" NPNANT7 DN NN 2 ,IVAP1 NIYPI NIND NIWT (2023 'ND wTINT

T2 NI12UY 1227 2039 Ny 197 NI7'WO Proon7 OrioX IWN 'Wab 121 JIX" D'A7unin
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WAL T2 NIYXDND (WTANY 192 baseload) X70 DRIV X! 1D NIRWAIT ARPNN L NIWTN
800 7¥ NINJ7 TV NILI79N NN 7'2207 NID 7V NIT7120D NI71W 7w 1270 71X 1N vXIA
lbs. CO2/MWh- 1007w NiN37 |30 INX71 2032 X112 1 01"7 TV lbs. CO2/MWh-gross
NI72I01 NI7'Y NIWT N DY NYIN AU7'W IN 90% 11Y'WA [PNO ND'ON NIYXDNA gross
NY171 .71 DDIVA IN P70 DRIV NNX'HN T2 NII1ID7 DN 1Y NINNSDIN Nb'79
X PND 1AV 0'7721 NTNYT7 NINON NN97 DMWY 7Y NOIPN NIRIYR NITNY
.(2023 NX7 NpPN 170NY) 'WaD 1A2 D'WTN X' PAD 112V NTYDE OND NIYXDNA
DI7PI9 IWNINY ;YD 1X7 NpPa ANT 2"NIN2 DMIYIY7 bownin N ,2024 171 wTINA
JNODN NNIXY7 TVIN,NIYTNN NIPAT7 DNMNNA NPT 19D0D

N7YN7 7 q7'n2 DMINTID D'DFNOI NN NMNANX 77100 CPV NXIAP 7w NINON 1'7190119
NIN'Y7 19X 6.3GW-2 7¢ qj7'na PN ND'ON 7NX'XIDIO DY 'VAD 132 0'DP'NOI 4.6GW -0
N2YN7,12 102 (7722 IX) NDDIIO 12 |9IND OWIAY 722 ,1X 712000 NNIVDYN N NN
NX71200 NN NIYNYD NN NN NI9X N7Y NI7'VON 'wabin Tan niann7 ,CPV NXIaj
122 NIYTN NINN NPPNT7 P12 1XIN7 DY9XY DD 'MDNIE NN JNI7'Y INT IDND
RAVALb

MINNN NYTNN N'X71270 7W 7V191 NIVOWN7 IWNA NINTI 'N ,NITA PN TVIDY
IN 0712) D'772N DIP" |DINAI AIMYTHA INW |2 17N 12Ta1,CPV NXIAP 7V1 pivn 7V
0771 IN/1 NY7 NYD I'A'W 9D OUYDII7IN 7W0DNDA 'DIIAL v T 7Y (DpP7n
.N1DY 1YP1 D"DOYD

.6 719 IX7,2"NINA NXIAPN NI7'YO] NIMNNODANN NITIN D'ODI) 0'D197

J1"2 30 01" 1INTN0NW O'WTIN AaW'W7 N17'V9a NINXIN NN .4
(n"w "I1"'7'n1) 2024

NI NIYoOwN7 NaiNa 2"NINAL 7KW nXIpn Ni7'wo

7NV 70wWNN '9YN L7720 .70wN0 NI T 7Y 0DMDDIIONI O'NPIoN T11VAN '9YN 78w
NI7Vn DX DHNDN T30 NPT N7V D PIX .aVYnn NI 7w 0780 N 00N 971N2 Y'pa
(wipran nivw 1xapnn IN) TYNN NIV NYOYIN NN, NI7'YON DINNA NP

DI 7720 N ,70VNT7 DWIANn DWOVINI L,0'NPI9ON DYN 7nwnn 'oMyvn [, 2"nINa
D'YOWIND |D1,(QINN1 PN NIIVA 770 11T2) VXIND7 DN 0N IN 37 MIND ATD |02 NI9ipna
NNIIYNA 91NN NIV N D012 N7 DMy 772 10172 IWN,'WaDN 10 DD NI 91N
NN 'DPNNOY ,NYTRNAN NNIN 'DPIN97 DNMANA L) 10D MIND ATNA NIZNDI NIYN YXINDY7
D'D7'N92 17'N1 N 17002 NI NIDINAE QNN 17002 N1 NINRA N7 DI Nnn Nrmnn
WTINQ NI N2INAL YN 2NN 'WTIN 7002 0 DNl N7 Qb wnwn N2Np 0MIN7ID

Q7NN DN

15




ENERGY 72NN "IV XN 7V 1M10p7 T NIT

“TPONININ NIT .N

ID'NDNY D'YTIN N'DY7
11130 01 q'vD

1,120 1,311 (1) o' INRDININDHRD NIDIdN
(834) (911) (2) (Mo NNO NX77) DDA INNENINDDA NIZY
(110) (155) NINNoONINNS
176 245 n712 NN
(117) (119) NIY7721 7010 NINXIN

100 86 NI7172 NINAN 'MNIN2 p7n
(30) (22) 17DV NIN'O NINXIN
- 26 NIDIDN | TAIN |32 X0
(5) (52) 1D ,NINNN NIXXIN
124 164 N7 a1 ni7iven nin
(73) (149) 102,10 NINXIN
51 15 1D1dNn 7Y 0'DD 1197 NN
(12) (27) ND1ON 7V 0'DD NINXIN
39 (12) n91pNn7 'pa (Tooa) NN
27 8 NIDXNN
66 (4) N917N7 '0NIND 'P2 (TDOA) NN
$7o0n'n

58 7 12NN 7¢ NiMpn 17yl
8 (11) ND'7Y NIIPN |I'NY NINDT

o

17172 NN2N 'NHN2 NN2NN P70 Q1yba NXIN (Energy Transition 11N 17'v1) 2"NINA NI71750 NINANN NIXXIN
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Zn5 Divd CG M2M | M-2 M2m nCG S Pt M-3 M2M Hub M2M |Hub M2M |Contract Date

M2M Fwd M2M Fwd [M2M Fwd OPk Pk

Fwd Fwd

2.93 1.98 1.59 1.77 1.65 1.68 28.14 47.22 01/06/2024
3.09 2.1 1.76 2.71 1.77 1.90 39.40 64.77 01/07/2024
2.85 2.19 1.72 2.22 1.73 1.86 37.96 58.23 01/08/2024
2.62 2.10 1.40 2.14 1.43 1.52 31.58 46.76 01/09/2024
2.62 2.10 1.36 1.82 1.40 1.47 32.37 40.50 01/10/2024
2.86 2.74 2.05 4.13 2.07 2.25 47.98 56.64 01/11/2024
3.67 3.86 2.88 8.69 2.78 3.80 83.31 92.44 01/12/2024
5.61 4.73 3.41 13.65 3.06 5.75 120.70 134.51 01/01/2025
5.56 4.56 3.34 12.36 3.02 5.09 104.94 117.13 01/02/2025
3.70 3.17 2.82 5.30 2.75 2.99 58.46 64.71 01/03/2025
3.27 2.80 2.34 3.37 2.34 2.36 42.29 50.81 01/04/2025
3.62 2.74 215 2.76 217 2.29 35.46 43.74 01/05/2025
3.50 2.90 2.20 2.91 2.22 2.41 38.80 50.65 01/06/2025
3.61 3.06 2.33 3.47 2.35 2.55 48.47 79.24 01/07/2025
3.53 3.07 2.27 3.31 2.27 2.57 39.39 63.75 01/08/2025
3.20 2.93 2.01 2.55 2.03 213 32.98 48.99 01/09/2025
3.28 2.91 1.99 2.68 2.01 213 36.16 44.69 01/10/2025
3.94 3.41 2.54 5.76 2.57 2.89 59.16 71.71 01/11/2025
5.02 4.51 3.37 9.58 3.30 4.74 82.29 98.01 01/12/2025
6.30 5.36 4.04 14.23 3.65 6.66 116.22 135.76 01/01/2026
5.65 511 3.82 12.99 3.48 6.04 110.19 117.60 01/02/2026
4.60 3.57 3.15 6.11 3.06 3.36 48.27 62.12 01/03/2026
3.70 3.03 2.49 3.62 2.49 2.58 37.68 43.76 01/04/2026
3.88 2.88 2.29 3.01 2.35 2.47 34.11 40.39 01/05/2026
3.85 3.03 2.36 3.12 2.39 2.58 35.59 47.19 01/06/2026
4.08 3.24 2.56 3.60 2.56 2.85 44 .27 73.68 01/07/2026
3.97 3.26 2.46 3.51 2.47 2.81 42.05 66.59 01/08/2026
3.52 3.20 2.1 2.90 2.16 2.37 36.67 46.90 01/09/2026
3.52 3.20 2.21 3.00 2.18 2.34 39.16 42.11 01/10/2026
3.75 3.72 2,77 5.33 2.78 3.06 48.07 60.87 01/11/2026
5.47 4.71 3.59 9.60 3.47 5.01 65.22 79.99 01/12/2026
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ENERGY N12NN J7IY 2XN 7V 1M10PTA NIT

East NY | East NY CPJl\gd PJM AEP- AEP- PJM PJM
ZnG M2M |ZnG M2M IV(I)ZHI:IIS ComEd | Dayton | Dayton West West |Contract Date
OPk Pk OPk M2MS Pk [ M2M OPk| M2M Pk |M2M OPk| M2M Pk

27.49 44.33 18.96 36.27 23.17 39.27 22.53 40.75 01/06/2024
36.32 61.63 30.02 59.94 31.12 62.93 32.70 65.84 01/07/2024
34.66 56.18 28.63 54.38 30.12 56.54 31.20 60.03 01/08/2024
28.61 43.58 2217 42.41 27.09 46.93 29.22 50.26 01/09/2024
28.09 37.08 2412 37.99 29.86 43.21 31.45 46.09 01/10/2024
39.99 48.52 30.35 39.39 36.28 4412 38.79 47.76 01/11/2024
57.51 68.06 33.18 44.04 39.92 48.04 43.62 52.81 01/12/2024
91.77 103.16 44.53 57.46 50.25 62.17 57.75 70.05 01/01/2025
77.79 92.15 35.18 48.09 40.89 52.19 48.39 60.37 01/02/2025
45.37 52.79 30.32 39.43 37.70 44.22 38.26 47.90 01/03/2025
37.89 45.80 24.77 36.83 32.66 42.41 33.32 44.79 01/04/2025
32.63 41.87 25.79 39.99 31.17 45.37 31.79 48.11 01/05/2025
34.43 44.71 24.66 44.71 28.26 48.62 30.32 51.52 01/06/2025
41.78 76.31 33.49 66.61 35.49 68.79 37.85 72.60 01/07/2025
35.94 56.54 29.43 60.65 31.23 61.72 33.13 64.52 01/08/2025
31.92 48.90 25.72 45.69 30.19 51.13 32.35 53.62 01/09/2025
33.47 40.94 25.14 39.67 31.10 46.17 34.08 49.43 01/10/2025
45.42 58.27 30.35 41.16 36.87 46.70 40.61 50.35 01/11/2025
66.90 73.98 33.74 43.11 41.40 49.62 46.85 55.32 01/12/2025
94.83 114.87 45.04 58.91 51.26 65.32 60.56 75.14 01/01/2026
90.56 95.72 41.09 49.49 46.80 54.54 56.05 64.86 01/02/2026
45.31 53.74 29.32 40.54 34.43 45.16 41.01 50.68 01/03/2026
36.78 44.16 26.97 38.59 31.58 42.30 34.27 46.98 01/04/2026
35.02 43.06 25.70 41.85 29.56 45.87 32.50 50.24 01/05/2026
38.30 49.30 28.27 47.54 31.61 51.06 32.37 54.42 01/06/2026
49.39 76.44 32.82 69.27 37.98 73.63 40.77 77.35 01/07/2026
46.82 70.85 30.58 61.17 35.29 65.43 37.92 69.85 01/08/2026
36.82 50.22 26.42 46.85 31.43 53.53 33.92 56.64 01/09/2026
38.10 42.57 25.75 40.66 33.89 47.73 36.07 50.89 01/10/2026
44.36 55.35 30.33 41.75 38.18 48.62 41.22 52.34 01/11/2026
63.76 76.47 35.59 45.62 4517 53.26 50.55 58.94 01/12/2026
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(TWnN) MPMNN M MHAN HY 0902 MHNMT 917N - 11 NN

(Tvnn) Valley
: (TUNRN) NN 9915 N TOSM NI DY MNYT

2024 %39°2 30 ©Y°2 NNPNVNIY DIYNN NYIDY DY Napny

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
49991 %9983 9997 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
46,693 - 46,693 mouIoN
34,821 (1,605) 36,426 N NPIYIN NMINNIN
6,399 (190) 6,589 3 MNNAN NN
5,473 1,795 3,678 YN NN
11,814 176 11,638 a NI MINSIN
(6,341) 1,619 (7,960) NMPNY NN
(2,697) (67) (2,630) a NN Y91 TN
(9,038) 1,552 (10,590) nNMPNY 9915 MMM
2023 939°2 30 D12 NNPNHVNY DXYNN NWITY YV Napny
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
9991 %9983 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
30,033 - 30,033 moIdn
25,595 (1,092) 26,687 N NPIYIN NMINNIN
4,837 (1,678) 6,515 i MNNAN NNI
(399) 2,770 (3,169) yon 1o9n
8,429 (3,668) 12,097 a NI MINKIN
(8,828) 6,438 (15,266) nMPNY 109N
(1,661) (560) (1,101) a NN O TOIN
(10,489) 5,878 (16,367) NMPNY Y915 109N
2023 935872 31 02 NNNVNY NIYY
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
4917 2abNa 49997 YaHNa 9991 ’a9Na
219,128 - 219,128 modn
126,038 (9,860) 135,898 N NPYIYON NMINXIN
20,359 (5,718) 26,077 3 MNNaN NN
72,731 15,578 57,153 "IYan NN
40,363 (4,666) 45,029 a NOII MINSIN
32,368 20,244 12,124 MYY MMM
22,638 (2,153) 24,791 a NN 9910 NI
55,006 18,091 36,915 MYY Y95 MM
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 %39°3 30 £1°2 NPPNVNY DIYNN NYIV HY NAPNY

(Tvwnn) Valley
: ©INIVIN TN DY MITY NPINND MNNIN

IFRS MNP US GAAP
4917 2abNa 9911 *abNa 9917 2abNa
13,457 3,490 9,967 NMPNS PN
28,148 - 28,148 NAVIIY MIYAN WY 1V DININ
(25,197) (24,262) (935) T NYPYN M2OYa0 WYY 10) DINITND
2,780 - 2,780 DD MPIYA WDIWY 1O DIDIINN
5,731 (24,262) 29,993 DIMITHD MY DN IV (NVIP) 1T
1,157 1,059 98 T NAPNN NINND DM MNYI DINITND NI
- (36,114) 36,114 T N9PNN NYYNND DIINN DI NN
6,888 6,797 91 T NANPNN NOY DM MY DINII NI
- (66,114) 66,114 T NAPNN MDY DIDANN DINRND NI
2023 %31%3 30 D12 NNINDNVY DIYNN DYV YV Nopny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9911 %95Na 9917 29N 4917 2abNa
21,534 11,072 10,462 N9PNY NN
36,835 - 36,835 NAVIY MPIYAN WY 1V DINNND
17,204 18,630 (1,426) T NYPYN (MDY W WYW) MOYan 1yaw 103 DNNIN
(53,635) - (53,635) DD MDPYAT WNIWY YOI DINDINN
404 18,630 (18,226) DINMITND MY DINMINL IV (NVIP) T
1,187 1,042 145 T N9PNN NINND DI MNYI DINITND NI
- (57,680) 57,680 T NPNN NYYNND D¥IANN DM NN
1,591 1,498 93 T NANPNN NOY DM MY DINII NI
- (39,506) 39,506 T NAPNN NOY DN ONNMIN NI
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 %31°3 30 01’2 NNPNDNY DXYNN NYIYY Y N1oypnd

(Tvwnn) Valley
: (TUNN) DMVINDN TN DY NITO NPMNND NIINNN

IFRS MINND US GAAP
4917 2abNa 9911 *abNa 9917 2abNa
(6,341) 1,619 (7,960) N9YPNY NN
(2,577) - (2,577) NAVIIY MPIYAN WY 1V DININ
(24,851) (24,255) (596) T NYPYN (M0 WmIYYW) MSOPYaN 1WAV 1) DINNRN
23,680 - 23,680 DM MIYAD IWRIWY 1) DI
(3,748) (24,255) 20,507 DI MW DN VI NP
10,636 10,547 89 T NAPNN NINND DM MNYI DINITND NI
- (45,609) 45,609 T N9PNN NYYNND DIINN DI NN
6,888 6,797 91 T NANPNN NOY DM MY DINII NI
- (66,114) 66,114 T NAPNN MDY DIDANN DINRND NI
2023 9312 30 D12 NNPNVNY DXYNN NWITY HY hapny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9911 %95Na 9917 29N 4917 2abNa
(8,828) 6,438 (15,266) N9PNY TON
851 - 851 NAVIY MYIYAN WY 1V DININH
(2,559) (1,359) (1,200) T NYPYN MDOYAY 1WDIWY 10 DINID
(8,915) - (8,915) N MIPYAT IWDIWY 10) DI
(10,623) (1,359) (9,264) DI MY DN IV NP
12,214 12,122 92 T N9PNN NINND DI MNYI DINITND NI
- (48,771) 48,771 T NPNN NYYNND D¥IANN DM NN
1,591 1,498 93 T NANPNN NOY DM MY DINII NI
- (39,506) 39,506 T NAPNN NOY DN ONNMIN NI
2023 921873 31 02 MNINVNHY MIYY
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
4917 2abNa 49997 YaHNa 9991 %9983
32,368 20,244 12,124 MYy NN
48,123 - 48,123 DALY MPYAN WY 1V DINNN
13,984 21,585 (7,601) T NYPYN (MY WHIYY) MDOYan 1YY 10 DINNNA
(62,135) - (62,135) YD MPOYAT WNDIWY 1O DDA
(28) 21,585 (21,613) D130 MW DN VI NP
1,186 1,041 145 T MV NDNND ONIMIN MNY DNIMIND NINY
- (57,680) 57,680 T 1IVYN N2PNND DDANN DINIVI NI
1,157 1,059 98 T MIVN MDY DM MY DININ NI
- (36,114) 36,114 T YN NOY OIN DIMIN NI
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D72 INVNODI9.IN

(0299121 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM HYNNY DININGA

(TUNRN) APMDN MY MIAN YV D905 MNT 1Y - 11 NINdA

Fairview
:9909N 28NN DY MT

2024 %312 30 oYY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9997 Y99Na 9997 99Na 4999 299N
2,642 2,569 73 T D01 MY DINRN
105 (2,569) 2,674 T DN DDA
860,967 54,706 806,261 3 ,N VIAP VIO
- (26,318) 26,318 ) D»YNMN N1 DY)
68,235 - 68,235 D>INNX DYDI)
931,949 28,388 903,561 0'09) 9710
9,990 (8,743) 18,733 N MNTI MRNN DINIT M
345,775 280 345,495 MINNK MMI»NNN
355,765 (8,463) 364,228 MNANNHNN 57N
576,184 36,851 539,333 N DMV NN
931,949 28,388 903,561 179 MNAONHNN 571D

2023 %12 30 oYY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9917 29N 9917 29N 9917 *abNa
6,888 6,823 65 T D201 MY DINNRN
2,382 (6,823) 9,205 T (nkab)}aRubilabiial
874,397 47,242 827,155 3 ,N VP WD
- (27,189) 27,189 ) D»YNMN dNYa DY)
74,925 - 74,925 D>INN D0
958,592 20,053 938,539 0’05 5710
6,678 (8,790) 15,468 N MNTI MRNN DINIT M
421,065 560 420,505 MINK NMMINNN
427,743 (8,230) 435,973 MNANNHNN 57NY
530,849 28,283 502,566 N DMV N
958,592 20,053 938,539 17 MNAOHNN 571D

2023 921374 31 oYY

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP

9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
317 265 52 T D017 MY DINNN
682 (265) 947 T (nkiab)}aRubilabiyal
874,856 57,540 817,316 3 ,N V1P VIO
- (26,753) 26,753 ) D»YNIN dNY1 DU
80,408 - 80,408 DXINN DYU)
956,263 30,787 925,476 0’09 5710
9,599 (5,435) 15,034 N MNTI MRNN DOINIT M
399,585 420 399,165 MHINN IMI1NNN
409,184 (5,015) 414,199 MNIANNHNN 57N
547,079 35,802 511,277 N DMV N
956,263 30,787 925,476 11 MNANHNN 571D
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0999121 'NY3a) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM NHYNNY DIINGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D20 MHMT 918 - 11 NI

(qvnn) Fairview
2NN H9ID NN TONY NN DY NINYT

2024 %39°2 30 D12 NNPNVNIY DIYNN NYIY HY NApny

oxnna IFRS MNNNN
Y b
RNAYNN MINNAYND MNNND
nYAPN HY *Apn Yy IFRS-5 US GAAP
9917 %95Na 917 %a5Na 4917 %a5Na 9917 %a5Na
152,076 9,841 (1,381) 143,616 ul moIdn
70,485 9,841 (4,440) 65,084 N NPYIYIN NMINNIN
17,255 - 3,531 13,724 N MNNSM NN
64,336 - (472) 64,808 "NYan NNA
4,517 - (3,197) 7,714 ul N0 NMINSIN
59,819 - 2,725 57,094 PN NN
(3,714) - (1,676) (2,038) a NN Y915 109N
56,105 - 1,049 55,056 N9PNY Y915 NNA
2023 939%2 30 ©1°2 NNNPNVNY DIYNN NYIY HY NIPNY
oxnna IFRS MNNNN
NN MY
HRNIVNN NINNIYNN NNND
nAPH YV *N9apn by IFRS-% US GAAP
9917 %ahNa 4917 %abNa 4917 %abNa 9917 %aYNa
160,264 9,389 - 150,875 moIdN
87,252 9,389 (4,430) 82,293 N NPLIVON NMINSIN
73,012 - 4,430 68,582 VAN NN
10,582 - (2,768) 13,350 ul N0 NMINSIN
62,430 - 7,198 55,232 NOPNY ANH
1,387 - (2,627) 4,014 a NN 591D NN
63,817 - 4,571 59,246 N9PNY Y915 NN

YN ONNIN DY NNN MRPOY DV NINND DNMNNA NXAPN DY NPRNAYN NPPTNHD MINNNN AN (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0999121 'NY3a) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM NHYNNY DIINGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D20 MHMT 918 - 11 NI

(1wnn) Fairview
: (TWNN) INK 5910 NN TOIM NI DY MIN'T

2024 %39°2 30 ©Y°2 NNNVNIY DIYNN NYIDY DY NapnY

oxnna IFRS MNINNN
1INy 1Y
ONMAYND INRMIVND MNINRNN
naApn YV *nNWapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
997 'aYNa 9917 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
67,302 6,520 92 60,690 a moIdN
30,291 6,520 (2,021) 25,792 N NPYIVON MINSIN
8,629 - 1,765 6,864 N MNNaM NN
28,382 - 348 28,034 "NYan NNA
3,786 - (1,030) 4,816 a M MINRNN
24,596 - 1,378 23,218 PN NN
2,497 - (1,052) 3,549 a NN 51D NN
27,093 - 326 26,767 n9PNY Y93 AN
2023 931%3 30 013 NNPNDNY DIYNN NWIYY HY NaYpny
oxnna IFRS MNINNN
MY Ny
MHNMIAYND NRMIVNN MNINNN
NP HY *nWHApn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9917 *abNa 917 *abNa 4917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
63,116 1,336 - 61,780 moIdn
33,225 1,336 (2,179) 34,068 N NPOWIN MIRSIN
29,891 - 2,179 27,712 YA N9
4,571 - (1,389) 5,960 a P MINRNN
25,320 - 3,568 21,752 NOPNY ANH
6,042 - (1,318) 7,360 a NN Y915 N
31,362 - 2,250 29,112 NMPNY Y NN
2023 929873 31 092 NN1NDNY MIYY
oxnna IFRS MNNRNN
1N NTNY
MNMIAYNN IRMIAVND MNINRNN
naApn HY *nWapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
49997 99N 9991 %9983 9997 *abNa 9917 rabNa
277,661 17,660 3,898 256,103 2 moIdn
124,412 17,660 (12,985) 119,737 N NPYIVON MINSIN
28,363 - 1,177 27,186 N MNNAN NN
124,886 - 15,706 109,180 "NYaN NNA
18,775 - (5,416) 24,191 a M MIRNN
106,111 - 21,122 84,989 MUY N9
(17,066) - (9,034) (8,032) a NN Y915 10N
89,045 - 12,088 76,957 MIYY 5999 NN

ININD YNNI DY NNN MRPOY DY MISND DNMONN NNIAPN DY THIRIAYN NPPTHD MNNKNN I8N (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299121 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) HPMDN MY MHAN HY D90 MNT 9198 - 11 MIN*a

2024 %39°2 30 D2 NNNVNIY DIYNN NYIY HY Napny

(1vnn) Fairview
: ©NIVAN MDD HY NITH NPIINHD NINNNN

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9997 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
59,819 2,725 57,094 NAPNY NN
70,472 - 70,472 NAVIIY MPIYAN WY 1V DININ
(1,015) 1,219 (2,234) T NYPYN (MDY WNIYY) MOV 1YY 1V DINNND
(67,132) - (67,132) DM MIPYAT WYY V) DI
2,325 1,219 1,106 DN MY DML IVI DY)
317 265 52 T NNPNN NPNND DNIMITN MY DINIRND NI
- (28,328) 28,328 T NAPNN NYYNND DMIANN DI/ NN
2,642 2,569 73 T N9PNN NOY DAINITH N DM NI
- (29,413) 29,413 T NIMPNN NOY DYANN DI NINY
2023 »39°2 30 DY°2 NNPNDNY DIYNN NYIY HY Naypnd
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
9997 %9983 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
62,430 7,198 55,232 NPNY NN
98,824 - 98,824 NAVIVY MPYAN WY 1V DINNN
8,642 9,275 (633) T NYPYN (MDY WIWY) MOYan 1yav 103 DININ
(102,037) - (102,037) YD MPIYAT WNRIWY 1O DINDIIN
5,429 9,275 (3,846) DN MY DML IVI (NVIP) DY)
1,459 1,370 89 T NANPNN NPNNY DNIMIN ONYI DN NIND
- (38,404) 38,404 T NPNN NYYNND D¥IANN DM NN
6,888 6,823 65 T N9PNN NOY DAIMITH N DM NI
- (34,582) 34,582 T N9PNN NOY DIYANH DINNND NI
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 %31°3 30 012 NNMNDNY DIYNN NYIYY bV 1opnd

(qvnn) Fairview
:(TWNN) DININN 2DIN DY MTI NPIIND MNIRNN

IFRS MNP US GAAP
9911 *abNa 9911 *abNa 9911 *abNa
24,596 1,378 23,218 N9PNY NN
29,305 - 29,305 NOVIY MPIVAN WY IVI DINNN
(2,934) (1,607) (1,327) T NYPYN MDOYaT WNIWY 10 DINIH
(26,462) - (26,462) NN MPYAT WNIWY VI DI
(91) (1,607) 1,516 D2NITH MY DNIMIIL V) NIT)
2,733 2,651 82 T NIMPNN NPNNY DM MNY) DININ NN
- (27,888) 27,888 T NPNN NINND O DM NI
2,642 2,569 73 T NAPNN NOY ONIMITH MY DI NI
- (29,413) 29,413 T NPNN NOY DD DN NI
2023 9312 30 D12 NNPNHVNY DXYNN NWITY HY Napny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 *abNa 9917 29N 9917 *abNa
25,320 3,568 21,752 19PN NN
41,687 - 41,687 NAVIV MY WY IV DNINPNN
(327) 146 (473) T NYPYN MDOYaY WNIWY 10 DININH
(35,305) - (35,305) NI MDPYAT WNIWY IO DDA
6,055 146 5,909 DM MY DINITN IV DY
833 776 57 T NIMPNN NPNNY DNMTN MNY) DININ NN
- (28,681) 28,681 T NMPNN NPNND OX9INN DN NI
6,888 6,823 65 T NAPNN NOY ONIMITH MY DI NI
- (34,582) 34,582 T NAPNN NOY OX2NN ONININ NI
2023 921872 31 D)2 NIINVHY MYY
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
49997 YaHNa 49997 YaHNa 9917 *abNa
106,111 21,122 84,989 MYy NN
138,604 - 138,604 NOVIY MPIVAN WY IVI DINNN
5,004 8,971 (3,967) T NYPYN (MYOYAY WNIWY) MIOYAN 1YY 10 OINNN
(144,750) - (144,750) NN MIPYAT WNIWY I DI
(1,142) 8,971 (10,113) DM MY DINIIN IV O
1,459 1,370 89 T MIYN NYNND DM ONYY OIMITD NI
- (38,404) 38,404 T MWD NYNNY 0N DN/ NN
317 265 52 T YN 90D DM N DNV NINY
- (28,328) 28,328 T YN NDY O DM NI




N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) NPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

Towantic
99057 ANNN YY MT

2024 %3192 30 09y

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
12,259 12,160 99 T DN MY DINMIN
500 (12,160) 12,660 T D2NN DINNN
809,446 80,725 728,721 3N V12 VI
- (49,578) 49,578 p) D»YMN YNY1 D0
74,561 - 74,561 D>INN DXD)
896,766 31,147 865,619 0’09 57Nn0
10,174 (1,910) 12,084 N MNTI MR DINIT MIN?
325,243 (510) 325,753 MINK NMMNNN
335,417 (2,420) 337,837 MNANNHNN 2710
561,349 33,567 527,782 N DXOMVY NN
896,766 31,147 865,619 179 MN2NHNN 571D

2023 %152 30 DY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
8,428 8,328 100 T DN MY OINRN
43 (8,328) 8,371 T DYaNN DINNN
833,316 80,820 752,496 3 ,N VIAP VIO
- (53,087) 53,087 ) D»YNMN YNYa DY)
135,796 - 135,796 DINN DO
977,583 27,733 949,850 0’09 57N0
11,297 (2,189) 13,486 N MNTI NN DINIT MIN
496,620 (140) 496,760 MINN NMNI1NNN
507,917 (2,329) 510,246 MNANNHNN 57NY
469,666 30,062 439,604 N DXOMY NN
977,583 27,733 949,850 17 MNAOHNN 571D

2023 921374 31 oYY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

49997 Ya9Na 49997 Ya9Na 49997 YaHNa
2,046 1,946 100 i D017 MY DINNN
58 (1,946) 2,004 T [np>iab))aRubi)a)kya)
821,654 80,810 740,844 3 N V2P VI
- (51,333) 51,333 ) D»YNIN dNY1 DU
131,405 - 131,405 0NN OY0I)
955,163 29,477 925,686 0’09 5710
12,060 (2,107) 14,167 N MNTI MR DINIT MIN
412,112 (105) 412,217 MINN NMI1NNN
424,172 (2,212) 426,384 MNANNNN 57NY
530,991 31,689 499,302 N DXAMY N
955,163 29,477 925,686 19 MHNAMNNN 57N
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0999121 'NY3a) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM NHYNNY DIINGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D20 MHMT 918 - 11 NI

(qvnn) Towantic
2NN H9ID NN TONY NN DY NINYT

2024 %39°2 30 ©°2 NNNVNIY DIYNN NYIY HY Napny

oxnna IFRS MNRNNN
1Y MY
ONMAVNN NMIAVNN INND
nYAPN YY *NWapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
4991 %9983 49991 %9983 49997 a9Na 9991 %9983
201,700 - (17,292) 218,992 2 moIN
126,626 - (4,277) 130,903 N NPIYIN NINNIN
17,258 - 2,804 14,454 N MNNaM NI
57,816 - (15,819) 73,635 NV NN
7,538 - (2,611) 10,149 a NI NMIRKIN
50,278 - (13,208) 63,486 n9PNY NN
(19,921) - 15,085 (35,006) a INK Y9I TOIN
30,357 - 1,877 28,480 NMPNY 9915 MMM
2023 153 30 012 NNPNHVNY DIYNN NYIV HY nmpnb
oxnna IFRS MNINNN
M1y MY
NMIAVNN ONRMIVND MNINNN
nYApn YY *nWHaApn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
4917 2abNa 49991 %a5Na 9917 *abNa 9991 %9983
193,805 5,309 1,838 186,658 mMo»dN
94,413 5,309 (4,298) 93,402 N NPIYIN NINNIN
17,219 - 2,804 14,415 N MNN9M NNI
82,173 - 3,332 78,841 YN NNA
9,792 - (2,885) 12,677 2 O MINSIN
72,381 - 6,217 66,164 n9PNY NN
(1,325) - (4,758) 3,433 a NN Y9I (T991) NN
71,056 - 1,459 69,597 n2PNY Y3 NNA

XNIND YNNI DY NNN MINPOY SV NIXND DNMNNA NNAPN DY NPRNIVN NPPTNRD MNRND AN (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0999121 'NY3a) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM NHYNNY DIINGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D20 MHMT 918 - 11 NI

(1vnn) Towantic
: (TWNN) INK 5910 NN TOIM NI DY MIN'T

2024 %39°2 30 ©Y°2 NNNVNIY DIYNN NYITY DY Napny

oxnna IFRS MNINNN
NNy NNy
NNAYND MINMAVYND MIRNN
nYAPN YY *NWapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 rabNa 9997 *abNa
82,563 - (2,085) 84,648 moIoN
45,601 - (1,910) 47,511 N NPOWON NINNIN
8,629 - 1,402 7,227 N MNNSM NN
28,333 - (1,577) 29,910 NV NN
4,181 - (1,529) 5,710 a P MNRNIN
24,152 - (48) 24,200 n9YPNY AN
(14,884) - 978 (15,862) a NN 99D TOON
9,268 - 930 8,338 NYPNY Y915 N4
2023 %953 30 D12 NNMHOVIY DIYVNN NWIYY HY nm.:mb
oxnna IFRS MNINNN
N1MY N 1MY
NMIVYND NMIAVYND MNIRNN
naApn HY *N9apn by IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
81,415 6,805 1,838 72,772 MoIN
41,468 6,805 (2,189) 36,852 N NPYIVON MNIIN
8,608 - 1,402 7,206 N MNNSM NN
31,339 - 2,625 28,714 "NYaN NN
4,512 - (1,495) 6,007 a NN MNNN
26,827 - 4,120 22,707 PNY NN
4,048 - (3,351) 7,399 a INN 591D NN
30,875 - 769 30,106 n2PNY Y3 NNA
2023 932874 31 D)2 NNPPHDIVY MY
oxnna IFRS MNINNN
NNy NIy
MIRMAVYNN MINRMAVYNN HININNN
nYApn YY *nWHaApn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9911 vabNa 9911 vabNa 9991 *abNa 9911 vabNa
414,818 15,698 19,039 380,081 a moIoN
204,944 15,698 (8,765) 198,011 N NPYIYON NINNIN
34,452 - 5,609 28,843 N MNN9M NN
175,422 - 22,195 153,227 "Yan NN
11,971 - (7,346) 19,317 2 1070 MINXIN
163,451 - 29,541 133,910 MYY NNY
(31,270) - (26,455) (4,815) a NN 9919 709N
132,181 - 3,086 129,095 MYY Y95 NNy

ININD YNNI DY NNN MRPOY DY MISND DNMONN NNIAPN DY THIRIAYN NPPTHD MNNKNN I8N (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) HPMDN MY MHAN HY D90 MNT 91998 - 11 MIN*a

2024 3132 30 D12 NNMNDNY DIYNN NYIY DY Noypny

(qwnn) Towantic
: ©NIVAN MDD HY NITY NPIINHD NININNN

IFRS MNP US GAAP
9911 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
50,278 (13,208) 63,486 NMPNY NN
69,401 - 69,401 NOVIY MPIVAN WY IVI DINNN
43,512 44,087 (575) T NYPYN (MDWA0 WWNIYWY) MZYan WY 10) DNNNN
(102,700) - (102,700) NI MDOYAT WYY DI DN
10,213 44,087 (33,874) DM MY DNINIITN VI (NVIP) DTN
2,046 1,946 100 T NIMPNN NPNNY DM MNY) DININ NN
- (46,767) 46,767 T NMPNN NPNND OYINND DN NI
12,259 12,160 99 T NAPNN NOY ONIMITH MY DI NI
- (12,894) 12,894 T NNPNN NOY DD DN NI
2023 »31°2 30 DY°2 NNPNDNY DIYNN NYIY HY Naypnd
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
9917 29N 9917 29N 9917 *abN3
72,381 6,217 66,164 NMPNY NN
54,710 - 54,710 NAVIV MDIYAN YW IV DINDNN
29,192 29,267 (75) T NYPYN (MYOYAY WNRIWY) MIOYaN 1YY 10 DINNN
(115,794) - (115,794) NN MDOYAT WYY IO) OININ
(31,892) 29,267 (61,159) DI MY DINIINL IV POOP
40,320 40,230 90 T NAPNN NPNNY DIMTN IMNYI DI NN
- (119,838) 119,838 T NMPNN NPNND OXoINN DN NI
8,428 8,328 100 T NAPNN NOY ONIMITH MY DI NI
- (58,669) 58,669 T NAPNN NOY DXo2NN ONININ NI
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 %31°3 30 01’2 NNPNOVNY DIYNN NYIYY Y Nopnd

(qvnn) Towantic
: (TURN) DINBHN MDA DY NYTY NPIIND MNNNM

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
99Y7 'aYNa 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
24,152 (48) 24,200 NMPNY NN
27,618 - 27,618 NOVIY MDIYIN WAV VI DNIMITN
44,940 45,397 (457) T NYPYN (MYOYAY WNRIWY) MOYAN 1YV 10 DINNN
(61,263) - (61,263) MDD MDOYAT WYY HO) OINNN
11,295 45,397 (34,102) DM MY DNINIITN VI (NVIP) DY)
964 866 98 T NNPNN NYINND DNV NV DIMITD NN
- (46,997) 46,997 i NMPNN NYINND DDA DAIMIHN NI
12,259 12,160 99 T NOPNN NIDY DMIMITND MY DM NN
- (12,894) 12,894 T N9PNN NOY DXoaNN ONININ NI
2023 %392 30 D2 NNPNVAY DIUNN AWV YV Napny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
26,827 4,120 22,707 N9PNY NN
22,267 - 22,267 NOVIY MIIVIN WY 1V DINNN
24,998 25,073 (75) T NYPYN (MYOYAY WNRIWY) MOYAN 1YY 10 DINNN
(49,815) - (49,815) NI MDIYAT WNRIYY IO DI
(2,550) 25,073 (27,623) DM MY DINIIN IV OO
10,978 10,878 100 T NAPNN NYNND DIV NYY OIMITD NI
- (86,292) 86,292 T NPNN NINNY DY DN/ NN
8,428 8,328 100 T NNPNN QIDY OIMIIN MY ONIMII NI
- (58,669) 58,669 T NPNN NOY DXYANN DI NI
2023 93218473 31 ©%2 NNPNVNIY MIYY
IFRS MNINNN US GAAP
49997 YaHNa 49997 YaHNa 9917 29N
163,451 29,541 133,910 Yo P
122,769 - 122,769 NOVIY MPIVAN WY IVI DINNN
33,605 34,787 (1,182) T NYPYN (MYYAY WDIWY) MPOYSN 1YV IV DINNN
(194,648) - (194,648) NN MPOYAT WNIWY I DI
(38,274) 34,787 (73,061) DM MY DINIVNL IV NOP
40,320 40,230 90 T YN NYNND DINIIVND INYY DI NI
- (119,838) 119,838 T VYN N2PNNY DODANN DINRND NI
2,046 1,946 100 T YN 90D DM N DMV NINY
- (46,767) 46,767 T YN NDY O DM NI




N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) NPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

Shore
99057 ANNN YY MT

2024 %3192 30 OYY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
1,659 1,610 49 T DN MY DNININ
2,170 (1,610) 3,780 T D2NN DNINNN
8,086 7,863 223 ) DI DMDIN DXPYIN
504,822 (67,091) 571,913 NN VIAP VIO
- (14,425) 14,425 ) D»YMN N1 DY)
225,647 137,496 88,151 N VINOY MDY OO
97,580 (8,027) 105,607 ) D™INN DXD9)
839,964 55,816 784,148 0093 97N
28,357 (1,303) 29,660 N MNTI MRNN DINIT M
217,638 142,524 75,114 n 779N )2 TN I MANNN
464,642 8,667 455,975 MINN NMPNNN
710,637 149,888 560,749 MNAMNND 2710
129,327 (94,072) 223,399 1,0 ,N DMV N
839,964 55,816 784,148 P MHNAMNHNN 2710

2023 %312 30 oYY

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP

9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9917 *abNa
4,988 4,947 41 T D010 MY DINNN
- (4,947) 4,947 i D221 DINNN
527,084 (65,942) 593,026 N, ,N VP VIO
- (14,973) 14,973 b} D»YNMN dNYa DY)
234,404 144 614 89,790 n HDOY MDY YD)
129,350 (808) 130,158 D>INN DY0I)
895,826 62,891 832,935 Y09 97N
10,486 (976) 11,462 N MNTI MRNIN DOINIT M
222,211 145,745 76,466 779N )2 TN IO MIA»NNN
460,566 7,864 452,702 MINNK M”MI»NNN
693,263 152,633 540,630 MNANNNN 57N
202,563 (89,742) 292,305 N ,N DMV N
895,826 62,891 832,935 PO MHNAMNHNN 27N

2023 92,¥7a 31 DY

IFRS MIRNN US GAAP

9917 *ahNa 9917 *aHNa 4999 YaHNa
5,448 5,400 48 i DN MY DININ
2,129 (5,400) 7,529 T 092NN OINPNN
14,304 14,304 - )] D) DMV DMPYIN
515,484 (66,842) 582,326 N, ,N VAP VIO
- (14,699) 14,699 ) D»YNIN YNY1 DO
230,023 141,044 88,979 n VIDOYW MDY YD)
110,981 (15,638) 126,619 DINX DYD2)
878,369 58,169 820,200 0’093 5710
19,037 (2,615) 21,652 N MINTI MR OINRIT MM
219,927 144,152 75,775 17790 X2 TN YITD MIA»NNN
471,389 8,316 463,073 MINK NMNNN
710,353 149,853 560,500 MNANNND 5770
168,016 (91,684) 259,700 1,0 ,N DMV N
878,369 58,169 820,200 179 MN2NHNN 571D
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) HPMDN MY MHAN HY D90 MNT 91998 - 11 MIN*a

(Tvnn) Shore
SINN D9 NN T NN DY NINYT

2024 32 30 ©Y°2 NNNDNY DIYNN NYIY YV Nopnd

oxnna IFRS MNIRNN
Ny oY
PINMIVND INRMIVND MNINND
nYApn Y *nHapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9991 %9983 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
83,145 - (737) 83,882 a movIoN
49,708 - (7,973) 57,681 n MINNY OXPYT
30,707 - (2,880) 33,587 N TINN NPIYAN NIRNIN
18,724 - 7,739 10,985 n,n,N MNNAM NN
(15,994) - 2,377 (18,371) yyan 109N
19,998 - 5,902 14,096 n,a NN MINSN
(35,992) - (3,525) (32,467) nNMPNY 109N
(2,696) - 1,138 (3,834) a INK Y9I TOIN
(38,688) - (2,387) (36,301) nNMPNY Y915 109N
2023 939°2 30 ©Y°2 NNMNDIY DIYNN NYIY YV NaYpny
oxnna IFRS MNINNN
NNy NNy
DONRMIAVNND INMIAVNN MNNND
nYAPn YY *nWHaApn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
4917 *abNa 917 *abNa 9917 *abNa 917 *abNa
30,231 - 1,443 28,788 a moIdn
23,631 - (7,973) 31,604 n MINKNY DYPYT
22,841 - (14,636) 37,477 N TINN NPIYIN NINNIN
15,468 - 4,485 10,983 n,n,N MNNA NN
(31,709) - 19,567 (51,276) Yyan 1o9n
17,538 - 3,977 13,381 n,a NN MINNIN
(49,067) - 15,590 (64,657) nNMPNY 109N
(5,767) - (3,076) (2,691) a NN Y912 TOIN
(54,834) - 12,514 (67,348) n9YPNY Y915 109N

TININD ONNIN DY NNN MNPOY DV MIXND DNMNNA NXIAPN DY TPRNAVN NPITRD MNNRNN IN»N (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MM HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) HPMDN MY MHAN HY D90 MNT 91998 - 11 MIN*a

(Tvnn) Shore
SINN D9 NN T NN DY NINYT

2024 3132 30 D12 NNPNDNY DIYNN NYITY Y Nopnd

oxnna IFRS MNIRNN
Ny oY
PINMIVND INRMIVND MNINND
nYApn Y *nHapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
39,033 - (297) 39,330 ul moon
21,891 - (3,987) 25,878 n MINNY DYPYT
17,437 - (1,281) 18,718 N MINK NPIWN NMINSIN
9,365 - 3,870 5495 N, ,N MNNIM NNI
(9,660) - 1,101 (10,761) yyan 1oan
10,058 - 2,897 7,161 n,2 NI MINKIN
(19,718) - (1,796) (17,922) nNMPNY 109N
5,269 - 479 4,790 a NN D9 TOON
(14,449) - (1,317) (13,132) nNMPNY Y915 109N
2023 93122 30 £)°2 NNPNVAY DIYNHN NYIYY SV NpNY
oxnna IFRS MRNN
NNy NNy
DONRMIAVNND INMIAVNN MNNND
naApn HY *Apn Yy IFRS-% US GAAP
4917 2abNa 49991 %aYNa 9917 29N 9991 %9983
(18,057) - 1,443 16,614 2 modn
6,322 (3,987) 10,309 n MINKNY DYPYT
10,530 - (8,227) 18,757 N MINK NPIVAN NN
8,455 - 2,966 5489 n,n,N MNNIM NN
(7,250) - 10,691 (17,941) yon 109N
8,754 - 1,990 6,764 n,a NN MINNIN
(16,004) - 8,701 (24,705) nNOPNY 109N
(2,092) - (2,242) 150 a NN Y91 TN
(18,096) - 6,459 (24,555) nNMPNY Y915 109N
2023 921843 31 0’2 NNPMNDIY MIYY
oxnna IFRS MNNRNN
nYMY nMMb
ONMIVNN ONRMIAVNND MNNND
nYApn YY *nWHaApn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
122,966 - 749 112,217 a moIdN
64,835 - (15,947) 80,782 n MINNY OXPYT
48,415 - (18,196) 66,611 N MINK NPIVON NMINSIN
34,194 - 12,225 21969 n,n,N MNNaM NNI
(34,478) - 22,667 (57,145) yyan 109
36,175 - 8,312 27,863 M, NI MINKIN
(70,653) - 14,355 (85,008) MYy 109N
(18,728) - (3,783) (14,945) a NN 5919 709N
(89,381) - 10,572 (99,953) MYy Y93 1090
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 32 30 ©Y°2 NNNDNY DIYNN NYIY YV N1opnd

(Tvnn) Shore
: DIMINHN MITN DY NITY NPIMNND MNNNN

IFRS MNP US GAAP
9911 *abNa 9911 *abNa 9911 *abNa
(35,992) (3,525) (32,467) NPNY TOMN
(3,417) - (3,417) NOVIY MDIYAY WMWY VI DIMIN
(6,341) (6,043) (298) i NYPYN MDD IWNIWY ) DNINMITN
5,969 - 5,969 PO MDOYHN YW IV DNINNN
(3,789) (6,043) 2,254 DM MY DNINIITN VI (NVIP) DY)
5,448 5,400 48 T NOPNN NYINND DNV NV DI NN
- (77,610) 77,610 T NPNN NNNY O DNNNIH NN
1,659 1,610 49 T NOPNN NIDY DMIMITN MY DM NN
- (79,864) 79,864 T NNPNN NOY DDA DN NI
2023 939°2 30 D2 NNMNDAY DIYNHN NYIY YV Napny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 *abNa 9917 29N 9917 *abNa
(49,067) 15,590 (64,657) 19PN TON
(6,541) - (6,541) NOVIY MPIYAT IWNIYY V) DI
(1,443) (1,048) (395) T NYPYN MDD 1WNDIWY I DIMITN
1,000 - 1,000 DM MY IWAIY IV DINNINH
(6,984) (1,048) (5,936) DY MY DINIVNL IV NOOP
11,972 11,933 39 T NNPNN NYINND DNV NYY DM NI
- (89,905) 89,905 T NMPNN NPNND OX9INN DN NI
4,988 4,947 41 T NNPNN NIDY DINMITN MW DNMII NN
- (83,967) 83,967 T NPNN NOY DDA DN NI
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TWnN) HPMNN MY MHIAN Y D203 MHMT 91N - 11 NN

2024 3193 30 ©Y°3 NNIPNVNVY DIVYNN NIV HY NPNY

(Tvnn) Shore
: DIMINHN MITN DY NITY NPIMNND MNNNN

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP
49997 99N 4999 99N 49997 a9Na
(19,788) (1,796) (17,992) NPNY TON
442 - 442 NOVIV MY IYIIY IV DININ
(5,423) (5,125) (298) i NYPYN MDD 1WNIWY ) DNINMITN
5,100 - 5,100 DD MSPYAN 1WA IV DINNINH
119 (5,125) 5,244 DY MNYI DNININN IV DY)
1,540 1,492 48 T NOPNN NYINND DNV NV DI NN
- (74,618) 74,618 i NMPNN NYINND DN DI NI
1,658 1,609 49 T NOPNN NIDY DM MY DM NN
- (79,862) 79,862 T NOPNN NOY DXYANND DM NI
2023 %392 30 1’2 NNNNOVNY DIYNN HWVIYY YV NPNY
IFRS MNINNN US GAAP
9997 999Na 9997 99Na 49997 99N
(16,004) 8,701 (24,705) NPNY TOMN
(460) - (460) NAVIV MIYAT IWNIYY 1) DN
3,646 4,014 (368) T NYPYN (MYOYAY WNRIWY) MOYAN 1YY 10 DINNN
(4,000) - (4,000) NI MDOYAT WYY DI DN
(814) (4,014) (4,828) DM MY DINIINN IV PO
5,802 5,761 41 T N9PNN NYINND DANIMIVI MY DININD NI
- (88,794) 88,794 T NPNN NINNY DYDIANNI DN/ NN
4,988 4,947 41 T NNPNN NIDY DINITN MW DNMII NN
- (83,967) 83,967 T NPNN NOY DDA DM NI
2023 920873 31 ©1°2 NNMNVIY NIYY
IFRS MNINNN US GAAP
49997 Ya9Na 49997 Ya9Na 4999 YaHNa
(70,653) 14,355 (85,008) MY 109N
49,157 - 4,157 NOVIV MY IYAIY IV DININ
5,355 5,763 (408) T NYPYN (MDY WNIYY) MY 1YY IV DININH
(16,036) - (16,036) NN MPPYAT WNIWY IV DI
(6,524) 5,763 (12,287) DM MY DINIIVNL IV PNOOP
11,972 11,933 39 T MIYN NYNND DI INYY OIMITD NI
- (89,905) 89,905 T MWD NYNNY 0N DN/ NN
5,448 5,400 48 T YN 90D DM N DNV NINY
- (77,609) 77,609 T YN NDY O DM NI




N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 *NYa) 2024 %39°2 30 DY TITNIND DI DOV MNY HYNNY DININGA

(TUNN) NPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

IFRS-5 US GAAP Y2 Shore-2) Towantic-a ,Fairview-1 ,Valley -2 nYp°y0 MINXDNN VI 1919

oanwn oomdwn IFRS n9ona : ("LTPC-n 050107 — 19nY) TN 1919 MPinn D500 NN0HNI MPnnn Moy .N

TIINND NNPN DXNNMM V1PN WIDTN MOYD 03NN LTPC-n 050N 1wapivw 290 7771 MAND DNNNA NI TUN

DYYNN TN 0101 O NINND omYwnn ,US GAAP 17002 .ANaN ApRNND TIN5 T NpRnnn A
STO97Y NN NITA MOVIY NINNIN NNDNA

DY ODOVPAN NIN POND MNP MNKNNL MDD MI2NN Mo1n  IFRS-1 : Swap mnpoy bw 2y nyadvpax 2
MOPII NTIN MINIM PDOUPON IRY PN 0»p X US GAAP-1 .709M NNI2 105Y DNINIBNN MDD NT)
SNRN 99100 NNAY INIoNa

2P v1575 [FRS-21 09111 099101 0»WMN dNoa 00 : DOYMN O NYA 00D L)

SY MNTIY ONMINN MDPINN SY MMTI DXDANN DONININ DY NPOM MISNN 1DIND MY OMP : DA DIONRND T
900N ANIN

SHIN NITHNY MY XY NHN N US GAAP-1 .nhon »1ind IFRS-2 0%1010 0191100 D3N : vindw MDY Y00 .1
PDIWAN NNNIND DY NN

YN D09 0WON US GAAP-1 .IFRS-2 0039 01115 DOXIVNA DHINDN DINNDN DXADNN DIDIVY DOPYWHIN )
DY) PWRY DXDI DY PWIN 1PAD DIDIN DTN P2 DIINON

V19 T NTPY 00 it ,CPV n¥ap Hw nwroan Tym »ad 2021 mva : Valley-1 yiap vion 79y n Y 3

(021 Valley-Y ¥1230 ©9810 ©OINNN DNINITN MIIIN) NIVNN 92 DIOD Yy NYY 01902 TN ,IFRS-1 .»apn

vonn Valley-5 1235 098N0 0NN NN 001NN 21N, US GAAP-1 .79y 110 7090 1910 ONNND

NTIAY NNDNI PIYNA XN TIVD DTN TOOIM INNRD .TIY DTN TO 101N KD 12 DY ,027902 TN DY DY

oy waw XY Y Y35 Valley v mnyta apiyn oo ,CPV n¥iap Y nweoan Tvina mbdy 9Ty NNSpN
172NN MNSN

VISIN DY MNRNNN .NMNVDNIN MDYN 299 Mapn v a8 Shore Yv ©»9057 mMMTa : Shore-2 yap vidy .n
.CPV n¥1ap H¥ Nwro9n 1¥1N2 NNYYIY MY GTIY INXPN 900 )-) /K DXYDI 99N Q0N , M550 Mapn
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NHRYY N92NYD DIONINN DITHIND 09352 D099DIN MNITNH NIXNH TINN 090D DINM

019 9252 99050 281N YY 02NN NYNN

2023 938472 31 2023 »3¥°2 30 2024 »3>2 30
(99ran) (992 'nY3) (9pran rnva)
N7Y 19N N7Y 19N N7Y 19N

D2VIVY DY09)

138 275 160 DN MY DINNN

129 115 116 MPTIN MIIN DI NN IV 1IN DY MLV NPION

43 72 87 DINX DX2MN NNMPD

310 462 363 D29VIV D209 5NV

029VIV DNV 009

5,183 5,083 5,304 MPINN MIIN2 NYPYN

221 176 258 MPINM MIIN DM NN MIVYY 1IN

1 11 - TN PIIT UNID MRS

4 4 3 V2P VIO

28 23 31 D»YMN YNY1 DX0I)

5,437 5,297 5,596 0290V DNV D209 57N

5,747 5,759 5,959 0’09 5710
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KPMG LLP

Suite 4000

1735 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-7501

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Members of
CPV Valley Holdings, LLC:

Results of Review of Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated financial statements of CPV Valley Holdings, LLC and its
subsidiary (the Company), which comprise the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, and the related condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), and
cash flows for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related
condensed consolidated statements of changes in members’ equity for the six-month periods ended

June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the condensed consolidated interim
financial information).

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying condensed consolidated interim financial information for it to be in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Review Results

We conducted our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of condensed consolidated
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. A review of condensed consolidated interim financial
information is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, the objective of
which is an expression of an opinion regarding the financial information as a whole, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our reviews. We believe that the
results of the review procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the condensed consolidated interim
financial information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
condensed consolidated interim financial information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Report on Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023

We have previously audited, in accordance with GAAS, the consolidated balance sheet as of

December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss),
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated

March 8, 2024. In our opinion, the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.



KPMG

December 31, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

KPMe P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
August 12, 2024



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 91 $ 93 $ 98
Restricted cash 6,802 1,498 1,074
Accounts receivable 12,277 8,806 20,402
Deposits — 2 2
Prepaid expenses 2,352 2,171 633
Fuel inventory 449 1,013 276
Emissions inventory 1,052 219 —
Derivative assets, energy 4,359 — 25,529
Total current assets 27,382 13,802 48,014
Non-current assets:
Property, plant, and equipment, net 756,963 775,365 768,584
Deposits 332 1,016 516
Cash collateral - letters of credit 59,312 38,008 35,040
Spare parts inventory 4,703 5,283 4,971
Intangible assets, net 19,600 20,269 19,935
Derivative assets, energy 6,443 — 13,462
Other non-current assets 952 1,468 1,200
Total assets $ 875687 $§ 855211 $ 891,722

Liabilities and Members' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10,639 $ 12,647 $ 13,750
Current portion of long-term debt 71,601 10,020 82,589
Derivative liabilities, energy 4,639 — 10,133

Total current liabilities 86,879 22,667 106,472

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt 324,454 390,354 310,302
Notes payable - related party 62,398 58,180 60,264
Derivatives liabilities, energy 1,843 — 3,717

Total liabilities 475,574 $ 471,201 480,755

Commitments and contingencies (note 6i)

Members' equity 400,113 384,010 410,967

Total liabilities and members' equity $ 875687 $ 855211 $ 891,722

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)
For the three-month For the six-month periods
periods ended June 30, ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Operating revenue $ 46693 $§ 30,033 $§ 137,421 § 107,951
Total operating revenue 46,693 30,033 137,421 107,951
Fuel and other 18,559 14,319 56,234 37,728
Operating expenses 17,434 11,945 33,710 24,657
Depreciation and amortization 6,589 6,515 13,158 13,030
Taxes other than income taxes 433 424 862 850
Total operating expenses 43,015 33,203 103,964 76,265
Income (loss) from operations 3,678 (3,170) 33,457 31,686
Interest expense, net (11,638) (11,509) (23,490) (20,635)
Gain on sale of assets — 73 — 73
Loss on debt extinguishment — (662) — (662)
Net income (loss) (7,960) (15,268) 9,967 10,462
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments (2,630) (1,101) (20,821) (350)

Comprehensive income (loss) $ (10,590) $§ (16,369) $ (10,854) $ 10,112

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity
(in thousands)

Accumulated Accumulated

retained other Total
Members' earning comprehensive members'

equity (deficit) income (loss) equity
Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited) $ 465,593 $ (92,045) $ 350 $ 373,898
Net income (loss) — 12,278 — 12,278
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — 24,791 24,791
Total comprehensive income (loss) 37,069
Balance, December 31, 2023
(Audited) 465,593 (79,767) 25,141 410,967
Net income (loss) — 9,967 — 9,967
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — (20,821) (20,821)
Total comprehensive income (loss) (10,854)
Balance, June 30, 2024 (Unaudited) $ 465,593 $ (69,800) $ 4,320 $ 400,113

Accumulated Accumulated

retained other Total
Members' earning comprehensive = members'

equity (deficit) income (loss) equity
Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited) $ 465,593 $ (92,045) $ 350 $ 373,898
Net income (loss) — 10,462 — 10,462
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — (350) (350)
Total comprehensive income (loss) 10,112
Balance, June 30, 2023 (Unaudited) $ 465,593 § (81,583) $ — $ 384,010

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Operating activities:

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Loss on extinguishment of debt
Gain on sale of assets
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt related costs
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Fuel inventory
Emissions inventory
Spare parts inventory
Prepaid expenses

Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Investing activities:

Property, plant, and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities

Financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term revolver debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term revolver debt
Deferred financing costs

Cash in advance - related party

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year
Cash and restricted cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest and financing fees
Noncash investing and financing activities:

Liabilities incurred for property, plant, and
equipment

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

(in thousands)

For the three-month
periods ended June 30,

For the six-month periods
ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
$ (7.960) $ (15268) $ 9,967 $ 10,462
— 662 — 662

— (73) — (73)

6,589 6,515 13,158 13,030

315 2,804 633 3,030
(1,113) (1,670) 8,125 27,764
(175) 41 (173) 1,000
(1,052) 7,436 (1,052) 3,327

131 (713) (25) (1,027)

985 908 (1,719) (1,485)

2 (502) 186 (551)

(299) 593 (952) (19,304)

$  (2577) $ 733 28,148 36,835
(596) (1,199) (935) (1,426)

$ (596) $  (1,199) (935) (1,426)
— 360,260 — 360,260

34,180 10,000 49,180 25,000
(500)  (415,760) (16,400)  (424,400)
(10,000) (10,000) (30,000) (60,000)
— (4,748) — (5,945)

— 51,450 — 51,450

$ 23680 $  (8798) 2,780 (53,635)
20,507 (9,264) 29,993 (18,226)
45,698 48,863 36,212 57,825

$ 66205 $ 39599 $ 66205 $ 39,599
11,278 9294 $ 22541 $ 19,102

— 269 — 269



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CPV Valley Holdings, LLC and Subsidiary (Valley or the Company), a Delaware limited liability
company, was formed in July 2013. Valley is the parent company of its wholly owned subsidiary,
CPV Valley, LLC, which was formed on June 13, 2007. The purpose of Valley, through its subsidiary,
is to construct, finance, own, and operate a 720-megawatt (MW) gas-fired, combined-cycle power
project located in Wawayanda, New York (the Facility or Project). The Facility commenced
operations and was placed in service on October 1, 2018 (COD).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company was owned by two
members: CPV Power Holdings, LP (CPV PHLP) (50%) and a third party (Third Party) (50%),
collectively the equity members (Equity Members).

(a) Basis of Presentation

The condensed interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Valley and
CPV Valley, LLC. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The
Company’s condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC), established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), is the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP applied by nongovernmental entities.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s condensed interim consolidated financial statements
requires the use of estimates and assumptions based on management’s knowledge and
experience. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and
expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

(c) Risks and Uncertainties

As with any power generation facility, operation of the Facility involves risk, including the
performance of the Facility below expected levels of efficiency and output, shutdowns due to
the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes, violations of permit requirements,
operator error, labor disputes, or catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, floods,
explosions, pandemics, or other similar occurrences affecting a power generation facility or
its power purchasers. In addition, the Facility operates as a merchant plant and is impacted
by changes in regional natural gas and power market conditions, as well as changes in the
rules and regulations governing these markets. The occurrence of any of these events could
significantly reduce or eliminate revenue generated by the Company or significantly increase
the expenses of the Company, and adversely impact the Company’s ability to make
payments on its debt when due.

(d) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts
receivable, prepaid expenses, deposits, accounts payable and accrued liabilities equals or
approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments. Cash
accounts are generally maintained in federally insured banks but may at times have
balances in accounts in excess of federally insured limits. The fair value of the long-term
debt approximates its book value at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, as the interest rates are variable (note 4).

(e) Cash
Cash is comprised of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Restricted Cash and Cash Collateral - Letters of Credit

Restricted cash and cash collateral — letters of credit consists of cash and cash equivalents that
comprise highly liquid investments. Such amounts are restricted under the terms of the
Company’s current Credit Agreement (note 4). Restricted cash accounts include, but are not
limited to, an operating account, letter of credit revolver account, and a revenue account. All
such accounts are held, and maintained, by an agent. The Company’s classification of restricted
cash is based on the classification of its intended use. As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and June 30, 2023, the Company had $6.8 million, $1.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively,
pertaining to operating activities classified as current assets. The Company also had $59.3
million, $35.0 million and $38.0 million of restricted cash classified as noncurrent, which pertains
to cash collateral — letters of credit on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
balance sheets as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.
Restricted cash and long-term restricted cash totaled $66.1 million, $36.1 million and $39.5
million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is earned from the Company’s generation facilities providing capacity and ancillary
services to its customers, the independent system operator (ISO), and from the production and
sale of electricity from the Company’s generation facilities. Revenue is recognized upon the
transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company’s contracts to provide capacity each have one performance obligation
and result from auctions held by the ISO to procure capacity in advance of when the capacity is
expected to be needed and thus to be provided. The Company’s contracts to provide electricity
and ancillary services have one performance obligation. Capacity revenues and proceeds for
electricity, delivered to customers, are classified as Operating revenue on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
Revenue for ancillary services is classified as Operating revenue on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The performance obligations are satisfied over time and use the same method to measure
progress, so they meet the criteria to be considered a series. In measuring progress towards
satisfaction of each performance obligation, the Company applies the “right-to-invoice” practical
expedient and recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to
consideration from a customer that corresponds directly with the value of the performance
completed to date. As such, revenue is recognized using an output method, as energy and
capacity delivered best depicts the transfer of goods or services to the customer. Performance
obligations including energy or ancillary services (such as operations and maintenance and
dispatch services) are generally measured by the MWh delivered. Capacity, which is a stand-
ready obligation to deliver energy when required by the customer, is measured using MWs. For
the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, capacity revenues were $8.0 million
and $7.3 million, respectively, and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
capacity revenues were $15.7 million and $13.8 million, respectively, which are reflected as a
component of Operating revenue in the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Accounts receivable are stated at the actual billed amount net of an allowance for bad debts, if
needed. There was no such allowance as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023. The Company assesses the collectability of accounts receivable based on factors such as
specific evaluation, age of the receivable, and other available information.

Prepaid Expenses

Current prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, bank fees, and other miscellaneous
fees totaling $2.4 million, $0.6 million and $2.2. million at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,



(i)

0

(k)

U]

CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
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and June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance
sheets.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

The Company’s property, plant, and equipment are recorded based on historical cost and
primarily comprise of power generation facility assets and the cost of acquired land.
Depreciation, after consideration of salvage value and asset retirement obligations, is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
commencing when assets, or major components thereof, are either placed in service or
acquired (note 2). Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Spare Parts Inventory

Spare parts inventory primarily consists of spare parts and supplies used to maintain the
power generation facility. Spare parts inventory is carried at lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is the sum of the purchase price and incidental expenditures and charges
incurred to bring the inventory to its existing condition or location. Costs of spare parts are
valued primarily using the average cost method. Generally, cost is reduced to net realizable
value if the net realizable value of inventory has declined and it is probable that the utility of
inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of business, will not be recovered through
revenue earned from the generation of power. The Company’s Spare parts inventory balance
was $4.7 million, $5.0 million and $5.3 million at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and
June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance
sheets.

Emissions Credits Inventory

Emission credits consist primarily of CO2 allowances under the Regional Greenhouse Gas
Initiative (RGGI) program which are held for use by the Company and are stated at the lower of
weighted average cost or net realizable value. The Company had emission inventory of $1.1
million, $0.0 million and $0.2 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment (ASC 360). Factors that could
indicate impairment include significant underperformance relative to historical and projected
future operating results, significant changes in the manner or use of acquired assets, or the
strategy of the Company’s overall business, including significant negative industry and
economic trends. If an indicator of impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the
Company’s long-lived assets would be considered impaired when their anticipated
undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying value. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the assets’ estimated fair value and its carrying amount.

The Company did not recognize any impairment losses on its long-lived assets as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

(m) Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles —
Goodwill and Others (ASC 350). ASC 350 requires that intangible assets determined to
have indefinite lives no longer be amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or circumstances occur that indicate impairment might have
occurred.



(n)

(o)

(P

CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

ASC 350 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable. Separable intangible assets that are deemed to have finite lives
will continue to be amortized using the straight-line method over their estimable
useful lives.

Deposits

The Company posted collateral as required under certain power arrangements with third parties
to cover power price exposure. Long-term deposits totaled $0.3 million, $0.5 million, and $1.0
million at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

The Company’s deposits expected to be returned or utilized within 12 months are classified as
current Deposits, which totaled $0.0 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and
June 30, 2023.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company capitalized direct costs associated with its financings. Direct costs incurred with
obtaining debt are amortized under the interest method over the term of the related debt. As
part of the Ninth Amendment of the Credit Agreement executed in June 2023, the Company
incurred $6.8 million of financing costs, of which $1.5 million was classified as current other
assets and $2.2 million was net to long-term on the accompanying condensed interim
consolidated balance sheets. The amendment was accounted for as an extinguishment of debt
and a modification, depending on the lenders, resulting in $0.7 million being expensed and
classified as Loss on extinguishment of debt and $2.4 million being expensed and classified as
Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization of these costs totaled $0.2 million
and $3.1 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and

$0.4 million and $3.8 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, which is classified as Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Current portion of long-term debt is shown net of $0.8 million, $0.8 million and $0.8 million
of unamortized deferred financing costs as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively. Long-term debt is presented net of $0.7 million, $1.1 million and $1.4 million
of deferred financing costs as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to market risks from
changing interest rates. The Company may also enter into Revenue Put Options (RPOs),
forward purchases and sales of commaodities, and other derivative instruments to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices. The Company recognizes
all contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as either assets or liabilities in the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets and measures those
derivatives at fair value under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging. On the
date a derivative is entered into, the Company may designate hedging relationships if
certain criteria in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), are met; otherwise, the
derivative is marked to market in the Company’s condensed interim consolidated statement
of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

10
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For derivatives designated as a hedge, such as the Company’s interest rate swaps, forward
purchases and sales of commodities, and other derivative instruments used to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices, the Company documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as
hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
balance sheets or to forecasted transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.

When it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the
Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. This could occur when: (1) it is
determined that a derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of
a hedged item; (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) the
derivative is discontinued as a hedging instrument, because it is no longer probable that a
forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is
determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge of cash flows, the
derivative will continue to be carried at fair value on the accompanying condensed interim
consolidated balance sheets and the gains and losses that were accumulated in other
comprehensive income or loss (OCI) are recognized immediately or over the remaining term
of the forecasted transaction in the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized in the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) and comprehensive income or the accompanying condensed interim
consolidated statements of changes in members’ equity as a component of accumulated
OCI, depending upon their use and designation. Gains and losses related to transactions
that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in accumulated OCI and flow through the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) in the period the hedged item affects earnings. Otherwise, any gains and
losses resulting from changes in the market value of the contracts are recorded in the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) in the current period.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist of accounts receivable, which are concentrated within the energy industry and derivative
financial instruments with large creditworthy financial institutions. These industry concentrations
may impact the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that
the customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic, industry or other conditions.
Receivables and other contractual arrangements are subject to collateral requirements under
the terms of enabling agreements. However, the Company believes that the credit risk posed by
industry concentration is offset by the diversification and creditworthiness of the Company’s
customer base and its contractual collateral requirements.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to claims and proceedings arising in the normal course of business.
The Company records a loss contingency in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies,
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Management assesses each matter and determines the likelihood a
loss has been incurred and the amount of such loss if it can be reasonably estimated.
Management reviews such matters on an ongoing basis. Contingencies are evaluated
based on estimates and judgments made by management with respect to the likely outcome
of such matters. Management'’s estimates could change based on new information.

11
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The Company follows the guidance of ASC 460, Guarantees (ASC 460), for disclosing and
accounting for guarantees and indemnifications entered into during the course of business.
When a guarantee or indemnification subject to ASC 460 is entered into, the estimated fair
value of the guarantee or indemnification is assessed. Some guarantees and indemnifications
could have a financial impact under certain circumstances. Management considers the
probability of such circumstances occurring when estimating fair value.

Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is classified and treated as a
partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. No provision for the payment of
federal and state income taxes has been provided since the Company is not subject to
income tax. Each member is responsible for reporting income or loss based on such
member’s respective share of the Company’s income and expenses as reported for income
tax purposes. As such, no income tax expense or benefit has been recorded within these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the three-month and six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Membership Interests

Profits, losses, and distributions of net cash flows shall be allocated in proportion to each
member’s respective ownership interest, as outlined in the Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement (ARLLCA), as amended. As a limited liability company, the liability
of each member is limited to (i) any unpaid capital contributions, (ii) the amount of any
distributions required to be returned in accordance with the agreement, and (iii) any amount the
member is required to pay pursuant to the ARLLCA.

The members did not make any capital contributions to the Company during the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2023.

The Company did not make any distributions to its members during the six-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023.

Contemporaneous with the execution of the Credit Agreement (CA), all members of the
Company executed an agreement, which pledged their respective equity interests in the
Company to the creditors.

Fuel Inventory

Fuel inventory primarily consists of fuel oil used to generate power and a natural gas imbalance
accounted for as inventory. Fuel oil is carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The
cost of fuel oil is comprised of its purchase price and incidental expenditures to deliver it to the
Facility. The cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable value of inventory has
declined and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of
business, will not be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of power. A lower of
cost or net realizable value provision of $0.0 million was included in Fuel and other on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The Company had Fuel inventory of $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $1.0 million as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Adopted)

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (Topic 326) that provides for a new Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL)
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impairment model for specified financial instruments including loans, trade receivables, debt
securities classified as held-to-maturity investments and net investments in leases recognized by
a lessor. Under the new guidance, on initial recognition and at each reporting period, an entity is
required to recognize an allowance that reflects the entity’s current estimate of credit losses
expected to be incurred over the life of the financial instrument. The standard does not make
changes to the existing impairment models for non-financial assets such as fixed assets,
intangibles and goodwill. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, which adjusts
effective date of this standard to January 1, 2023. The Company adopted the standard effective
January 1, 2023. There was no material impact to the financial position, results of operations or
cash flows of the Company.

(2) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,

Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(in years)
Land N/A $ 6,009 $ 6,009 $ 6,009
Generation facility 35 894,854 887,903 887,903
Office furniture & fixtures 10 52 20 20
Computer hardware and software 3 733 733 636
Vehicles 5 69 69 69
Tools and equipment 10 974 955 237
Total 902,691 895,689 894,874
Accumulated depreciation (146,702) (133,879) (121,189)
Construction-in-progress 974 6,774 1,680
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 756,963 $ 768,584 $ 775,365

Depreciation expense was $6.4 million and $6.3 million for the three-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, and $12.8 million and $12.7 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively, which is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The
cost to acquire land and secure easements are both classified as land and is included in Property,
plant, and equipment, net on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.

(3) Intangible Assets

The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to the electrical
interconnection, a water supply and sewer agreement required to operate the Facility and the
purchase of emission offsets to comply with the Project’s air permit. The Company paid for the cost
of the electrical interconnection and water supply upgrades but did not retain title to the assets. On
COD, the Company commenced the amortization of its intangible assets using the straight-line
method over their respective estimated useful lives of 35 years.

Intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

13



(4)

CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,

Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(In years)

Electrical interconnection 35 § 21,305 $ 21,305 $ 21,305
Emissions offset 35 429 429 429
Water interconnection 35 241 241 241

Total 21,975 21,975 21,975
Accumulated amortization (2,375) (2,040) (1,706)

Intangible assets, net $ 19,600 $ 19,935 $§ 20,269

For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the amortization of the intangibles
totaled $167 thousand and $168 thousand, respectively, and for both six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the amortization of the intangibles totaled $335 thousand, and is classified
as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statement
of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization related to the years 2024 through
2028 is expected to be approximately $0.7 million, annually.

Credit and Financing Facilities

The Company is a borrower under a $679.5 million credit agreement (CA) with a consortium of
lenders. The CA provided the Company a Construction/Term Loan facility (Term Loan Facility) of
$540.0 million, a Working Capital facility (WC Facility) of $15.0 million, a Revolving Letter of Credit
Loan facility (RLC Loan Facility) of $124.5 million, and a Letter of Credit Facility (LC Facility)
consisting of six individual sublimit letters of credit, to be used for specified purposes over the term
of the CA.

On June 27, 2023, the Company entered into the Ninth Amendment of its Credit Agreement (Ninth
Amendment) with a syndicate of lenders. MUFG Bank, Ltd serves as administrative agent and U.S
Bank National Association serves as collateral agent and depository bank. The Ninth Amendment
decreased the total credit capacity from $679.5 million to $470.3 million, which provides the
Company a Term Loan Facility of $360.3 million, Revolving Letter of Credit Loan facility of $100.0
million and a Working Capital facility of $10.0 million and extended the maturity of the CA until May
31, 2026. The Ninth Amendment also classified the lenders into First Out Term Loan and Last Out
Term Loan, with different applicable margin and schedule of payments. As a result of entering into
the Ninth Amendment, the Company recognized a $0.7 million Loss on extinguishment of debt,
which is included on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss).

The Ninth Amendment also permits the Company to issue up to $55 million promissory notes
(Promissory Notes) to its Equity Members ($27.5 million to each Member) (note 7a).

The table below summarizes the Company’s outstanding debt, net of unamortized deferred
financing costs as of:
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June 30, December 31, June 30,

(in thousands) 2024 2023 2023
Description

Term-Loan Facility $ 338,468 $ 354,868 $ 359,760
RLC Loan Facility 59,019 39,839 42,839
Unamortized deferred financing costs (1,432) (1,816) (2,225)

$ 396,055 $ 392,891 $§ 400,374

Borrowings for all facilities under the Ninth Amendment of the CA bear interest at the Secured
Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus an applicable margin and 0.1% SOFR Adjustment. The
applicable margin during the term of the CA is as follows:

First Out Last Out

Term Loan Term Loan
Prior to July 1, 2023 3.75 % 3.75 %
From July 1, 2023 to the applicable Maturity Date 5.50 9.25

Unused available credit under the CA incurs a commitment fee of 0.50% per annum. Interest
expense and commitment fees incurred during the operating period are expensed when incurred
and classified as Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). During the three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $12.4 million and $9.3 million, respectively, and for
the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $24.7 million and
$19.0 million, respectively, of interest and fees, which are classified as Interest expense, net on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

The outstanding Term Loan Facility balance was $338.5 million, $354.9 million and $359.8 million at
an annual rate of 10.92%, 10.93% and 8.9% at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively. The CA requires scheduled mandatory repayments and voluntary prepayments
(sweeps) of borrowings under the Term Loan Facility. The quarterly payments are scheduled for
three years, with a balloon payment due at the end of the term on May 31, 2026. Sweep payments,
if made, reduce the amount of the balloon payment.

The current portion of long-term debt of $71.6 million presented on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets for June 30, 2024 includes a net of $0.8 million of unamortized
deferred financing costs, $10.8 million of mandatory payments, and $61.6 million of not mandatory
cash sweep payments expected to be paid in the following twelve months.

There were no outstanding borrowings as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, under the WC facility.

Borrowings under the RLC Loan Facility totaled $59.0 million, $39.8 million and $42.8 million as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which serve as collateral for
the issued letters of credit issued under the LC Facility. Issued letters of credit totaled $59.0 million,
$39.8 million and $42.8 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively. The issued letters of credit are required under several of the Company’s project
agreements disclosed herein.
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There was no applicable margin for the Term Loan Facility under the Ninth Amendment as of June
30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. As of June 30, 2023, the scheduled increase in the applicable
margin for the Term Loan Facility is recognized as a short-term liability. The liability totaled $0.0
million at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, and is classified as Other current
liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets. During the three-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, accretion income totaled $0.0 million and $0.3
million, respectively, and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, accretion income
totaled $0.0 million and $0.7 million, respectively, and is included in Interest expense, net on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

The CA required the Company to pledge all its assets as security in favor of the lenders.

(5) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
a. Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to reduce its
exposure to market risks from changing interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements are
used to convert the floating interest rate component of the Company’s long-term debt
obligations to fixed rates. Such interest rate swap agreements are designated as cash flow
hedges under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are deferred in OCI and all
ineffective changes are recognized as Interest expense, net in the condensed interim
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and comprehensive
income.

As part of entering into the CA, the Company executed amortizing interest rate swaps with
seven financial institutions which were designated to hedge 70% of the Company’s Term-Loan
Facility for the operating period matured date June 30, 2023. As part of the Ninth Amendment,
there is no obligation for the Company to hedge the Interest Rate and no new Interest Rate
Swaps were entered by the Company after the Ninth Amendment as of December 31, 2023.

There were no interest rates classified as Derivatives on the accompany balance sheets as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

b. Energy Derivatives

The Company entered into a forward purchases and sales of commodities to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices. Such instruments are
designated as cash flow hedges under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are
deferred in OCI and all ineffective changes are recognized in the condensed interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company does
not enter into such instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The fair value of the power and gas commaodity swaps assets totaled $10.8 million, $39.0 million
and $0.0 million, of which $4.4 million, $25.5 million and $0.0 million were classified as current
and $6.4 million, $13.5 million and $0.0 million as noncurrent Derivative assets, energy on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024,

December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

The fair value of the power and gas commaodity swaps liabilities totaled $6.5 million, $13.9
million and $0.0 million, of which $4.6 million, $10.1 million and $0.0 million were classified as
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current and $1.8 million, $3.7 million and $0.0 million as noncurrent Derivative liabilities, energy
on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded realized
gains of $3.0 million and $0.0 million and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Company recorded realized gains of $29.7 million and $24.6 million, respectively,
related to power commodity swaps, which is included in Operating revenue on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss). For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company
recorded realized losses of $0.9 million and $0.0 million, respectively, and for the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded realized losses of $8.5 million
and realized gains of $4.3 million, respectively, related to gas commodity swaps, which is
included in Fuel and other, on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The following table summarizes by type and volume the commaodity derivatives, which are
swap contracts entered into to partially fix the price of natural gas purchased and power sold,
and are reflected on the Company’s accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance

sheets at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023 (in thousands):

Natural Gas Power
(in MMbtu) (in MWh)

June 30, 2024 13,397 1,942
December 31, 2023 14,598 2,115
June 30, 2023 — —

The Company did not enter into any other types of derivative contracts during 2024 and 2023.

As of June 30, 2024, the Company estimates $280 thousand of loss will be reclassified out of
OCI over the next 12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market
conditions during the same time period. OCI attributable to the commodities swaps is
reclassified as Unrealized income (loss) on energy derivatives (in thousands):

OCI Roll Forward

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ (1,783)
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative 26,924
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023 25,141
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (20,821)
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2024 $ 4,320
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ (1,783)
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative 1,783
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ —
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c. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company records the fair value of all derivatives as assets and liabilities. In
determining fair value, the Company generally uses the income approach and incorporates
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques.
These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated or generally unobservable
internally developed inputs. Derivative assets and liabilities are classified depending on how
readily observable the inputs used in the valuation techniques are, as follows:

Level 1 Represents unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. This category
includes energy derivative instruments that are exchange traded or that are
cleared and settled through the exchange.

Level 2 Represents quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted market prices in markets that are not active, or other valuations
based on inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data. This category includes the Company’s interest rate swaps and
energy derivatives.

Level 3 This category includes energy derivative instruments whose fair value is estimated
based on internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant inputs
that are generally less readily observable from objective sources (such as market heat
rates, implied volatilities, and correlations). Over the counter, complex, or structured
derivative instruments that are transacted in less liquid markets with limited pricing
information would be included in Level 3. This category includes the Company’s RPO.

d. Valuation Techniques

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to
measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market approach, (2) income approach,
and (3) cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated from market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single
present value amount. The measurement is based on current market expectations of the
return on those future amounts.

The Company measures its interest rate swap, energy, and other derivatives at fair value on
a recurring basis. The fair value of the interest rate swap derivatives is determined using the
income approach by a third-party treasury and risk management service. The service
utilizes a standard model and observable inputs to estimate the fair value of the interest rate
swaps. The Company performs analytical procedures and makes comparisons to other
third-party information in order to assess the reasonableness of the fair value. The Company
maintains controls over the model and its methodology and performs analytical procedures
and makes comparisons to third-party information when available in order to assess the
reasonableness of the fair value.

Fair value measurements of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, based on the above hierarchy, are as
follows:
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Description June 30, 2024

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, energy - commodities $ 10,802 — 10,802 —
$ 10,802 — 10,802 —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities $ (6,482) — (6,482) —
$ (6,482) — (6,482) —

Description December 31, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, energy - commodities $ 38,991 — 38,991 —
$ 38,991 — 38,991 —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities $ (13,850) — (13,850) —
$ (13,850) — (13,850) —

Description June 30, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ — 3 — $ — 3 —
$ — $ — 3 — $ —

(1) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Condensed Interim Consolidated
Balance Sheets

The following tables present the balance sheet classification and fair value of derivative
instruments on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Balance sheet June 30, December 31, June 30,
(in thousands) Location 2024 2023 2023
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815
Interest rate swaps Current — derivative
assets, interest rate swaps  $ — 3 — 3 —
Commodity Swaps Current — derivative
assets, energy 4,359 25,529 —
Commodity Swaps Noncurrent — derivative
assets, energy 6,443 13,462 —
Commodity Swaps Current — derivative
liabilities, energy (4,639) (10,133) —
Commodity Swaps Noncurrent — derivative
liabilities, energy (1,843) (3,717) —
Total derivatives designated as
hedging instruments under ASC 815, net 4,320 25,141 —
Total derivatives, net $ 4320 $ 25141 % —
(2) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Condensed Interim
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The following tables present the classification of derivative instruments on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) for the three-month and six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, segregated between those designated as hedging
instruments and those that are not.
The impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
Amount of gain
Amount of gain reclassified Amount of
(loss) from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on OCl income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
loss
reclassified Location of
from gain
accumulate recognized
d OCL in income on
Three-month intoincome  Three-month derivative Three-month
period Ended (effective period Ended (ineffective period Ended
Instrument June 30, 2024 portion) June 30, 2024 portion) June 30, 2024
(in thousands)
Commodity Commodity
Commodity swaps (5,583) swaps 2,953 swaps —
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

$ (5,583) $ 2,953 $ —
Amount of gain
Amount of gain reclassified Amount of
(loss) from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on OCl income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
loss
reclassified Location of
from gain
accumulate recognized
d OCL in income on
Six-month into income Six-month derivative Six-month
period Ended (effective period Ended (ineffective period Ended
Instrument June 30, 2024 portion) June 30, 2024 portion) June 30, 2024
(in thousands)
Commodity Commodity
Commodity swaps (50,516) swaps 29,695 swaps 0
$ (50,516) $ 29,695 $ —
Amount of loss
Amount of gain reclassified Amount of
(loss) from loss
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on OCl income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
loss
reclassified Location of
from loss
accumulate recognized
d OCL in income on
Three-month into income  Three-month derivative Three-month
period Ended (effective period Ended (ineffective period Ended
Instrument June 30, 2023 portion) June 30, 2023 portion) June 30, 2023
(in thousands)
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps $ (28) net $ (1,128) (expense), net $ —
$ (28) $ (1,128) $ —
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Amount of loss

Amount of gain reclassified Amount of
(loss) from loss
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on ocCli income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
loss
reclassified Location of
from loss
accumulate recognized
d OCL in income on
Six-month into income Six-month derivative Six-month
period Ended (effective period Ended (ineffective period Ended
Instrument June 30, 2023 portion) June 30, 2023 portion) June 30, 2023
(in thousands)
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps $ 17 net $ (2,115) (expense), net $ —
$ 17 $ (2,115) $ —

The Company did not enter into any other derivative contracts during 2024 and 2023.

(6) Facility Contract Commitments
(a) Transmission and Interconnection
(i)Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement

The Company entered into a Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement (LGIA)
among the NYISO and the New York Power Authority (NYPA), which established the Facility’s
required electrical interconnection, necessary system upgrades, and the associated
transmission service upon the commencement of operations. The LGIA outlines the transmission
services NYISO shall provide to the Facility during its 25-year term. As of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company incurred total costs $2.9 million
pertaining to the LGIA, which are classified as Intangible assets on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated balance sheets. Amortization totaled $21 thousand during each
of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $42 thousand during each of the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included in Depreciation
and amortization on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income(loss).

(ii) Electrical Interconnect Agreements

The Company is also party to two Electrical Interconnect Agreements (EICH) with two separate
third parties for the construction of upgrades on their respective systems. The Company incurred
total costs of $16.0 million during 2018 through 2022, which are classified as Intangible assets
on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets. Amortization totaled $125
thousand during both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $250 thousand
during both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, which is included in Depreciation
and amortization on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss).
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(b) Potable Water Supply Sewer Discharge Agreements
(i) Township

Potable water and sewer discharge associated with the Facility’s use is sourced from a local
town (Town) sewer and water systems pursuant to the Out of District User Agreement (ODU
Agreement) between the Company and the Town. The ODU Agreement allows the Company, at
its own expense, to both connect to and receive potable water from the local water district and to
connect to and receive service from the local sewer service district. The ODU Agreement is valid
as long as the Facility is operational. The ODU Agreement establishes a user fee applied to the
consumption of water. During the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the
Company incurred $36 thousand and $11 thousand, and during the six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $56 thousand and $21 thousand, respectively,
of water and sewer expense, which are included in Operating expenses in the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
There are no future commitments as these are service contracts.

(ii) City
The Company is party to an Amended Effluent Water Supply and Process Water Discharge
Service Agreement (AWSPDA) with a local city (City). The AWSPDA allows the Company to
obtain 0.5 million gallons of treated effluent water from the City’s wastewater treatment facility for
the Facility’s use and on-site storage. The City will provide treated effluent and accept process

water from the Facility for specified quantities and rates. The AWSPDA has a base term of 40
years, with two 10-year options exercisable by the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the AWSPDA, the Company was responsible for the construction and
operation of a pump station, chlorine injection system, pipelines, and other related facilities
(WSPDA Interconnection Facilities), which the Company retains title to. Upon the termination of
the AWSPA, the AWSPA provides the City the option to purchase the WSPDA Interconnection
Facilities at fair value and if not purchased by the City, obligates the Company to remove and/or
abandon these facilities upon their decommissioning. Total costs to construct the AWSPDA
Interconnection Facilities totaled $1.1 million and was capitalized as part of Property, plant and
equipment, net.

(c) Tax Agreements

The Company executed a payment in lieu of taxes agreement (PILOT Agreement) with the local
Industrial Development Authority (IDA). In connection with entering into the PILOT Agreement,
the Company entered into a lease agreement (the Lease Agreement) with IDA. The Lease
Agreement required the Company to transfer its ownership interest in the land, on which the
Facility was constructed, to the IDA. In return, the Company receives certain tax exemptions
and deferrals. The IDA then leased the land back to the Company. In lieu of paying property
taxes, the Company is required to pay the IDA scheduled PILOT Agreement payments for the
construction period plus 20 years following the Facility’s COD. See the Commitments and
Contingencies table below in note 6(i).

Under the PILOT Agreement, the Company incurred its required annual land and Special
Improvement District (SID) PILOT obligations of $0.3 million for both three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $0.7 million for both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, which are included in Taxes other than income taxes on the accompanying condensed
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The PILOT
Agreement terminates on December 31, 2039, at which point the assets are transferred back to
the Company. The Company is also required to pay SID charges to the fire district and for water
and sewer services, for which additional charges are incorporated into the amounts above.
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(d) Other Municipal Agreements

The Company entered into a Host Community Agreement (HCA) with the Town to compensate
the community for it being impacted during the construction of the Facility. The Company
incurred $0.1 million during both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $0.2

million during both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, which are included as
Taxes other than income taxes in the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss). See the Commitments and Contingencies table
below in note 6(i).

(e) Capacity Auctions and Bilateral Contracts

The Company participates in NYISO capacity auctions. The auctions are either seasonal,
monthly or spot month and are for the sale of unforced capacity (UCAP) in New York. The
Company sold all of its capacity volume through both NYISO auctions and bilateral sales. For
the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized revenue
from capacity and power generation of $43.4 million and $29.7 million, respectively, and for the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized revenue from
capacity and power generation of $107.0 million and $82.6 million, respectively, which is
included in Operating revenues on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

(f) Long-Term Program Contract

The Company entered into a Long-Term Program Contract (LTPC) with the Original Equipment
Manufacturer, (the OEM), whereby OEM provides scheduled and unscheduled outage
maintenance parts and services for the combustion turbines. The LTPC required that fixed and
variable payments commence on the date the turbines were first fired and terminates the earlier
of 132,800 equivalent base load hours or 29 years. See the Commitments and Contingencies
table below in note 6(i).

During the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $1.7 million and $1.2 million,
and during the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $3.5 million and $2.7
million respectively, of fees were incurred under the LTPC, which are classified as Operating
expenses on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss).

(g) Gas Supply Agreement

The Company is party to a Base Contract for the Sale and Purchase of Natural Gas (GSPA)
with a Gas Supplier (Gas Supplier), whereby the Gas Supplier provides gas supply at a price
indexed to market. The term of the GSPA commenced to accommodate the first fire of the
Facility. The GSPA was amended to extend the term of the agreement to October 31, 2025.
Pursuant to the GSPA, the Gas Supplier is responsible for transporting natural gas to the
designated delivery point.

For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company purchased $12.4
million and $9.0 million, respectively, and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Company purchased $37.1 million and $31.4 million, respectively, of natural gas
under the GSPA, which are included in Fuel and other on the accompanying condensed interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed the Gas Supplier $4.9 million, $6.4 million and $4.0 million as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which are included in Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance
sheets.
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(h) Gas Transportation Agreements

The Company and a Pipeline Company (PC) entered into the Amended and Restated
Precedent Agreement (APA), for the permitting, construction, operating, and maintenance of a
16-inch lateral pipeline and metering and regulating facilities (the PC Lateral Facilities) from the
PC interstate natural gas transmission pipeline system to the Facility. Pursuant to the terms of
the APA, the Company was responsible for the cost to construct the PC Lateral Facilities while
PC retained title to the PC Lateral Facilities. PC will provide firm natural gas transportation
service through the PC Lateral Facilities. As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and

June 30, 2023, the Company incurred $2.4 million under the APA, which is classified as
Intangible assets on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.
Amortization totaled $17 thousand, for each of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, and totaled $34 thousand, for each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, which is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying condensed
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company entered into a LFT Service Agreement (TSA) whereby PC will provide capacity
on the PC Lateral Facilities. PC filed at the FERC the statement of costs incurred for the PC
Lateral Facilities, and pursuant to the APA, amended the demand rate. The terms of the TSA
provides the Company the right to extend the original 15-year term, for up to three periods of
five additional years.

In addition, the Company and PC are party to a FT-1 Service Agreement (FT TSA). Pursuant to
the terms of the FT TSA, PC provides firm transportation service which commenced for a period
of 15 years ending March 31, 2033. See the Commitments and Contingencies table below in
note 6(i). For both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred
$5.3 million, and for both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company
incurred $10.6 million of firm transmission service, which are classified as Fuel and other on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

The Company owed PC $1.8 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.

(i) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is not aware of any direct or indirect involvement it has in pending claims or
litigation and believes the effects of any pending claims, litigation, or legal proceedings, if any,
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial
condition, or cash flows.

Purchase and other minimum commitments follow (in thousands):

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter
Gas Transportation Agreements $21,380 $21,380 $21,380 $21,380 $21,380 $ 80,175

Host community agreement 322 331 341 351 362 4,026
Long-term program contract 284 288 291 295 299 4,950
PILOT payments 1,670 1,945 1,952 1,959 1,966 30,654

Total contractual obligations $23,656 $23,944 $23,964 $23,985 $24,007 $ 119,805

(7) Related-Party Agreements
(a) Promissory Notes — Related Party
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

During 2021, with its WC Facility fully utilized, the Company requested funding of $2.9 million
from its Members. The Company issued promissory notes (Promissory Notes) of $1.5 million to
both CPV PHLP and the Third-Party member. CPV funded the Promissory Note using cash
previously deposited into the Company’s restricted cash account and the Third-Party member
deposited $1.5 million into the restricted cash account. The Promissory Notes bear interest at
5% annually through June 26, 2023, and 7% annually thereafter and is due on August 31, 2026.

During 2023, associated with the Ninth Amendment, the Company requested funding of $55.0
million from its Members. The Company issued two new promissory notes of $27.5 million to
both CPV PHLP and the Third-Party member for payment on its term loan debt facility. The
Promissory Notes bear interest at 7% annually and are due on August 31, 2026.

The outstanding Promissory Notes balance was $62.4 million, $60.3 million and $58.2 million at
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. During the three-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $1.1 million and $0.1 million,
and during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 the Company incurred $2.1
million and $0.1 million, of interest and fees, which are classified as Interest expense, net on the
accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

(b) Asset Management Agreement

The Company entered into an asset management agreement (AMA) with Competitive Power
Ventures, Inc. (CPVI), whereby CPVI provides construction and asset management services.
The AMA includes a fixed fee escalated annually by a defined inflation index, an incentive fee,
and the reimbursement of expenses. The AMA also provides reimbursement to CPVI for
construction management services, which includes CPVI construction staff time, expenses, and
payments to third-party vendors. The agreement has an initial term of five years beyond the
Facility’s substantial completion date and has a renewal term of an additional three years. The
Company also incurred asset management related services of $0.5 million during both three-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $1.0 million and $1.1 million during the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which are included in Operating
expenses on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed CPVI $0.2 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, which are included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.

(c) Operations and Maintenance Agreement

The Company executed an operating and maintenance agreement (O&M Agreement) with a
Related Party (RP) to the Third Party equity member, to operate and maintain the Facility. The
agreement has an initial term of five years beyond the Facility’s substantial completion date and
has a renewal term of an additional three years. The Company is required to pay RP a fixed
management fee escalated annually by defined inflation index, an operator bonus of up to $0.2
million per year, and to reimburse RP for reimbursable costs and operating costs as defined by
the O&M Agreement. The Company incurred $1.4 million and $1.3 million under the O&M
Agreement for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $3.0
million and $2.6 million under the O&M Agreement for the six-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively, which are classified as Operating expense on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed RP $0.8 million, $1.1 million, and $0.7 million as of June 30, 2024,

December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which are included in Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim consolidated balance sheets.
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(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(d) Energy Management Agreement

The Company entered into an Energy Management Agreement (EMA) with a related party
(EMRP). EMRP assists the Company in scheduling to NYISO. On September 23, 2022, the
Company amended the EMA to extend the terms for another one-year period until October 31,
2023. On September 21, 2023, the Company extended the term till October 31, 2024 and can
be extended at the request of the Company. The Company may terminate the EMA by providing
a thirty-day notification.

Under the EMA, EMRP receives a monthly management fee and is reimbursed for all gas and
power broker fees directly related to transacting on behalf of the Company. Management fees
incurred under the EMA totaled $90 thousand for each of the three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024, and 2023, and totaled $180 thousand for each of the six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024, and 2023, which are included in Operating expenses on the accompanying
condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

(8) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2024
and August 12, 2024, which is the date the condensed interim consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued, for possible disclosure and recognition in the
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

No subsequent events were identified that necessitated disclosure and/or adjustment to the
Company’s condensed interim consolidated financial statements as of and for the three-
month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 4000

1735 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-7501

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Members of
CPV Towantic, LLC:

Results of Review of Condensed Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the condensed financial statements of CPV Towantic, LLC (the Company), which comprise
the condensed balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the related condensed statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for the three-month and six-month periods ended

June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related condensed statements of changes in members’ equity for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the condensed
interim financial information).

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying condensed interim financial information for it to be in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Review Results

We conducted our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of condensed interim financial
information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters. A review of condensed interim financial information is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, the objective of which is an expression of an opinion
regarding the financial information as a whole, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our reviews. We believe that the results of the review procedures
provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Condensed Interim Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the condensed interim financial
information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
condensed interim financial information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Report on Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023

We have previously audited, in accordance with GAAS, the balance sheet as of December 31, 2023, and the
related statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), changes in members’ equity, and cash

flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements in our report dated March 8, 2024. In our opinion, the accompanying condensed

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.



KPMG

balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

KPMe P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
August 12, 2024



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023 2023

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash $ 9 $ 100 $ 100
Restricted cash 12,660 8,371 2,004
Accounts receivable 19,224 11,359 17,902
Deposits — 14 14
Prepaid expenses 2,575 3,769 1,249
Fuel inventory 2,540 1,459 2,541
Emissions inventory 7,601 5,532 6,474
Derivative assets, energy 28,752 33,418 37,454
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps 1,080 11,264 6,853

Total current assets 74,531 75,286 74,591

Non-current assets:
Property, plant, and equipment, net 728,721 752,496 740,844
Deposits 2 1 1
Restricted cash 234 50,298 44,763
Spare parts inventory 4,960 4,600 4,706
Intangible assets, net 49,578 53,087 51,333
Derivative assets, energy 4,319 7,789 8,402
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps — 6,293 1,046
Other non-current assets 3,274 — —

Total assets $ 865619 $ 949,850 $ 925,686

Liabilities and Members' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 12,084 $ 13,486 $ 14,167
Current portion of long-term debt 34,826 45,341 139,799
Derivative liabilities, energy 54,064 48,444 49,367

Total current liabilities 100,974 107,271 203,333

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt 220,813 383,783 211,775
Other long-term liabilities 282 2,922 2,038
Derivatives liabilities, energy 14,348 16,270 9,238
Derivatives liabilities, interest rate swaps 1,420 — —

Total liabilities 337,837 $ 510,246 426,384

Commitments and contingencies (notes 6 and 7)

Members' equity 527,782 439,604 499,302

Total liabilities and members' equity $ 865,619 §$ 949,850 $ 925,686

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) (Unaudited)
(in thousands)

For the three-month periods For the six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Operating revenue $ 80,144 $ 68,133 $ 209,515 $ 156,522
Unrealized gain (loss) on energy
derivatives 4,504 4,638 9,477 30,136

Total operating revenue 84,648 72,771 218,992 186,658
Fuel and other 28,508 20,152 95,091 62,172
Operating expenses 18,127 15,855 34,065 29,551
Depreciation and amortization 7,227 7,206 14,453 14,415
Taxes other than income taxes 876 844 1,748 1,679

Total operating expenses 54,738 44,057 145,357 107,817

Income (loss) from operations 29,910 28,714 73,635 78,841
Interest expense, net (4,149) (6,007) (8,588) (12,677)
Loss on debt extinguishment (1,561) — (1,561) —

Net income (loss) 24,200 22,707 63,486 66,164

Comprehensive income (loss) -

derivative instruments (15,862) 7,399 (35,006) 3,433

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 8,338 $ 30,106 $ 28,480 $ 69,597

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Condensed Interim Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Accumulated other
Members' retained earning comprehensive Total members'
equity (deficit) income (loss) equity

Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited) $ 224,151 $ 127,169 $ 18,687 § 370,007
Net income (loss) — 134,110 — 134,110
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — (4,815) (4,815)
Total comprehensive income
(loss) 129,295
Balance, December 31, 2023
(Audited) 224,151 261,279 13,872 499,302
Net income (loss) — 63,486 — 63,486
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — (35,006) (35,006)
Total comprehensive income
(loss) 28,480
Balance, June 30, 2024
(Unaudited) $ 224,151 § 324,765 $ (21,134) $ 527,782

Accumulated

Accumulated other
Members' retained earning comprehensive Total members'
equity (deficit) income (loss) equity

Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited) $ 224,151 $ 127,169 $ 18,687 § 370,007
Net income (loss) — 66,164 — 66,164
Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments — — 3,433 3,433
Total comprehensive income
(loss) 69,597
Balance, June 30, 2023
(Unaudited) $ 224,151 § 193,333 $ 22,120 $ 439,604

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Condensed Interim Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities:
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt related costs

Change in fair value - energy
derivatives

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Emission inventory
Fuel inventory
Spare parts inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities
Investing activities:
Property, plant, and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term revolver debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term revolver debt

Deferred financing costs

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash at beginning
of year

Cash and restricted cash at end of
year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
information:
Cash paid for interest and financing
fees
Noncash investing and financing
activities:

Liabilities incurred for property, plant,
and equipment

(in thousands)

For the three-month periods

For the six-month periods

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

ended June 30, ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
$ 24,200 $ 22,707 $ 63,486 $ 66,164
1,561 — 1,561 —
7,227 7,206 14,453 14,415
266 255 529 681
833 (4,636) (4,175) (30,134)
(5,404) (2,255) (1,322) 3,978
(3,661) 1,336 (1,127) (4,611)
(34) 950 1 950
173 (168) (254) (513)
645 (658) (1,326) (2,597)
14 — 13 14,001
1,798 (2,470) (2,438) (7,624)
27618 $ 22,267 69,401 54,710
(457) (75) (575) (75)
(457) $ (75) (575) (75)
265,000 — 265,000 —
20,000 5,000 31,300 9,440
(268,400) (24,815) (310,988) (88,734)
(65,800) (30,000) (75,800) (36,500)
(12,063) — (12,212) —
(61,263) $ (49,815) (102,700) (115,794)
(34,102) (27,623) (33,874) (61,159)
47,095 86,392 46,867 119,928
12,993 $ 58,769 $ 12,993 $ 58,769
3,208 7152 $ 8,325 $ 14,856
— 85 — 85



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CPV Towantic, LLC (Towantic or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company, was formed in
October 1998. The purpose of Towantic is to construct, finance, own, and operate a 785-megawatt
(MW) gas-fired, combined-cycle power project located in Oxford, Connecticut (the Facility or
Project). The Facility commenced operations and was placed in service on June 1, 2018 (COD).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company was owned by three
members: CPV Towantic Holding Company, LLC, a subsidiary of CPV Power Holdings, LP (CPV
PHLP) 26%. The two remaining equity members held 49%, and 25% of the equity interests.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The Company’s condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC), established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), is the
source of authoritative U.S. GAAP applied by nongovernmental entities.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s condensed interim financial statements requires the use
of estimates and assumptions based on management’s knowledge and experience. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses.
Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

(c) Risks and Uncertainties

As with any power generation facility, operation of the Facility involves risk, including the
performance of the Facility below expected levels of efficiency and output, shutdowns due to
the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes, violations of permit requirements,
operator error, labor disputes, or catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, floods,
explosions, pandemics, or other similar occurrences affecting a power generation facility or
its power purchasers. In addition, the Facility operates as a merchant plant and is impacted
by changes in regional natural gas and power market conditions, as well as changes in the
rules and regulations governing these markets. The occurrence of any of these events could
significantly reduce or eliminate revenue generated by the Company or significantly increase
the expenses of the Company, and adversely impact the Company’s ability to make
payments on its debt when due.

(d) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts
receivable, prepaid expenses, deposits, accounts payable and accrued liabilities equals or
approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments. Cash
accounts are generally maintained in federally insured banks but may at times have
balances in accounts in excess of federally insured limits. The fair value of the long-term
debt approximates its book value at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023
as the interest rates are variable (note 4).

(e) Cash
Cash is comprised of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

(f) Restricted Cash and Cash Collateral - Letters of Credit

Restricted cash and cash collateral — letters of credit consists of cash and cash equivalents that
comprise highly liquid investments. Such amounts are restricted under the terms of the
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CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Company’s current debt agreement. Restricted cash accounts include, but are not limited to, an
operating account, letter of credit revolver account, and a revenue account. All such accounts
are held, and maintained, by an agent. The Company’s classification of restricted cash is based
on the classification of its intended use. As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, the Company had $12.7 million, $2.0 million and $8.4 million, respectively, pertaining to
operating activities classified as current assets. The Company also had $0.2 million, $44.8
million and $50.3 million of restricted cash classified as noncurrent on the accompanying
condensed interim balance sheets as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, of which $0.0 million pertains to cash collateral — ISO-NE for each period, and $0.2
million, $44.8 million and $50.3 million, respectively, pertains to cash collateral — letters of credit.
Restricted cash and long-term restricted cash totaled $12.9 million, $46.8 million and $58.7
million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is earned from the Company’s generation facilities providing capacity and ancillary
services to its customers, the independent system operator, ISO New England, Inc (ISO-NE),
and from the production and sale of electricity from the Company’s generation facilities.
Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company’s contracts to provide capacity each have
one performance obligation and result from auctions held by ISO-NE to procure capacity in
advance of when the capacity is expected to be needed and thus to be provided. The
Company’s contracts to provide electricity and ancillary services have one performance
obligation. Capacity revenues and proceeds for electricity, delivered to customers, are classified
as Operating revenue on the accompanying condensed interim statements operations and
comprehensive income (loss). Revenue for ancillary services is classified as Other revenue on
the accompanying condensed interim statements operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The performance obligations are satisfied over time and use the same method to measure
progress, so they meet the criteria to be considered a series. In measuring progress
towards satisfaction of each performance obligation, the Company applies the “right-to-
invoice” practical expedient and recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company
has a right to consideration from a customer that corresponds directly with the value of the
performance completed to date. As such, revenue is recognized using an output method, as
energy and capacity delivered best depicts the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. Performance obligations including energy or ancillary services (such as
operations and maintenance and dispatch services) are generally measured by the MWh
delivered. Capacity, which is a stand-ready obligation to deliver energy when required by
the customer, is measured using MWs. In certain contracts, if plant availability exceeds a
contractual target, the Company may receive a performance bonus payment, or if the plant
availability falls below a guaranteed minimum target, it may incur a nonavailability penalty.
Such bonuses or penalties represent a form of variable consideration and are estimated
and recognized when it is probable that there will not be a significant reversal. The
Company used the most likely value method to estimate variable consideration as it was
considered to better predict the amount to which the Company will be entitled given the
large number of possible outcomes. The Company periodically reviews this method and its
assumptions.

The timing of revenue recognition, billings, and cash collections results in accounts
receivable. Accounts receivable represent unconditional rights to consideration and consist
of both billed amounts and unbilled amounts typically resulting from sales under long-term
contracts when revenue recognized exceeds the amount billed to the customer. The
Company bills both generation and utilities customers on a contractually agreed-upon
schedule, typically at periodic intervals (e.g., monthly). Accounts receivable from contracts



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

with customers were $19.2 million, $17.9 million and $11.4 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. The Company periodically assesses
the collectability of accounts receivable, considering factors such as specific evaluation of
collectability, historical collection experience, the age of accounts receivable and other
currently available evidence of the collectability, and records an allowance for doubtful
accounts for the estimated uncollectible amount as appropriate. There was no allowance for
doubtful accounts recognized as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023.

(h) Prepaid Expenses

Current prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, labor costs, bank fees, and other
miscellaneous fees totaling $2.6 million, $1.2 million, and $3.8 million as of June 30, 2024,

December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim
balance sheets.

(i) Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

The Company’s property, plant, and equipment are recorded based on historical cost and
primarily comprised of power generation facility assets and the cost of acquired land. In
cases where the Company is required to dismantle installations or to recondition the site on
which they are located, the estimated cost of removal or reconditioning is recorded as an
asset retirement obligation and an equal amount is added to the carrying amount of the
asset. Depreciation, after consideration of salvage value and asset retirement obligations, is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
commencing when assets, or major components thereof, are either placed in service or
acquired (note 2). Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

() Spare Parts Inventory
Spare parts inventory primarily consists of spare parts and supplies used to maintain the

power generation facility. Spare parts inventory is carried at lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is the sum of the purchase price and incidental expenditures and charges
incurred to bring the inventory to its existing condition or location. Costs of spare parts are
valued primarily using the average cost method. Generally, cost is reduced to net realizable
value if the net realizable value of inventory has declined and it is probable that the utility of
inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of business, will not be recovered through
revenue earned from the generation of power. The Company’s Spare parts inventory balance
was $5.0 million, $4.7 million and $4.6 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and
June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets.

(k) Emissions Inventory

The Company is subject to environmental regulations, which require it to purchase certain
emissions allowances. These allowances are either Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative
allowances purchased through quarterly auctions or through bilateral trades or Renewable
Energy Certificates required as part of providing energy to load serving entities. These
allowances are held for use by the Company and are stated at the lower of weighted-average
cost or market. As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company’s
emission inventory totaled $7.6 million, $6.5 million and $5.5 million, respectively, and is
classified as Emission inventory on accompanying condensed interim balance sheets.

() Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. Factors that could indicate
impairment include significant underperformance relative to historical and projected future
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operating results, significant changes in the manner or use of acquired assets, or the
strategy of the Company’s overall business, including significant negative industry and
economic trends. If an indicator of impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the
Company’s long-lived assets would be considered impaired when their anticipated
undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying value. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the assets’ estimated fair value and its carrying amount.

The Company did not recognize any impairment losses on its long-lived assets as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2024, and June 30, 2023.

(m) Intangible Assets

(n)

(o)

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles —
Goodwill and Others (ASC 350). ASC 350 requires that intangible assets determined to
have indefinite lives no longer be amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or circumstances occur that indicate impairment might have
occurred.

ASC 350 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable. Separable intangible assets that are deemed to have finite lives
will continue to be amortized using the straight-line method over their estimable
useful lives.

Deposits

The Company posted collateral as required under certain gas arrangements with third parties to
cover fuel price exposure. Long-term deposits totaled $2 thousand, $1 thousand and $1

thousand as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

The deposits which are expected to be returned or utilized within 12 months are classified as
current Deposits and totaled $0 thousand, $14 thousand, and $14 thousand as of June 30,

2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company capitalized direct costs associated with its financings. Direct costs incurred with
obtaining debt are amortized under the interest method over the term of the related debt. As part
of entering into the new CA concluded in June 2024, the Company incurred $12.6 million of
financing costs, of which $3.3 million was classified as current other assets and $8.8 million was
net to long-term on the accompany balance sheets. The refinancing was accounted as an
extinguishment of debt and a modification, depending on the lenders, resulting in $0.5 million
being expensed and classified as Loss on extinguishment of debt the accompanying condensed
interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization of these costs
totaled $0.6 million and $0.7 million for of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively, and $1.3 millions for each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, and is classified as Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the current portion of long-term
debt is shown net of $2.2 million, $2.6 million, and $2.6 million, respectively, of unamortized
deferred financing costs. Long-term debt is presented net of $7.2 million, $1.3 million and $2.6
million of unamortized deferred financing costs as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and
June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets.

10
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(p) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to market risks from
changing interest rates, forward purchases and sales of commodities, and other derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices.
The Company recognizes all contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as either
assets or liabilities in the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets and measures
those derivatives at fair value under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging.
On the date a derivative is entered into, the Company may designate hedging relationships
if certain criteria in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), are met; otherwise, the
derivative is marked to market in the Company’s condensed interim statement of operations
and comprehensive income (loss) and comprehensive income. The Company documents
all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy. This process includes linking all derivatives that are
designated as hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying condensed
interim balance sheets or to forecasted transactions. The Company also assesses, both at
the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged
items.

For derivatives designated as a hedge, such as the Company’s interest rate swaps, forward
purchases and sales of commodities, and other derivative instruments used to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices, the Company documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as
hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying balance sheets or to forecasted
transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing
basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.

When it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the
Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. This could occur when: (1) it is
determined that a derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of
a hedged item; (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) the
derivative is discontinued as a hedging instrument, because it is no longer probable that a
forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is
determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge of cash flows, the
derivative will continue to be carried at fair value on the accompanying condensed interim
balance sheets and the gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive
income or loss (OCI) are recognized immediately or over the remaining term of the
forecasted transaction in the accompanying condensed interim statement of operations and
comprehensive income (loss).

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized in the accompanying
condensed interim statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and
comprehensive income or the accompanying condensed interim statements of changes in
members’ equity as a component of accumulated OCI, depending upon their use and
designation. Gains and losses related to transactions that qualify for hedge accounting are
recorded in accumulated OCI and flow through the accompanying condensed interim statement
of operations and comprehensive income (loss) in the period the hedged item affects earnings.
Otherwise, any gains and losses resulting from changes in the market value of the contracts are
recorded in the accompanying condensed interim statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) in the current period. Alternatively, certain derivative instruments are accounted
for on an accrual basis, if the criteria for normal purchase normal sale (NPNS) are met. The
Company entered into the Forward Capacity Auction with ISO New England, Inc. (ISO-NE) and
was awarded certain contracts for the period beginning in June 2018. As permitted by ISO-NE,

11
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the Company locked in the price of some of its awarded capacity for seven years. The Company
has elected NPNS treatment for these contracts.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist of accounts receivable, which are concentrated within the energy industry and derivative
financial instruments with large creditworthy financial institutions. These industry concentrations
may impact the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that
the customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic, industry or other conditions.
Receivables and other contractual arrangements are subject to collateral requirements under
the terms of enabling agreements. However, the Company believes that the credit risk posed by
industry concentration is offset by the diversification and creditworthiness of the Company’s
customer base and its contractual collateral requirements.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to claims and proceedings arising in the normal course of business.
The Company records a loss contingency in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies,
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Management assesses each matter and determines the likelihood a
loss has been incurred and the amount of such loss if it can be reasonably estimated.
Management reviews such matters on an ongoing basis. Contingencies are evaluated
based on estimates and judgments made by management with respect to the likely outcome
of such matters. Management'’s estimates could change based on new information.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC 460, Guarantees (ASC 460), for disclosing and
accounting for guarantees and indemnifications entered into during the course of business.
When a guarantee or indemnification subject to ASC 460 is entered into, the estimated fair
value of the guarantee or indemnification is assessed. Some guarantees and indemnifications
could have a financial impact under certain circumstances. Management considers the
probability of such circumstances occurring when estimating fair value.

Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is classified and treated as a
partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. No provision for the payment of
federal and state income taxes has been provided since the Company is not subject to
income tax. Each member is responsible for reporting income or loss based on such
member’s respective share of the Company’s income and expenses as reported for income
tax purposes. As such, no income tax expense or benefit has been recorded within these
condensed interim financial statements for the three-month and six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Membership Interests

Profits, losses, and distributions of net cash flows shall be allocated in proportion to each
member’s respective ownership interest, as outlined in the Fifth Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement (ARLLCA), as amended. As a limited liability company, the liability
of each member is limited to (i) any unpaid capital contributions, (ii) the amount of any
distributions required to be returned in accordance with the agreement, and (iii) any amount the
member is required to pay pursuant to the agreement.

For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2023, there were no member contributions.

12
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For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2023, there were no member distributions.

Contemporaneous with the execution of the Credit Agreement (CA), all members of the
Company executed an agreement, which pledged their respective equity interests in the
Company.

(u) Fuel Inventory

Fuel inventory primarily consists of fuel oil used to generate power and a natural gas imbalance
accounted for as inventory. Fuel oil is carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The
cost of fuel oil is comprised of its purchase price and incidental expenditures to deliver it to the
Facility. The cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable value of inventory has
declined and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of
business, will not be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of power. A lower of
cost or net realizable value provision of $0.0 million was included in Fuel and other on the
accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for each of
the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The Company had Fuel

inventory of $2.5 million, $2.5 million, and $1.5 million as of the periods ended June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, on the accompanying interim balance
sheets.

(v) Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Condensed)

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (Topic 326) that provides for a new Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL)
impairment model for specified financial instruments including loans, trade receivables, debt
securities classified as held-to-maturity investments and net investments in leases recognized
by a lessor. Under the new guidance, on initial recognition and at each reporting period, an
entity is required to recognize an allowance that reflects the entity’s current estimate of credit
losses expected to be incurred over the life of the financial instrument. The standard does not
make changes to the existing impairment models for non-financial assets such as fixed assets,
intangibles and goodwill. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, which adjusts
effective date of this standard to January 1, 2023. The Company adopted the standard effective
January 1, 2023. There was no material impact to the financial position, results of operations or
cash flows of the Company.

(2) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

13
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Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,

Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(in years)

Land N/A $ 1260 $ 1,260 $ 1,260
Generation facility 35 872,186 872,186 872,186
Capitalized spares 20 6,860 6,860 6,860
Office furniture & fixtures 10 151 151 151
Tools and equipment 10 1,047 1,047 42
Computer hardware and software 3 658 658 583
Vehicles 5 290 290 281

Total 882,452 882,452 881,363
Construction in progress 637 61 152
Accumulated depreciation (154,368) (141,669) (129,019)

Property, plant, and equipment, net $728,721 $ 740,844 $ 752,496

Depreciation expense was $6.3 million for both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, and $12.7 million for both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, which is
classified as Depreciation and amortization to the accompanying condensed interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s construction-in-progress balance is
comprised of projects which were not contemplated by its original design.

Intangible Assets

The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to the electrical
interconnection, natural gas interconnection and a water supply and sewer agreement required to
operate the Facility. The Company paid for the cost of the electrical and gas interconnection as well
as water supply upgrades but did not retain title to the assets. Upon COD, the Company
commenced the amortization of its intangible assets using the straight-line method over their
respective estimated useful lives which range between 20 to 35 years.

Intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,
Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(In years)
Gas interconnection 35 1,294 $ 1,294 $ 1,294
Water interconnection 35 440 440 440
Electrical interconnection 20 69,195 69,195 69,195
Total 70,929 70,929 70,929
Accumulated amortization (21,351) (19,596) (17,842)
Intangible assets, net $ 49,578 § 51,333 $ 53,087

For both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the amortization of the intangibles
totaled $0.9 million, and for both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the amortization

14
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of the intangibles totaled $1.8 million, and is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the
accompanying condensed interim statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
Amortization related to the years 2024 through 2028 is expected to be approximately $3.5 million,
annually.

Credit and Financing Facilities

The Company is a borrower under a $753.3 million credit agreement (the Credit Agreement or CA)
with a syndicate of lenders led by CIT Bank, N.A., Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. The CA provides the Company a Term Loan facility (Term Loan
Facility) of $655.0 million, a Working Capital facility (WC Facility) of $21.0 million, a Revolving Letter
of Credit Loan facility (RLC Loan Facility) of $77.3 million, and a Letter of Credit Facility (LC Facility)
to be used for specified purposes over the term of CA. On April 21 2023, the Company amended the
CA for the election of the Term Loan to be Term Security Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus
0.1% annually, due to London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) expiration on June 30, 2023.

On June 27, 2024, the Company entered into a new Credit Agreement (the new Credit Agreement
or new CA) with a syndicate of lenders. MUFG Bank, Ltd serves as administrative agent and U.S
Bank National Association serves as collateral agent and depository bank. The new CA has a total
credit capacity of $363.3 million, which provides the Company a Term Loan Facility of $265.0
million, Letter of Credit Loan facility of $77.3 million and a Working Capital facility of $21.0 million.
The new CA expires on June 30, 2029, with different applicable margins and schedule of payments.

As a result of entering into a new CA, the Company recognized a $1.6 million Loss on
extinguishment of debt, which is included on the accompanying condensed interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The table below summarizes the Company’s outstanding debt, net of unamortized deferred
financing costs as of:

June 30, December 31, June 30,
(in thousands) 2024 2023 2023
Description
Term Facility $ 265,000 $ 310,988 $ 384,243
RLC Loan Facility — 44,500 50,100
Unamortized deferred financing costs (9,361) (3,914) (5,219)
$ 255,639 § 351,574 § 429,124

Borrowings for all facilities under the new CA bear interest at the SOFR plus an applicable margin.
The applicable margin during the term of the new CA is as follows:

On the closing date and until (and including) the fourth
anniversary of the Closing Date 3.75 %

After the fourth anniversary of the Closing Date 4.00

Unused available credit under the new CA incurs a commitment fee of 0.50% per annum. During the
three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $4.9 million and $6.9
million, and during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred
$10.0 million and $14.5 million, respectively, of interest expense and commitment fees, which are
classified as Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).
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The outstanding Term Loan Facility balance was $265.0 million, $311.0 million and $384.2 million at
an annual rate of 9.06%, 8.68% and 8.16% at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively. The CA requires repayments of borrowings under the Term Loan Facility be
made quarterly. The quarterly payments will be made for a period of seven years with a balloon
payment due at the end of the term on June 30, 2025.

The WC Facility of $21.0 million became available once the Facility commenced operations. There
was no outstanding borrowings under the WC Facility as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and June 30, 2023.

Borrowings under the RLC Loan Facility totaled $0.0 million, $44.5 million and $50.1 million as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which serve as collateral for
letters of credit issued under the LC Facility. Issued letters of credit totaled $0.0 million, $44.5 million
and $50.1 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. The
issued letters of credit are required under the Company’s gas transportation, electric
interconnection, and certain construction work agreements.

The scheduled increase in the applicable margin for the Term Loan Facility is recognized as a
long-term liability. The liability totaled $0.3 million, $2.0 million and $2.9 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, and is classified as Other long-term liabilities
on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets. During both three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, accretion income totaled $0.4 million, and during the six-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, accretion income totaled $0.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively,
and are included in Interest expense, net on the accompanying condensed interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The new CA required the Company to pledge all its assets as security in favor of the lenders.

(5) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
a. Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to reduce its
exposure to market risks from changing interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements are
used to convert the floating interest rate component of the Company’s long-term debt
obligations to fixed rates. Such interest rate swap agreements are designated as cash flow
hedges under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are deferred in OCI and all
ineffective changes are recognized as Interest expense, net in the statement of operations
and comprehensive income (loss) and comprehensive income.

As part of entering into the CA, the Company executed 20 amortizing interest rate swaps with
ten financial institutions, collectively referred to herein as Swap A. The swaps were designated
to hedge 85% of the Company’s Term Loan Facility for the operating periods. The Company
entered into three additional swaps (collectively, Swap B), which matured on March 31, 2022.
Swap A and Swap B were designated to hedge 100% of Company’s Term Loan Facility. Due to
a significant paid down portion of term loan during 2023, the swaps were over hedged. As a
result, the Company amended its swaps in late September and early October 2023. The swaps
are currently designated to hedge 95% of the Term Loan Facility. During April 2023, the
Company amended Swap A to replace LIBOR to SOFR due to LIBOR expiration on June 30,
2023.
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As part of entering into the new CA on June 27, 2024, the Company executed amortizing
interest rate swaps with 4 financial institutions which were designated to hedge 70% of the
Company’s Term Loan Facility with maturity date of June 30, 2029.

The fair value of the interest rate swap assets totaled $1.1 million, $7.9 million and $17.6 million
as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, of which $1.1
million, $6.9 million and $11.3 million, respectively, is classified as current and $0.0 million, $1.0
million and $6.3 million, respectively, as noncurrent Derivative assets, interest rate swaps on the
accompany balance sheets.

The fair value of the interest rate swap liabilities totaled $1.4 million, $0.0 million and $0.0
million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, all of which
classified as noncurrent Derivative assets, interest rate swaps on the accompany balance
sheets.

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of June 30, 2024 are set forth in
the following table (in thousands):

Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational
swaps
Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3
Notional
Trade date June 28, 2024 amount $ 51,617 $ 51,617 $ 27,422
Effective date June 28, 2024 Fixed rate 4.1795 % 4.1795 % 4.1795 %

Termination date June 30, 2029 Floating rate USD-SOFR USD-SOFR USD-SOFR

Swap 4
Notional
Trade date June 28, 2024 amount $ 19,357
Effective date June 28, 2024 Fixed rate 41795 %

Termination date June 30, 2029 Floating rate USD-SOFR

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of December 31, 2023 are set forth
in the following table (in thousands):
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Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational
swaps
Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3
March 11,
Trade date 2016 Notional amount $ 42776 $ 42776 $ 42 776
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8400 % 1.8480 % 1.8470 %
Termination date June 30, 2025  Floating rate USD-SOFR USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6
March 11,
Trade date 2016 Notional amount $ 23,330 $ 23,330 $ 23,330
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8435 % 1.8390 % 1.8435 %
Termination date June 30, 2025  Floating rate USD-SOFR USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 7 Swap 8 Swap 9
March 11,
Trade date 2016 Notional amount $ 23,330 $ 23,330 $ 23,330
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8530 % 1.8450 % 1.8390 %
USD-SOFR
Termination date June 30, 2025  Floating rate COMPOUND USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 10
March 11,
Trade date 2016 Notional amount $ 15,166
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8445 %
Termination date June 30, 2025  Floating rate USD-SOFR

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of June 30, 2023 are set forth in the
following table (notional amounts in thousands):

18



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational
swaps
Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3
Notional
Trade date March 11, 2016 amount $ 55,654 $ 55,654 $ 55,654
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8400 % 1.8480 % 1.8470 %
Termination
date June 30, 2025 Floating rate USD-SOFR USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6
Notional
Trade date March 11, 2016 amount $ 30,353 $ 30,353 $ 30,353
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8435 % 1.8390 % 1.8435 %
Termination
date June 30, 2025 Floating rate USD-SOFR USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 7 Swap 8 Swap 9
Notional
Trade date March 11, 2016 amount $ 30,353 $ 30,353 $ 30,353
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8530 % 1.8450 % 1.8390 %
Termination USD-SOFR-
date June 30, 2025 Floating rate COMPOUND USD-SOFR USD-SOFR
Swap 10
Notional
Trade date March 11, 2016 amount $ 19,731
Effective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 1.8445 %
Termination
date June 30, 2025 Floating rate USD-SOFR

As of June 30, 2024, the Company estimates $1.4 million of loss will be reclassified out of OCI
over the next 12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions
during the same time period. OCI attributable to the interest rate swaps is reclassified as
Interest expense, net (in thousands):

OCI Roll Forward

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 18,687
Amount of gain recognized in OCI on derivative 4,784
Amount of gain reclassified from OCI into income (15,434)
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023 8,037
Amount of gain recognized in OCI on derivative 1,803
Amount of loss reclassified from OCI into income (4,740)
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2024 $ 5,100
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 18,687
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative 4,243
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income (5,373)
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 17,557
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b. Energy Derivatives

The Company may enter into forward purchase and sales of commodities to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices. Such agreements are
presented at fair value under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are
recognized in the statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Some of the
Company’s agreements with counterparties, include Master agreements, which allow
payments and obligations related to the same counterparty to be netted.

The fair value of the power and gas commaodity swaps assets totaled $33.1 million, $45.9 million
and $41.2 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.
The asset balance consists of a current portion of $28.8 million, $37.5 million and $33.4 million
and a noncurrent portion of $4.3 million, $8.4 million and $7.8 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

The fair value of the power and gas commodity swaps liabilities totaled $68.4 million, $58.6
million and $64.7 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively. The liability balance consists of a current portion of $54.1 million, $49.4 million and
$48.4 million and a noncurrent portion of $14.3 million, $9.2 million and $16.3 million as of

June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. The commodity
derivatives had an unrealized gain of $4.5 million and $4.6 million during the three-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and an unrealized gain of $9.5 million and $30.1 million
during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively, which are included in
the accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss) as Unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives. The commaodity derivatives had a realized
loss of $1.7 million and $2.0 million during the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, and a realized gain of $2.7 million and realized loss of $2.6 million during the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which is included in the accompanying
condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) as Operating
revenue.

The following table summarizes by type and volume the commaodity derivatives, which are
swap contracts entered into to partially fix the price of natural gas purchased and power sold,
and are reflected on the Company’s accompanying condensed interim balance sheets at

June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023 (in thousands):

Natural Gas Power
(in MMbtu) (in MWh)

June 30, 2024 43,181 6,643
December 31, 2023 23,322 3,588
June 30, 2023 21,413 3,226

The Company did not enter into any other types of derivative contracts during 2024 and 2023.

As of June 30, 2024, the Company estimates $25.3 million of loss will be reclassified out of OCI
over the next 12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions
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during the same time period. OCI attributable to the commodities swaps is reclassified as
Unrealized income (loss) on energy derivatives (in thousands):

OCI Roll Forward

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ —
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (19,454)
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income 25,289
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 5,835
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (41,547)
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income 9,478
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2024 $ (26,234)
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ —
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative 4,564

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income —
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ 4,564

c. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company records the fair value of all derivatives as assets and liabilities. In
determining fair value, the Company generally uses the income approach and incorporates
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques.
These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated or generally unobservable
internally developed inputs. Derivative assets and liabilities are classified depending on how
readily observable the inputs used in the valuation techniques are, as follows:

Level 1 Represents unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. This category
includes energy derivative instruments that are exchange traded or that are
cleared and settled through the exchange.

Level 2 Represents quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted market prices in markets that are not active, or other valuations
based on inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data. This category includes the Company’s interest rate swaps and
energy derivatives.

Level 3 This category includes energy derivative instruments whose fair value is estimated
based on internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant
inputs that are generally less readily observable from objective sources (such as
market heat rates, implied volatilities, and correlations). Over the counter,
complex, or structured derivative instruments that are transacted in less liquid
markets with limited pricing information would be included in Level 3.

d. Valuation Techniques

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to
measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market approach, (2) income approach,
and (3) cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
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generated from market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single
present value amount. The measurement is based on current market expectations of the
return on those future amounts.

The Company measures its interest rate swap, energy, and other derivatives at fair value
on a recurring basis. The fair value of the interest rate swap derivatives is determined using
the income approach by a third-party treasury and risk management service. The service
utilizes a standard model and observable inputs to estimate the fair value of the interest
rate swaps. The Company performs analytical procedures and makes comparisons to other
third-party information in order to assess the reasonableness of the fair value. The
Company maintains controls over the model and its methodology and performs analytical
procedures and makes comparisons to third-party information when available in order to
assess the reasonableness of the fair value. Fair value measurements of the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
based on the above hierarchy, are as follows:

22



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

Description June 30, 2024

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ 1,080 $ — $ 1,080 $ —

Derivative assets, energy - commodities 33,071 — 33,071 —
$ 34,151 — 34,151 —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps $ (1,420) $ — 3 (1,420) $ —

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities $ (68,412) — (68,412) —
$ (69,832) — (69,832) —

Description December 31, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ 7,899 $ — $ 7899 $ —

Derivative assets, energy - commodities 45,856 — 45,856 —
$ 53755 $ — $§ 53755 §$ —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities (58,605) — (58,605) —
$ (58,605) $ — $ (58,605) $ —

Description June 30, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ 17557 $ — $ 17,557 % —

Derivative assets, energy - commodities 41,207 — 41,207 —
$ 58764 $ — $§ 58764 $ —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities (64,714) — (64,714) —
$ (64,714) $ — $ (64,714) $ —

The Company issued letters of credit totaling $0.0 million for each of the periods ended June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, to counterparties in conjunction with the
commodity derivatives. The Company has not posted any collateral to counterparties in
conjunction with the interest rate swaps with respect to the fair value of the swap instruments.

For the periods ended June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company
did not have any transfers between levels 1, 2 or 3.
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(1) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Condensed Interim Balance Sheets

The following tables present the balance sheet classification and fair value of derivative
instruments on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets as of June 30,

2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

Balance sheet June 30, December 31, June 30,

(in thousands) Location 2024 2023 2023
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815
Interest rate swaps Current — derivative

assets, interest rate swaps  $ 1,080 $ 6,853 $ 11,264
Interest rate swaps Noncurrent — derivative

assets, interest rate swaps — 1,046 6,293
Interest rate swaps Noncurrent — derivative

liabilities, interest rate swaps (1,420) — —
Commaodity Current — derivative

assets, energy 28,752 37,454 —
Commodity Noncurrent — derivative

assets, energy 4,319 8,402 —
Commodity Current — derivative

liabilities, energy (54,064) (49,367) —
Commodity Noncurrent — derivative

liabilities, energy (14,348) (9,238) —
Total derivatives designated as
hedging instruments under ASC 815, net (35,681) (4,850) 17,557
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815
Commodity Current — derivative

assets, energy — — 33,418
Commaodity Noncurrent — derivative

assets, energy — — 7,789
Commodity Current — derivative

liabilities, energy — — (48,444)
Commaodity Noncurrent — derivative

liabilities, energy — — (16,270)
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments under ASC 815, net — — (23,507)
Total derivatives, net $ (35681) % (4,850) $ (5,950)
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Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following tables present the classification of derivative instruments on the
accompanying condensed interim statement of operations and comprehensive income
(loss) for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, segregated between those designated as hedging instruments and those that

are not.

The impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments:

Amount of
loss
reclassified Amount of
Amount of gain from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on OoCl income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
gain
reclassifie
d from Location of
accumulat loss
ed OCI recognized
into in income on
Three-months income Three-months derivative Three-months
Ended June 30, (effective Ended June (ineffective Ended June
Instrument 2024 portion) 30, 2024 portion) 30, 2024
(in thousands)
Commaodity Commodity
Commodity swaps $ 655 swaps $ 13,193 swaps $ —
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps 211 net (2,225) (expense), net —
$ 866 $ 10,968 $ —
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Amount of
loss
reclassified Amount of
Amount of gain from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCl on ocCli income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (effective (ineffective
portion) portion) portion)
Location of
gain
reclassifie
d from Location of
accumulat loss
ed OCI recognized
into in income on
Six-months income Six-months derivative Six-months
Ended June 30, (effective Ended June (ineffective Ended June
Instrument 2024 portion) 30, 2024 portion) 30, 2024
(in thousands)
Commodity Commodity
Commodity swaps $ (9,140) swaps $ 41,209 swaps —
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps $ 1,803 net $ (4,740) (expense), net $ —
$ (7,337) $ 36,469 $ —
Amount of
loss
reclassified Amount of
Amount of gain from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCL on OCL income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (Effective (ineffective
portion) Portion) portion)
Location of
gain
reclassifie
d from Location of
accumulat loss
ed OCL recognized
into in income on
Three-months income Three-months derivative Three-months
Ended June 30, (effective Ended June (ineffective Ended June
Instrument 2023 portion) 30, 2023 portion) 30, 2023
(in thousands)
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps $ (2,600) net $ (2,875) (expense), net § —
$ (2,600) $ (2,875) $ —
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Amount of
loss
reclassified Amount of
Amount of gain from gain
recognized accumulated recognized in
in OCL on OCL income on
derivatives into income derivative
(effective (Effective (ineffective
portion) Portion) portion)
Location of
gain
reclassifie
d from Location of
accumulat loss
ed OCL recognized
into in income on
Six-months income Six-months derivative Six-months
Ended June 30, (effective Ended June (ineffective Ended June
Instrument 2023 portion) 30, 2023 portion) 30, 2023
(in thousands)
Interest
income
(expense), Interest income
Interest rate swaps $ (1,131) net $ (5,373) (expense), net $ —
$ (1,131) $ (5,373) $ —

The Company did not enter into any other derivative contracts during 2024 and 2023.

(6) Facility Contract Commitments
a. Electric Transmission and Interconnection

The Company is party to two Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreements (LGIAs),
with ISO-NE and a third party (Interconnecting Transmission Owner), which established the
Facility’s required electrical interconnection, necessary system upgrades, and associated
transmission service. The LGIAs have a twenty-year term commencing upon the effective dates
of the LGIAs and shall be automatically renewed for each successive one-year period thereafter.
Under the LGIAs, the Company incurred $69.2 million of costs associated with the construction of
interconnection facilities, and upon their completion, the interconnection facilities were transferred
to the Interconnecting Transmission Owner. These costs are classified as Intangible assets, net
on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets. Amortization totaled $0.9 million for
each of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and $1.7 million for each of the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is included in Depreciation and
amortization on the accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). Amortization expense related to the years 2024 through 2028 is
expected to be approximately $3.5 million, annually.

b. Natural Gas Transmission Agreements

i. The Company and Algonquin Gas Transmission Company (AGT) entered into the
Reimbursement, Construction, Ownership, and Operation Agreement (RCOO), for the
construction of a new natural gas delivery point on AGT’s existing 26-inch diameter mainline and
30-inch loop line upstream from AGT’s Oxford compressor station (Gas Transmission Facilities)
for use by the Facility. Pursuant to the terms of the RCOO, the Company was responsible for the
cost of the Gas Transmission Facilities. Upon their completion, title conveyed to AGT. The cost
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of the Gas Transmission Facilities is classified as Intangible assets, net on the accompanying
condensed interim balance sheets. Amortization totaled $9 thousand for both three-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and $18 thousand for both six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023 and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying
condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Towantic entered a Service Agreement (SA) with AGT. The SA provides the Company 2,500
MMBtu/day of gas transportation capacity at the AFT-1 tariff. On August 23, 2022, the Company
extended the SA till March 31, 2025, and on June 1, 2024, the Company extended the SA until
March 31, 2027.

The Company incurred $0.0 million under the SA during both three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $0.0 million during both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023, which was included in Fuel and other on the accompanying condensed interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company entered into an interruptible gas transportation contract (IGT). The contract does
not obligate but allows Towantic to transport gas from IGT to AGT at interruptible transmission
rates.

During the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $0
thousand and $64 thousand, respectively, and during the six-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $0 thousand and $129 thousand, respectively, of
interruptible transportation costs, which was included in Fuel and other on the accompanying
condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

. Towantic entered into a Gas Supply Agreement (GSA) with a gas supplier. The GSA provides the

Company a maximum of 115,000 MMBtus/day of firm natural gas. The Company then amended
the GSA (AGSA). The AGSA is priced using a defined index and includes a minimum quantity of
50,000 MMBtus/day and 30,000 MMBtus/day of firm natural gas between December 1, 2021
and February 28, 2022 and November 1, 2022 and March 31, 2023, respectively. The AGSA
expired on March 31, 2023. The Company incurred $43.7 million during the six-month period
ended June 30, 2023.

On November 30, 2022 Towantic entered into a natural gas supply arrangement with a gas
supplier (GSA2). Relevant terms of the arrangements with the Suppliers are documented in
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements. The GSA2
provides the Company a maximum of 125,000 MMBtus/day of firm natural gas. The GSA2 has
an initial term, which commenced on April 1, 2023 and will remain in effect through March 31,
2025. On March 26, 2024, the Company extended the delivery period through March 31, 2027.
The Company incurred $13.7 million and $19.3 million during the three-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $57.5 million and $19.3 million during the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

c. Agreements with the Town of Oxford and Other Local Agencies

I.

Water Supply Agreement

The Company applied for and obtained a water service connection permit with a local water
authority. As part of obtaining the permit, the Company agreed to make system upgrades at its
own cost. These costs are classified as Intangible assets, net on the accompanying condensed
interim balance sheets. Amortization totaled $3 thousand during each of the three-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and $6 thousand during each of the six-month periods ended
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June 30, 2024 and 2023 and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying
condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

ii. Tax Stabilization Agreement

The Company is party to an amended Tax Stabilization Agreement (ATSA) with a local township.
The ATSA requires the Company to make semiannual payments through 2038. During each of
the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $0.8 million and
during each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 the Company incurred $1.7
million under the ATSA, which is included in Taxes other than income taxes on the
accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
See the Commitments and Contingencies table below in note 6(e).

iii. Community Support Agreement

The Company is party to an amended Community Support Agreement (ACS Agreement) with a
local township in order to support community programs. Pursuant to the terms of the ACS
Agreement, the Company is required to pay $1.1 million to the Town of Oxford in 20 equal
annual instalments commencing on the fifth tax payment under the ATSA. During each of the
three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $13 thousand and
during each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 the Company incurred $25
thousand under the ACS, which is included in Taxes other than income taxes on the
accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
See the Commitments and Contingencies table above in note 6(e).

d. Capacity ISO-NE Auctions

The Company sold 725 MW in Forward Capacity Auction (FCA) 9 at the clearing price of $9.55/
kW-mo., escalated by a defined index. As a new facility, the Company was awarded $9.55/kW per
month price for seven years through FCA 15 in 2024/25. The Company sold 25.5 MW in FCA 11
for 2020/21 for $5.297/kW per month; in FCA 12 for 2021/22 for $4.631/kW per month; in FCA 13
for 2022/23 for $3.89/kW per month, 725 MW in FCA 14 for 2023/24 for $9.56/kW per month, 65
MW in FCA15 for 2024/2025 for $2.61/kW per month, 745 MW in FCA 16 for 2025/2026 or $2.64/
kW per month and 788 MW in FCA17 for 2026/2027 for $2.59/kW per month. During the three-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized revenue from capacity
and power generation of $63.2 million and $66.3 million, respectively, and during the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized revenue from capacity and
power generation of $156.1 million and $154.4 million respectively, which is included in Operating
revenues on the accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

e. Commitments and Contingencies

The contracts discussed above and in note 7 resulted in the Company having various long-
term firm commitments with the approximate contractual obligations at June 30, 2024 as
follows:
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(in $ thousands) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter
Tax stabilization agreement $ 3635 $ 4205 $ 4,490 $ 4490 $ 4490 $ 60,573
Asset management agreement -

related party 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,392 — —
Contract service agreement 302 308 314 321 327 2,448
Community support agreement 50 50 50 50 50 525
Operations and maintenance 125 — — — — —

Total contractual obligations $ 5630 $ 6,081 $ 6372 $ 6,253 $ 4867 $ 63,546

The Company from time to time is party to certain claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company is of the opinion that the final disposition of these claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations,
or cash flows.

f. Contractual Service Agreement

The Company is party to a Contractual Service Agreement (CSA) with the Original Equipment
Manufacturer (OEM) where the OEM provides scheduled and unscheduled outage maintenance
parts and services for the combustion turbine generators. The CSA has a term of 20 years. Under
the CSA, the Company is required to pay fixed and variable fees commencing upon a specified
date.

During the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $2.1
million and $2.4 million, respectively, and during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Company incurred $4.5 million and $4.6 million, respectively, under the CSA which are
classified as Operating expenses on the accompanying condensed interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). See the Commitments and Contingencies table
above in note 6(e).

g. Operations and Maintenance Agreement

The Company is party to an operating and maintenance agreement (O&M Agreement) with a third
party (TP), in order to operate and maintain the Facility. The O&M Agreement has an initial term
of approximately three years commencing upon the operations of the Facility. The Company
amended & restated the O&M Services Agreement (AO&M Agreement) to extend the terms for
another three years with a one-year renewal provisions option effective on January 1, 2022. The
Company is required to pay TP a fixed annual management fee, an incentive bonus, and to
reimburse TP for all labor costs, including payroll and taxes, subcontractor costs, and other costs
deemed reimbursable under the O&M Agreement and the O&M Agreement. Both the O&M
Agreement and the AO&M Agreement include one-year renewal provisions, which can be
terminated by either party. The Company incurred $1.5 million and $1.3 million under the O&M
Agreement and the AO&M Agreement for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively, and $2.7 million for both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
which are classified as Operating expenses on the accompanying condensed interim statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed TP $0.7 million, $0.8 million and $0.6 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which are included in Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim balance sheets. See the
Commitments and Contingencies table above in note 6(e).
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(7) Related-Party Agreements

a. Asset Management Agreement

The Company is party to an amended asset management agreement (AMA) whereby
Competitive Power Ventures, Inc. (CPVI) provides construction and asset management related
services. The AMA has an initial term of ten years beyond the Facility’s substantial completion
date and a renewal term of an additional three years. The contract includes a fixed annual fee
escalated annually by a defined inflation index, an incentive fee, and the reimbursement of
expenses. The Company incurred $0.7 million and $0.6 million under the AMA for the three-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $1.2 million and $1.1 million for
the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is classified as
Operating expenses on the accompanying condensed interim statement of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). The Company owed CPVI $0.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.2
million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which is
included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying condensed interim
balance sheets. See Commitments table in note 6(e).

b. Energy Management Services Agreement

The Company entered into an Energy Management Agreement (EMA) with CPV Energy and
Marketing Services, LLC (CEMS) to provide certain services related to the sale of merchant
energy, capacity and ancillary services, to replace Consolidated Edison Energy, Inc. (ConEd) as
the energy management service provider. The EMA will remain in effect through March 31, 2026.
The EMA includes a five-year renewal provision, which can be executed by the Company in its
sole discretion up to two times. The EMA includes a fixed monthly fee, plus reimbursement of
expenses during the term of the agreement. The EMA also provides reimbursement to CEMS for
services provided by third parties on behalf of the Company. The Company incurred $0.2 million
under the EMA during both three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $0.4
million during both six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, which is classified as
Operating expenses on the accompanying condensed interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023 the Company owed CEMS $0.1
million, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying
condensed interim balance sheets.

(8) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2024
and August 12, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued,
for possible disclosure and recognition in the financial statements.

No subsequent events were identified that necessitated disclosure and/or adjustment to the
Company’s condensed interim financial statements for the three-month and six-month
periods ended June 30, 2024.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 4000

1735 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-7501

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Members of
CPV Shore Holdings, LLC:

Results of Review of Consolidated Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of CPV Shore Holdings, LLC and its subsidiaries (the
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for the three-month
and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of changes in
members’ equity for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes (collectively
referred to as the consolidated interim financial information).

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying consolidated interim financial information for it to be in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Review Results

We conducted our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of consolidated interim financial
information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters. A review of consolidated interim financial information is substantially less
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, the objective of which is an expression of an
opinion regarding the financial information as a whole, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We
are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our reviews. We believe that the results of the review
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Substantial Doubt About the Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated interim financial information has been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated interim financial information, the
Company is not expected to have sufficient liquidity to repay the associated revolver facility, which comes due
March 31, 2025, and has stated that substantial doubt exists about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Management's evaluation of the conditions and events and management's plans regarding these
matters are also described in Note 2. The accompanying consolidated interim financial information does not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Interim Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated interim financial
information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated interim financial information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.



KPMG

Report on Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023

We have previously audited, in accordance with GAAS, the consolidated balance sheet as of

December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss),
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated

March 28, 2024. In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of
December 31, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

KPMe P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
August 12, 2024



(in thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash
Restricted cash

Cash collateral - letters of credit
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Emissions inventory

Derivative assets, energy

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Property, plant, and equipment, net

Deposits

Right of use assets

Cash collateral - letters of credit
Spare parts inventory
Intangible assets, net
Derivative assets, energy
Other non-current assets

Liabilities and Members' Equity

Total assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current lease liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy

Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt

Asset retirement obligation
Non-current lease liabilities
Derivatives liabilities, energy

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7h)

Total liabilities

Members' equity

Total liabilities and members' equity

CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
49 3 41 $ 48
3,780 4,947 7,529
76,082 — —
8,849 9,876 11,360
2,419 4,238 2,113
— 4,283 —
1,924 8,759 18,226
223 19,070 —
8,416 — 16,071
101,742 51,214 55,347
571,913 593,026 582,326
180 180 180
88,151 89,790 88,979
— 79,020 70,080
5,619 4,722 5,087
14,425 14,973 14,699
2,118 — 3,322
— 10 180
784,148 $§ 832,935 $ 820,200
29,660 $ 11,462 §$ 21,652
82,459 16,609 6,733
5,786 5,802 5,802
12,321 2,612 23,314
— — 1,156
130,226 36,485 58,657
351,107 425,403 419,856
2,430 2,276 2,351
75,114 76,466 75,775
1,872 — 3,861
560,749 540,630 560,500
223,399 292,305 259,700
784,148 $ 832,935 $ 820,200

See accompanying notes to the interim consolidated financial statements



CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) (Unaudited)

For the three-month periods For the six-month periods ended

ended June 30, June 30,

(in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Operating revenue $ 26,172 $ 18,758 § 58,312 $ 48,856
Realized and unrealized gain (loss)
on energy derivatives 12,142 (3,206) 23,544 (21,530)
Other revenue 1,016 1,062 2,026 1,462

Total operating revenue 39,330 16,614 83,882 28,788
Fuel and other 25,878 10,309 57,681 31,604
Operating expenses 17,971 18,032 32,087 36,018
Accretion of asset retirement
obligation 40 37 80 75
Depreciation and amortization 5,495 5,489 10,985 10,983
Taxes other than income taxes 707 688 1,420 1,384

Total operating expenses 50,091 34,555 102,253 80,064

Income (loss) from operations (10,761) (17,941) (18,371) (51,276)
Interest income (expense), net (7,161) (6,944) (14,096) (13,561)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 180 — 180

Net income (loss) (17,922) (24,705) (32,467) (64,657)

Other comprehensive income — —

Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments 4,790 150 (3,834) (2,691)

Comprehensive income (loss) $ (13,132) $ (24,555) $ (36,301) $ (67,348)

See accompanying notes to the interim consolidated financial statements



CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)

Interim Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity

(in thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited)
Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income
(loss)

Balance, December 31, 2023
(Audited)

Contributions

Distributions

Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income
(loss)

Balance, June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2022
(Audited)

Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) -
derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income
(loss)

Balance, June 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

Accumulated

Accumulated other

Retained earnings comprehensive Total Members'

Members' Capital (deficit) income (loss) equity
$ 250,191 § 89,391 $ 20,071 $ 359,653
— (85,008) — (85,008)
— — (14,945) (14,945)
(99,953)
250,191 4,383 5,126 259,700
29 — — 29
(29) — — (29)
— (32,467) — (32,467)
— — (3,834) (3,834)
(36,301)
$ 250,191 § (28,084) $ 1,292 $ 223,399

Accumulated Accumulated
Retained other

Members' earnings comprehensive Total Members'

Capital (deficit) income (loss) equity
$ 250,191 $ 89,391 $ 20,071 $ 359,653
— (64,657) — (64,657)
— — (2,691) (2,691)
(67,348)
$ 250,191 § 24,734 $ 17,380 $ 292,305

See accompanying notes to the interim consolidated financial statements



CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

For the three-month periods For the six-month periods
ended June 30, ended June 30,
(in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ (17,922) $ (24,705) $ (32,467) $ (64,657)
Adjustments to reconcile net income

(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:

(Gain) loss on sale of assets — (180) — (180)
Depreciation and amortization 5,495 5,489 10,985 10,983
Other amortization and accretion
expenses 2,348 701 4,521 1,546
Change in fair value - energy
derivatives 1,487 1,162 3,705 24,894
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Accounts receivable (331) (3,696) 2,511 24,957
Emissions inventory — 12,636 — 4,935
Spare parts inventory (272) 1,158 (532) 1,981
Other assets (25) (10) (25) (10)
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 8,543 2,868 8,040 (9,750)
Prepaid expenses 1,043 3,044 (306) (1,407)
Right of use assets 417 405 828 791
Lease liabilities (341) 668 (677) (624)
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities $ 442 $ (460) (3,417) (6,541)
Investing activities:
Property, plant, and equipment (298) (368) (298) (395)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities $ (298) $ (368) (298) (395)
Financing activities:
Contributions 29 — 29 —
Distributions (29) — (29) —
Proceeds from long-term revolver debt 9,100 — 15,000 20,000
Repayment of long-term revolver debt (4,000) (4,000) (9,000) (19,000)
Deferred financing costs — — (31) —
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities $ 5100 $ (4,000) 5,969 1,000

Cash and restricted cash
Increase (decrease) in cash and

restricted cash 5,244 (4,828) 2,254 (5,936)
Cash and restricted cash at beginning
of year 74,667 88,836 77,657 89,944

Cash and restricted cash at end of year $ 79,911 $ 84,008 $ 79911 $ 84,008
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
information:

Cash paid for interest and financing
fees 10,116 9,841 § 20,204 $ 19,156




CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

See accompanying notes to the interim consolidated financial statements
(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CPV Shore Holdings, LLC (Shore or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company, was
formed in February 2013. Shore is the parent company of two wholly owned subsidiaries, CPV
Shore, LLC and CPV Shore Urban Renewal, LLC. The purpose of Shore, through its
subsidiaries, is to own, operate, and manage a nominal 725 megawatt (MW) natural gas-fired
power plant situated in Woodbridge Township, Middlesex County, New Jersey (the Facility or
Project).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company was owned by four
entities: CPV Shore Investment, LLC 37.53%, a subsidiary of CPV Power Holdings, LP (CPV
PHLP). The three remaining members held 31.25%, 20%, and 11.22% of the equity interests.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Shore, CPV Shore, LLC,
and CPV Shore Urban Renewal, LLC. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated. The Company’s interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC), established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), is the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP applied by nongovernmental entities.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s interim consolidated financial statements requires the
use of estimates and assumptions based on management’s knowledge and experience.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. The
most significant use of estimates and assumptions relates to the valuation of derivative
instruments and the Company’s asset retirement obligation. Actual results could vary from
the estimates that were used.

(c) Risks and Uncertainties

As with any power generation facility, operation of the Facility involves risk, including the
performance of the Facility below expected levels of efficiency and output, shutdowns due to
the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes, violations of permit requirements,
operator error, labor disputes, or catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, floods,
explosions, pandemics, or other similar occurrences affecting a power generation facility or
its power purchasers. In addition, the Facility operates as a merchant plant and is impacted
by changes in regional natural gas and power market conditions, as well as changes in the
rules and regulations governing these markets. The occurrence of any of these events
could significantly reduce or eliminate revenue generated by the Company or significantly
increase the expenses of the Company, and adversely impact the Company’s ability to
make payments on its debt when due.

(d) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts
receivable, prepaid expenses, deposits, accounts payable and accrued liabilities equals or
approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments. Cash
accounts are generally maintained in federally insured banks but may at times have
balances in accounts in excess of federally insured limits. The fair value of the long-term



(e)

(7

9)

CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Notes to Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

debt approximates its book value at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023
as the interest rates are variable (note 5).

Cash
Cash is comprised of highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Restricted Cash and Cash Collateral - Letters of Credit

Restricted cash and cash collateral — letters of credit consists of cash and cash equivalents that
comprise highly liquid investments. Such amounts are restricted under the terms of the
Company’s current debt agreement. Restricted cash accounts include, but are not limited to, an
operating account, letter of credit revolver account, and a revenue account. All such accounts
are held and maintained by an agent. The Company’s classification of restricted cash is based
on the classification of its intended use. The cash collateral relates to letters of credit which are
held and maintained by an agent. The Company had $3.8 million, $7.5 million and $4.9 million
pertaining to operating activities classified as a current asset and $76.1 million, $70.1 million
and $79.0 million classified as Cash collateral — letters of credit on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively. Restricted cash, and cash collateral - letters of credit total $79.9 million, $77.6
million and $84.0 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is earned from the Company’s generation facilities providing capacity and ancillary
services to its customers, the independent system operator PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM),
and from the production and sale of electricity from the Company’s generation facilities.
Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. The Company’s contracts to provide capacity each have
one performance obligation and result from auctions held by PJM to procure capacity in
advance of when the capacity is expected to be needed and thus to be provided. The
Company’s contracts to provide electricity and ancillary services have one performance
obligation. Capacity revenues and proceeds for electricity, delivered to customers, are classified
as Operating revenue on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). Revenue for ancillary services is classified as Other revenue on
the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss).

In December 2022, Winter Storm Elliott brought severe cold weather, high winds, and some
snow throughout most of the US causing energy demands to rise rapidly. PJM experienced
shortage conditions and declared Performance Assessment Intervals. The Company recognized
a $0.2 million capacity penalty for underperformance during this period. In December 2023, the
Company recorded a reduction to the capacity penalty of $0.2 million based on the PJM
settlement agreement issued on December 19, 2023, which reduced the penalties/bonuses for
all affected facilities by 31.7%. This amount was settled in March 2024.

The performance obligations are satisfied over time and use the same method to measure
progress, so they meet the criteria to be considered a series. In measuring progress
towards satisfaction of each performance obligation, the Company applies the “right-to-
invoice” practical expedient and recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company
has a right to consideration from a customer that corresponds directly with the value of the
performance completed to date. As such, revenue is recognized using an output method, as
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CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Notes to Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

energy and capacity delivered best depicts the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. Performance obligations including energy or ancillary services (such as
operations and maintenance and dispatch services) are generally measured by the MWh
delivered. Capacity, which is a stand-ready obligation to deliver energy when required by
the customer, is measured using MWs. In certain contracts, if plant availability exceeds a
contractual target, the Company may receive a performance bonus payment, or if the plant
availability falls below a guaranteed minimum target, it may incur a nonavailability penalty.
Such bonuses or penalties represent a form of variable consideration and are estimated
and recognized when it is probable that there will not be a significant reversal. The
Company used the most likely value method to estimate variable consideration as it was
considered to better predict the amount to which the Company will be entitled given the
large number of possible outcomes. The Company periodically reviews this method and its
assumptions.

The timing of revenue recognition, billings, and cash collections results in accounts
receivable. Accounts receivable represent unconditional rights to consideration and consist
of both billed amounts and unbilled amounts typically resulting from sales under long-term
contracts when revenue recognized exceeds the amount billed to the customer. The
Company bills both generation and utilities customers on a contractually agreed-upon
schedule, typically at periodic intervals (e.g., monthly). Accounts receivable from contracts
with customers were $8.8 million, $11.4 million and $9.9 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. The Company periodically assesses
the collectability of accounts receivable, considering factors such as specific evaluation of
collectability, historical collection experience, the age of accounts receivable and other
currently available evidence of the collectability, and records an allowance for doubtful
accounts for the estimated uncollectible amount as appropriate. There was no allowance for
doubtful accounts recognized as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

Prepaid Expenses

The Company has short-term Prepaid expenses on its interim consolidated balance sheets.
Short-term prepaid expenses consist of fixed gas transportation costs, insurance premiums,
property taxes, bank fees, novation fees, and other miscellaneous fees, and totaled $2.4
million, $2.1 million and $4.2 million at June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30,
2023, respectively.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

The Company’s property, plant, and equipment are recorded based on historical cost and
primarily comprised of power generation facility assets and the cost of acquired land. In
cases where the Company is required to dismantle installations or to recondition the site on
which they are located, the estimated cost of removal or reconditioning is recorded as an
asset retirement obligation and an equal amount is added to the carrying amount of the
asset. Depreciation, after consideration of salvage value and asset retirement obligations, is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
commencing when assets, or major components thereof, are either placed in service or
acquired (note 3). Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Spare Parts Inventory

Spare parts inventory is valued using the average-cost method. The Company’s spare parts
inventory balance was $5.6 million, $5.1 million and $4.7 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.
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Emissions Inventory

The Company is subject to environmental regulations, which require it to purchase certain
emissions allowances. These allowances are either Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative
allowances purchased through quarterly auctions or through bilateral trades or Renewable
Energy Certificates required as part of providing energy to load serving entities. These
allowances are held for use by the Company and are stated at the lower of weighted-
average cost or market. As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the
Company’s emission inventory totaled $0.0 million, $0.0 million and $4.3 million,
respectively, and is classified as Emissions inventory on accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. Factors that could indicate
impairment include significant underperformance relative to historical and projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manner or use of acquired assets, or the
strategy of the Company’s overall business, including significant negative industry and
economic trends. If an indicator of impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the
Company’s long-lived assets would be considered impaired when their anticipated
undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying value. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the assets’ estimated fair value and its carrying amount.

The Company did not recognize any impairment losses on its long-lived assets for the three-
month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

(m) Intangible Assets

(n)

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles —
Goodwill and Others (ASC 350). ASC 350 requires that intangible assets determined to
have indefinite lives no longer be amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or circumstances occur that indicate impairment might have
occurred.

ASC 350 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable. Separable intangible assets that are deemed to have finite lives
will continue to be amortized using the straight-line method over their estimable
useful lives (note 4).

Asset Retirement Obligation

ASC 410 Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations (ASC 410) requires legal
obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets (AROs) to be recognized at
their fair value of management estimates, at the time the obligations are incurred. The ARO
is initially recognized by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition and up to settlement of the ARO, the liability is accreted
while the corresponding increase to long-lived assets is depreciated over its respective
useful life. If an entity settles its ARO for an amount different than its carrying amount, ASC
410 requires the corresponding gain or loss to be immediately recognized. Upon being
placed in service, the Company recognized an ARO of $1.4 million. The Company’s ARO
relates to the decommissioning of certain components of the Facility and restoration of the
land to its original state. The carrying value of the Company’s ARO liability was
approximately $2.4 million, $2.4 million and $2.3 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31,
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2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. Accretion of the ARO totaled $40 thousand and $37
thousand for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $80 thousand
and $75 thousand for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
and is classified as Accretion of asset retirement obligation on the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

(o) Deposits

The Company has deposits in connection with land easements which totaled $0.2 million
as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

(p) Deferred Financing Costs

The Company capitalized direct costs associated with its financings. Direct costs incurred
with obtaining debt are amortized under the interest method over the term of the related
debt. During 2023, the Company incurred $0.7 million of capitalized costs associated with
the Revolver Extension Amendment (as defined in note 5) and is classified as Other assets
on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. There were no additional
deferred financing costs during 2024. Amortization of the capitalized costs totaled $0.6
million and $0.5 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, and $1.2 million and $1.0 million for the six-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively, and is classified as Interest income (expense), net on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss).

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the current portion of long-term
debt is shown net of $2.0 million of deferred financing costs. Long-term debt is presented net
of $1.0 million, $1.9 million, and $2.9 million of deferred financing costs as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, December 31,
2023, and June 30, 2023, Other current assets are shown net of $0.4 million, $0.4 million,
and $0.0 million, respectively, of deferred financing costs. Other non-current assets is
comprised entirely of $0.2 million of deferred financing costs as of December 31, 2023. There
are no deferred financing costs included in Other non-current assets as of June 30, 2024 or
June 30, 2023.

(q) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to market risks from
changing interest rates, forward purchases and sales of commodities, and other derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices.
The Company recognizes all contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as either
assets or liabilities in the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets and measures
those derivatives at fair value under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging.
On the date a derivative is entered into, the Company may designate hedging relationships
if certain criteria in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), are met; otherwise, the
derivative is marked to market in the Company’s interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

For derivatives designated as a hedge, such as the Company’s interest rate swaps, forward
purchases and sales of commodities, and other derivative instruments used to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices, the Company documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as
hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying balance sheets or to forecasted
transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing
basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.
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When it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the
Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. This could occur when: (1) it is
determined that a derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of
a hedged item; (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) the
derivative is discontinued as a hedging instrument, because it is no longer probable that a
forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is
determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge of cash flows, the
derivative will continue to be carried at fair value on the accompanying interim consolidated
balance sheets and the gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive
income or loss (OCI) are recognized immediately or over the remaining term of the
forecasted transaction in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss).

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized in the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss) or the accompanying interim consolidated statements of changes in members’ equity
as a component of accumulated OCI, depending upon their use and designation. Gains and
losses related to transactions that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in accumulated
OCI and flow through the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) in the period the hedged item affects earnings. Otherwise,
any gains and losses resulting from changes in the market value of the contracts are
recorded in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) in the current period.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist of accounts receivable, which are concentrated within the energy industry and derivative
financial instruments with large creditworthy financial institutions. These industry concentrations
may impact the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that
the customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic, industry or other conditions.
Receivables and other contractual arrangements are subject to collateral requirements under
the terms of enabling agreements. However, the Company believes that the credit risk posed by
industry concentration is offset by the diversification and creditworthiness of the Company’s
customer base and its contractual collateral requirements.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to claims and proceedings arising in the normal course of business.
The Company records a loss contingency in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies,
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Management assesses each matter and determines the likelihood a
loss has been incurred and the amount of such loss if it can be reasonably estimated.
Management reviews such matters on an ongoing basis. Contingencies are evaluated
based on estimates and judgments made by management with respect to the likely outcome
of such matters. Management’s estimates could change based on new information.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC 460, Guarantees (ASC 460), for disclosing and
accounting for guarantees and indemnifications entered into during the course of business.
When a guarantee or indemnification subject to ASC 460 is entered into, the estimated fair
value of the guarantee or indemnification is assessed. Some guarantees and indemnifications
could have a financial impact under certain circumstances. Management considers the
probability of such circumstances occurring when estimating fair value.
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() Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is classified and treated as a
partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. No provision for the payment of
federal and state income taxes has been provided since the Company is not subject to
income tax. Each member is responsible for reporting income or loss based on such
member’s respective share of the Company’s income and expenses as reported for income
tax purposes. As such, no income tax expense or benefit has been recorded within these
interim consolidated financial statements for the three-month periods and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

(u) Membership Interests

The members made capital contributions in the amount of $29 thousand and $0.0
thousand to the Company during the three-month periods and six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. There were no capital contributions during the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023.

The Company made distributions to its members in the amount of $29 thousand and $0.0
thousand during the three-month periods and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively. There were no distributions during the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2023.

Profits, losses, and distributions of net cash flows shall be allocated in proportion to each
members’ respective ownership interest, as further outlined within the limited liability company
agreement, as amended (the LLC Agreement). The Company is managed by its board of
managers. As a limited liability company, the liability of each member is limited to (i) any
unpaid capital contributions, (ii) the amount of any distributions required to be returned in
accordance with the agreement, and (iii) any amount the member is required to pay pursuant
to the LLC Agreement.

(v) Leases

The Company has adopted ASU 2016-02 and determined that the Precedent Agreement
with a third party (TP) qualifies as a lease under this guidance (note 7(e)). Operating leases
with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet but are
expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company’s leases do not
contain any material residual value guarantees, restrictive covenants, or subleases. Right-
of-use (ROU) assets represent Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease
term while lease liabilities represent its obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized on commencement of the lease
based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. Generally, the rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable; as such, the Company uses the incremental
borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining
the present value of lease payments. The Company determines discount rates based on its
existing credit rates of its unsecured borrowings, which are then adjusted for the
appropriate lease term. The adoption of ASC 842 and related amendments resulted in the
recording of ROU assets, current lease liabilities and noncurrent lease liabilities of $92.1
million, $5.8 million and $78.2 million, respectively, as of January 1, 2022, which are
included in other assets, other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively,
on Company’s accompanying balance sheets. The difference between the additional ROU
assets and lease liabilities was related to unamortized prepaid balance outstanding as of
January 1, 2022. Adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on accompanying
statements of operations or statements of cash flows.
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(w) Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Adopted)

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (Topic 326) that provides for a new Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL)
impairment model for specified financial instruments including loans, trade receivables, debt

securities classified as held-to-maturity investments and net investments in leases recognized by
a lessor. Under the new guidance, on initial recognition and at each reporting period, an entity is

required to recognize an allowance that reflects the entity’s current estimate of credit losses
expected to be incurred over the life of the financial instrument. The standard does not make
changes to the existing impairment models for non-financial assets such as fixed assets,
intangibles and goodwill. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, which adjusts

effective date of this standard to January 1, 2023. The Company adopted the standard effective
January 1, 2023. There was no material impact to the financial position, results of operations or

cash flows of the Company.

Going Concern

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Subtopic 205-40, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (ASC 205-40) requires
management to evaluate whether conditions and/or events raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to meet its future financial obligations as they become due within one year
after the date that the financial statements are issued.

The Company’s operating cash flow is its primary source of liquidity to meet its debt service
obligations. While the Company has generated sufficient operating cash flows to fund its term
loan debt service obligations through June 30,2024, it is not expected to have sufficient liquidity
to repay the associated revolver facility, which comes due on March 31, 2025. This condition
causes substantial doubt to exist with respect to the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for at least one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.
Consequently, management plans to actively engage in discussions with its lenders in advance
of this date to extend the revolver facility under the CA. While management expects the
Company will sign definitive documents to extend the revolver facility under the CA, the formal
approvals for the extension are outside of management’s control, and thus substantial doubt
exists about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The accompanying interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the
Company will continue to operate as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of
assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, and does not include any
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of
assets or the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from uncertainty related to
its ability to continue as a going concern.

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):
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Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,

Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(in years) ($ in thousands)
Land N/A $ 10,703 $ 10,703 $ 10,703
Generation facility 35 732,953 732,953 732,704
Asset retirement obligation 35 1,392 1,392 1,392
Capital spares 20 6,514 6,514 6,514
Office equipment 10 384 384 384
Computer hardware and software 3 364 244 244
Vehicles 5 107 107 107
Total $ 752417 § 752,297 $ 752,048
Accumulated depreciation (180,867) (170,156) (159,444)
Construction-in-progress 363 185 422
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 571,913 § 582,326 $§ 593,026

Depreciation expense was $5.4 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, and $10.7 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is
classified as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s construction-in-
progress balance is comprised of projects which were not contemplated by its original design.

(4) Intangible Assets

The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to upgrading an
electrical interconnection, a water supply agreement required to construct and operate the
Facility and the purchase of emission offsets to comply with the project’s air permit. The
intangibles are amortized over the useful life of the Facility, which is 35 years.

Intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):
Estimated June 30, December 31, June 30,

Useful Life 2024 2023 2023
(in years) ($ in thousands)
Electrical interconnection 35 $ 5,450 $ 5,450 5,450
Water interconnection 35 11,400 11,400 11,400
Emissions offset allowances 35 2,012 2,012 2,012
Intangible assets - other 35 210 210 210
Total 19,072 19,072 19,072
Accumulated amortization (4,647) (4,373) (4,099)
Intangible assets, net $ 14,425 § 14,699 14,973

Amortization expense was $0.1 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
and $0.3 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is classified as
Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization related to the years 2024 through 2028 is expected
to be approximately $0.5 million, annually.
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(5) Credit and Financing Facilities

On December 27, 2018, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement (CA) with various lenders,
revolving issuing banks, an administrative agent, and collateral agent.

The CA was originally comprised of a $425.0 million term loan facility (Term B Facility) and a $120.0
million revolving facility (Revolver Facility) with a $25.0 million working capital sublimit (WC
Sublimit) and a $110.0 million letter of credit sublimit (LC Sublimit). The unused amounts under the
CA incur an annual commitment fee of 0.5%. The Term B Facility has a term of seven years
maturing on December 27, 2025 while the Revolver Facility was set to mature on December 27,
2023.

On July 20, 2023, the Company executed an amendment to the CA effectuating the transition of the
underlying interest rate from London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to term Security Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) plus an adjustment of 0.11448%, 0.26161%, or 0.42826% for interest
periods one, three, or six months, respectively, due to LIBOR cessation after June 30, 2023.

On November 15, 2023, the Company entered an amendment to the CA providing for the
extension of the original Revolver Facility maturity date from December 27, 2023 to March 31, 2025
(Revolver Extension Amendment). The Revolver Extension Amendment reduced the original
Revolver Facility, WC Sublimit, and LC Sublimit amounts to $95.0 million, $15.0 million, and $95.0
million, respectively. The unused amounts still incur an annual commitment fee of 0.5%.

As part of entering into the CA, the Company executed a security agreement, which creates a lien
against substantially all of the assets of the Company in favor of the creditors.

Borrowings under the Term B Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.75% through July 31, 2023 and
SOFR plus 3.86% thereafter. Interest expense associated with the Term B Facility totaled $8.4
million and $8.2 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $16.8
million and $15.8 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and
is classified as Interest income (expense), net on the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The outstanding Term B Facility balance was $360.8 million, $360.8 million and $368.2 million at an
annual rate of 9.19%, 9.21% and 8.91% for the periods ended June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and June 30, 2023, respectively. The last mandatory prepayment took place in Q1 2019 with none
scheduled going forward.

The table below sets forth the future principal payments due under the Term B Facility (in
thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2024 $ 8,687
2025 352,063
Total debt $ 360,750

Borrowings under the LC Sublimit of the Revolver Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.00%
through July 31, 2023, SOFR plus 3.11% through November 15, 2023, and SOFR plus 3.86%
thereafter. Interest expense and commitment fees associated with the LC Sublimit of the Revolver
Facility totaled $1.7 million and $1.7 million for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, and $3.4 million and $3.3 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, and is classified as Interest income (expense), net on the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The outstanding LC
Sublimit of the Revolver Facility balance was $75.7 million at an annual rate of 9.19%, $69.7 million
at an annual rate of 9.21% and $79.1 million at an annual rate of 8.16% as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively.

16



CPV SHORE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Delaware Limited Liability Companies)
Notes to Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Borrowings under the WC Sublimit of the Revolver Facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.00%
through July 31, 2023, SOFR plus 3.11% through November 15, 2023, and SOFR plus 3.86%
thereafter. There was no interest expense associated with the WC Sublimit of the Revolver Facility
for the three-month periods or six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. There were no
outstanding borrowings on the WC Sublimit of the Revolver Facility as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

The table below summarizes the Company’s outstanding debt, net of unamortized deferred
financing costs (in thousands) as of:

June 30, December 31, June 30,

(in thousands) 2024 2023 2023
Description

Term B Facility $ 360,750 360,750 $ 368,201
Revolver Facility - LC Sublimit 75,727 69,727 78,677
Unamortized deferred financing costs (3,300) (3,888) (4,865)

$ 433177 § 426,589 $ 442,013

During the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, letters of credit were issued in support
of the Company’s CA, PJM’s tariff credit requirements (note 7(a)), the gas transportation
agreements (note 7(e)) and for other permitted normal course of business requirements.

As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, the Company had accrued unpaid
interest and fees due to lenders totaling $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.0 million, respectively,
which is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets.

(6) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

a. Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to reduce its
exposure to market risks from changing interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements are
used to convert the floating interest rate component of the Company’s long-term debt
obligations to fixed rates. Such interest rate swap agreements are designated as cash flow
hedges under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are deferred in OCI and all
ineffective changes are recognized as Interest income (expense), net in the interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

During 2023, following execution of the Revolver Extension Amendment, the Company
amended two swaps with December 31, 2023 forward start dates, whereby the prior mandatory
termination provision was removed and the notional schedule was restructured to the benefit of
2024. These two interest rate swaps hedge 89% of the Term B Facility as of June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023. These amended swaps failed to meet the definition of a derivative, and are
thus being treated as hybrid instruments consisting of a loan receivable with an embedded at-
market swap.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps asset totaled $8.2 million at June 30, 2024 and
consists of $8.0 million classified as Other current assets and $0.2 million classified as
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps on the accompanying interim consolidated balance
sheets. The fair value of the interest rate swaps asset totaled $15.6 million at

December 31, 2023, which consists entirely of a current portion and is classified as Other
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current assets on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. As of June 30,
2023 the fair value of the interest rate swaps asset totaled $19.1 million which consists
entirely of a current portion and is classified as Derivative assets, interest rate swaps on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps liability totaled $1.2 million at December 31, 2023.
The balance consists entirely of a current portion and is classified as Derivative liabilities,
interest rate swaps within the current liabilities sections on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets. There are no interest rate swap liabilities as of June 30, 2024
and June 30, 2023.

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of June 30, 2024 are set forth in
the following table (notional amounts in thousands):

Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational swaps
Swap 1 Swap 2
Trade date April 30, 2020 Notional amount $ 225,000 $ 95,000
Effective date December 31, 2023 Fixed rate 0.14 % 0.07 %
USD-SOFR CME USD-SOFR CME
Termination date December 31, 2024  Floating rate Term Term

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of December 31, 2023 are set
forth in the following table (notional amounts in thousands):

Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational swaps
Swap 1 Swap 2
Trade date April 30, 2020 Notional amount $ 225,000 $ 95,000
Effective date December 31, 2023 Fixed rate 0.14 % 0.07 %
USD-SOFR CME USD-SOFR CME
Termination date December 31, 2024 Floating rate Term Term

The details of the interest rate swap instruments as of June 30, 2023 are set forth in
the following table (notional amounts in thousands):
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Swap Period Dates Swap Details
Operational swaps

Trade date July 5, 2019 Notional amount
Effective date July 31, 2020 Fixed rate

Termination date

Trade date
Effective date
Termination date

Trade date
Effective date

December 31, 2023

August 1, 2019
August, 30, 2019

December 29, 2023

April 30, 2020
April 30, 2020

Floating rate

Notional amount
Fixed rate
Floating rate

Notional amount
Fixed rate

Termination date December 31, 2023

Trade date
Effective date
Termination date

April 30, 2020
December 31, 2023
December 31, 2025

Floating rate

Notional amount
Fixed rate
Floating rate

Swap 1
$ 134,712
1.72 %
USD-LIBOR-BBA

Swap 2
$ 57,734
1.54 %
USD-LIBOR-BBA

Swap 3
$ 35,923
0.29 %
USD-LIBOR-BBA

Swap 5
$ 67,487
0.57 %

Swap 4
15,396
0.29 %

USD-LIBOR-BBA

$

Swap 6
157,470
0.56 %

USD-LIBOR-BBA USD-LIBOR-BBA

As of June 30, 2024, the Company estimates $8.0 million of gains in accumulated
OCI will be reclassified out of accumulated OCI over the next 12 months; however,
actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions during that time period.

OCl is reclassified to earnings as interest expense on the long-term debt is

recognized:

OCI Roll Forward
(in thousands)

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022

Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023

Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2024

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022

Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2023
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$ 20,071
3,510
(9,122)

$ 14,459
1,860
(4,876)

$ 11,443
$ 20,071
5,345

(4,345)

$ 21,071
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b. Energy Derivatives

The Company may enter into forward purchase and sales of commodities to reduce its
exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices. Such agreements are
presented at fair value under ASC 815. All effective changes in fair market value are
recognized in the interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss). Some of the Company’s agreements with counterparties allow payments and
obligations related to the same counterparty to be netted.

The fair value of the power and gas commodity swaps assets totaled $4.0 million, $21.5
million and $8.8 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively, which consists of a current portion of $1.9 million, $18.2 million and $8.8
million and a noncurrent portion of $2.1 million, $3.3 million, and $0.0 million, as of
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, and is classified
as Derivative assets, energy within the current and noncurrent assets sections on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

The fair value of the commodity swap liabilities totaled $14.2 million, $27.2 million and $2.6
million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. The balance
consists of a current portion of $12.3 million, $23.3 million and $2.6 million and noncurrent
portion of $1.9 million, $3.9 million and $0.0 million, as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and June 30, 2023, respectively, and is classified as Derivative liabilities, energy within the
current and noncurrent liabilities’ sections on the accompanying interim consolidated balance
sheets.

OCI Roll Forward
(in thousands)

Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ —
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (31,618)
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income 22,285
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ (9,333)
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative (9,470)
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income 8,652
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2024 $ (10,151)
Ending Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ —
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivative 26,089
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into income (27,780)
Ending Balance as of June 30, 2023 $ (1,691)

The Company recognized a realized gain(loss) of $1.1 million and ($2.0) million associated with
the commodity derivatives for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. For the three-month period ended June 30, 2024, $13.6 million is classified as
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives and ($12.6) million is classified as
Fuel and other in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). For the three-month period ended June 30, 2023, ($2.0) million is
classified as Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives in the accompanying
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company
recognized a realized gain(loss) of $8.7 million and $3.4 million associated with the commodity
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derivatives for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. For the six-
month period ended June 30, 2024 $27.2 million is classified as Realized and unrealized gain
(loss) on energy derivatives and ($18.6) million is classified as Fuel and other in the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
For the six-month period ended June 30, 2023, $3.4 million is classified as Realized and
unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives in the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company recognized an unrealized loss of $1.5 million and $1.2 million associated with the
commodity derivatives for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $3.7
million and $24.9 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
which is included as Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives in the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The following table summarizes by type and volume the commodity derivatives, which are
swap contracts entered into to partially fix the price of natural gas purchased and power sold,
and are reflected on the Company’s accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets at
June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023:

Natural Gas (1) Power
(in MMbtu) (in MWh)

June 30, 2024 30,049,630 4,320,300
December 31, 2023 23,563,648 2,918,200
June 30, 2023 10,816,942 333,600

(1) Includes volumes for floating price supply contracts

As of June 30, 2024, the Company estimates no losses will be reclassified out of OCI over the

next 12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions during
the same time period.

c. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company records the fair value of all derivatives as assets and liabilities. In
determining fair value, the Company generally uses the income approach and incorporates
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques.
These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated or generally unobservable
internally developed inputs. Derivative assets and liabilities are classified depending on how
readily observable the inputs used in the valuation techniques are, as follows:

Level 1  Represents unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. This category
includes energy derivative instruments that are exchange traded or that are
cleared and settled through the exchange.

Level 2  Represents quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets, quoted market prices in markets that are not active, or other valuations
based on inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
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market data. This category includes the Company’s interest rate swaps and
energy derivatives.

Level 3 This category includes energy derivative instruments whose fair value is estimated
based on internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant
inputs that are generally less readily observable from objective sources (such as
market heat rates, implied volatilities, and correlations). Over the counter,
complex, or structured derivative instruments that are transacted in less liquid
markets with limited pricing information would be included in Level 3.

Valuation Techniques

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to
measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market approach, (2) income approach,
and (3) cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated from market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single
present value amount. The measurement is based on current market expectations of the
return on those future amounts.

The Company measures its interest rate swap, energy, and other derivatives at fair value on
a recurring basis. The fair values of the interest rate swap and energy derivatives are
determined using the income approach by a third-party treasury and risk management
service. The service utilizes a standard model and observable inputs to estimate the fair
value of the interest rate swaps. The Company performs analytical procedures and makes
comparisons to other third-party information in order to assess the reasonableness of the
fair value. The Company maintains controls over the model and its methodology and
performs analytical procedures and makes comparisons to third-party information when
available in order to assess the reasonableness of the fair value.

Fair value measurements of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, based on the above hierarchy, are as
follows:
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Description June 30, 2024

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ 223 % — $ 223 % —

Derivative assets, energy - commodities 4,042 — 4,042 —
$ 4,265 $ — $ 4,265 $ —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities $ (14,193) $ — $ (14193) $ —
$ (14,193) $ — $ (14,193) $ —

Description December 31, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, energy - commodities $ 21,548 § — $ 21548 % —
$ 21548 $ — $ 21548 $ —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps $ (1,156) $ — 3 (1,156) $ —

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities (27,175) — (27,175) —
$ (28,331) $ — $ (28,331) $ —

Description June 30, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative assets, interest rate swaps $ 19,070 $ — $ 19070 $ —

Derivative assets, energy - commodities 8,759 — 8,759 —
$ 27,829 $ — $ 27829 § —

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities, energy - commodities $ (2,612) $ — $ (2,612) $ —
$ (2,612) $ — $ (2,612) $ —

For the three-month periods and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023,
the Company did not have any transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.

The Company has not posted any collateral to counterparties in conjunction with the interest

rate swaps, and no additional collateral is required to be posted with respect to the fair value
of the swap instruments.
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(1) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated Balance

Sheets

The following tables present the balance sheet classification and fair value of derivative
instruments on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023.

(in thousands)

Derivatives designated as hedging

instruments under ASC 815
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps
Commodity
Commodity
Commodity

Commodity

Total derivatives designated as
hedging instruments under ASC 815, net

Total derivatives, net

Balance sheet June 30, December 31, June 30,
Location 2024 2023 2023
Current — derivative
assets, interest rate swaps $ 223 % — $ 19,070
Current — derivative
liabilities, interest rate swaps — (1,156) —
Current — derivative
assets, energy 1,924 18,226 8,759
Noncurrent — derivative
assets, energy 2,118 3,322 —
Current — derivative
liabilities, energy (12,321) (23,314) (2,612)
Noncurrent — derivative
liabilities, energy (1,872) (3,861) —
(9,928) (6,783) 25,217
$ (9,928) $ (6,783) $ 25217

(2) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (loss)

The following tables present the classification of derivative instruments on the
accompanying Interim statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for
the three-month periods and six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, and segregated between those designated as hedging instruments and those

that are not.

The impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments:
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Location of
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized Gain (Loss) Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified
Reclassified
in OCI on Derivatives From From OCI into Income
OCl into
(Effective Portion) Income (Effective Portion)
Three Six Three Six Three Six Three Six
months months months months months months months months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
(effective
(in thousands) 2024 2024 2023 2023 portion) 2024 2024 2023 2023
Instruments
Interest rate Interest income
swaps $ 411 % 1860 $ 4,470 $ 5,345 (expense), net $ (2,402) $ (4,876) $ (2,311) $ (4,345)
unrealized gain
(loss) on
Commodity energy
swaps 5,707  (9,470) 25,772 26,089 derivatives 13,630 27,249 (27,780) (27,780)

Fuel and other  (12,556) (18,597) — —
$ 6,118 $ (7,610) $ 30,242 § 31,434 $ (1,328) $ 3,776 $(30,091) $(32,125)

The Company did not enter into any other derivative contracts during 2024 and 2023.

(7) Facility Contract Commitments
a. PJM Auctions

b.

C.

The Company participated in, and cleared, PJM’s Reliability Pricing Model (RPM) Capacity
Auctions through the 2024/2025 delivery year. In connection with collateral requirements
pursuant to PJM’s tariff, the Company issued letters of credit from the LC Sublimit of its
Revolver Facility to support its obligations to PJM Settlement, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
PJM, in the amounts of $1.0 million, $0.1 million and $1.0 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. For the three-month periods ended

June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized $3.4 million and $5.3 million, and for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized $6.5 million and $11.6
million, respectively, of revenue from capacity sales associated with the PJM capacity auctions.
Apart from the PUM RPM Auctions, the Company offers all of its electric energy output into PJM
as required by rules for all capacity resources and select portions of ancillary services.

Tax Agreements

The Company is party to a financial agreement (the Financial Agreement) with a local
township (Local Township) . The Financial Agreement provides for an exemption from local
property taxation for the Facility pursuant to the New Jersey Long Term Tax Exemption Law of
1992, as amended and supplemented, and for the Company to make payments in lieu of
taxes (PILOTSs) to the Local Township. The Financial Agreement runs for a period of 30 years
from the commercial operations date of the Facility. See Commitments table in note 7(h).

Sewer Connection, Potable Water, and Reclaimed Water Supply Agreements

i. Local Township
The Company executed a sewer agreement with the Local Township (the Sewer
Agreement). The Sewer Agreement provides for the ability of the Company to
dispose of its wastewater, which is primarily grey water used in the cooling of the
Facility, into the Local Township’s sanitary sewer system. Under the Sewer
Agreement, the Company made connection fee payments totaling $5.2 million,
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which is classified as Intangible assets on the accompanying interim consolidated
balance sheets. In addition to the connection fee, the Company is required to pay
user fees over the life of the Sewer Agreement. The Sewer Agreement remains
valid as long as the Facility is operational. For each of the three-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $0.2 million, and for the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized $0.5
million and $0.4 million, respectively, of wastewater supply expense under the
Sewer Agreement, which is included in Operating expenses in the interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

ii. Local Water Company
The Company purchases its potable and service water needs from the Local Water
Company’s (LWC) domestic water system. The Company incurred $0.2 million of
potable water expense from LWC for each of the three-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, and $0.3 million and $0.5 million, respectively, for the six-month periods
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, which is included in Operating expenses in the interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

iii. Local Utilities Authority
The Company executed an operating agreement for the use of reclaimed water
with the Local Utilities Authority (LUA) (the Reclaimed Water Agreement). The
Reclaimed Water Agreement provides that LUA will deliver reclaimed water to be
used by the Facility. The Reclaimed Water Agreement runs for an initial term of 30
years, subject to certain termination and extension rights. For each of the three-
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $0.2 million,
and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company
incurred $0.4 million and $0.3 million, respectively, of reclaimed water supply
expense from LUA, which are included in Operating expenses in the interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

d. Contractual Service Agreement

The Company entered into an amended contractual service agreement (CSA) on
December 22, 2017, with the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM), which expires at the
earlier of the date upon which defined equipment reaches a defined milestone or 20 years
from the date of execution. The Company can procure additional services under the CSA as
they are required. Fees incurred under the CSA are comprised of a variable quarterly fee
based upon the defined equipment’s operational parameters, and a fixed quarterly
management fee. Fees are increased annually by 2.5% per year. See Commitments table
in note 7(h).

For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $1.4 million and $1.1 million,
and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, $3.1 million and 2.4 million,
respectively, of fees incurred under the CSA are classified as Operating expenses on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss). The Company owed OEM $1.4 million, $1.9 million and $1.1 million as of June 30,
2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which are included in Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

e. Gas Transportation Agreements

The Company is party to a Precedent Agreement with TP. In accordance with the Precedent
Agreement, the Company entered into a service agreement and a delivery interconnection,

construction, and operating agreement with TP (together with the Precedent Agreement, the
TP Gas Transportation Agreements). Pursuant to the terms of the Precedent Agreement, the
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Company issued a letter of credit to TP in the amount of $15.2 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023. See Commitments table in note 7(h).

Under the TP Gas Transportation Agreements, TP provides natural gas interconnection and
firm transportation service through a pipeline lateral extending from TP’s existing interstate
pipeline to an interconnection point at the Facility. The TP Gas Transportation Agreements
have a term of 15 years and expire in April 2030. There are two 10-year extensions that are
likely to be exercised, and which extend the agreement to April 2050.

As of January 1, 2022, in accordance with Topic 842, this agreement was deemed to be a
lease (Note 1(v)). As of June 30, 2024, the Company had ROU assets, current lease
liabilities and noncurrent lease liabilities of $88.2 million, $5.8 million and $75.1 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had ROU assets, current lease
liabilities and noncurrent lease liabilities of $89.0 million, $5.8 million and $75.8 million,
respectively. As of June 30, 2023 the Company had ROU assets, current lease liabilities
and noncurrent lease liabilities of $89.8 million, $5.8 million and $76.5 million, respectively.

Gas transportation costs relating to the Precedent Agreement totaled $1.6 million for each
of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and totaled $3.1 million for each
of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is classified as Fuel and other
operating expense on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities totaled $1.5 million and $0.0 million for the three-month periods ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, and totaled $3.0 million and $2.5 million for the six-month periods ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The future minimum TP gas transportation payments together with the present value of
lease liabilities, over the next five years under the agreements are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2024 $ 3,006
2025 5,965
2026 5,965
2027 5,965
2028 5,981
2029 and thereafter 126,811
Total lease payments 153,693
Less: Imputed interest * (72,793)
Present value of lease liabilities 80,900

*Calculated using the incremental borrowing rate

The following table sets forth the weighted average remaining lease term and weighted average
discount rate under leases:
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As of
June 30, 2024
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)
Operating leases 26 years
Weighted average discount rate **
Operating leases 5.65%

** Discount rate is the incremental borrowing rate assessed for each lease.

On December 19, 2018, the Company entered into a Precedent Agreement (PA) with
another Third Party (TP2), whereby TP2 at its own cost will construct, install, own, operate,
maintain and will provide natural gas interconnection and firm transportation service through
an approximately 1.44 mile, 20-inch diameter pipeline lateral extending from TP2’s existing
interstate pipeline to an interconnection point at the Facility. The pipeline was completed and
placed in service on September 28, 2021. The PA has a term of 20 years and expires in
September 2041, after which there is an annual renewal term, cancellable with a year
notice. Pursuant to the terms of the PA, the Company issued a letter of credit under the
Revolver Facility in the amount of $48.0 million, $48.0 million and $50.5 million in favor of
TP2 as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively. During each
of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred gas
transportation costs of $2.4 million, and during each of the six-month periods ended

June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred gas transportation costs of $4.8 million,
which are classified as Fuel and other on the accompanying interim consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company owed TP2 $0.0 million, $0.8
million and $0.0 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively.

f. Gas Supply Agreement

The Company entered into a Base Contract for Sale and Purchase of Natural Gas (GSPA) with
a third party gas provider (GP), as amended, which requires GP to provide gas supply of up to
120,000 MMBtu/day at a price indexed to market. On September 26, 2023, the most recent
amendment was executed extending the maturity to October 31, 2024. Pursuant to the GSPA,
the Company released capacity to GP on the TP and TP2 laterals and TP is responsible for
transporting natural gas to the Facility. The Company incurred $9.3 million and $6.3 million
under the GSPA for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $31.1 million
and $23.6 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which
are classified as Fuel and other on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed GP $3.9 million, $3.2 million and $2.1 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which are included in Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

g. Operations and Maintenance Agreement

The Company is party to an amended operating and maintenance agreement with a third
party (TPOM), to operate and maintain the Facility (the O&M Agreement). The annual
extension provision included in the O&M Agreement, which was set to expire on July 23,
2023, was exercised. No other terms and conditions of the O&M Agreement were modified.
The Company is required to pay TPOM an annual management fee, escalated annually by a
defined inflation index, an incentive bonus, and to reimburse TPOM for all labor costs,
including payroll and taxes, subcontractor costs, and other costs deemed reimbursable
under the O&M Agreement. The Company incurred $1.3 million under the O&M Agreement
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for each of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $2.8 million and
$2.6 million for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which is
classified as Operating expense on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company owed TPOM $0.3 million, $0.5 million and $0.3 million as of June 30, 2024,
December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

h. Commitments and Contingencies

The contracts discussed above and in note 7 resulted in the Company having various long-

term firm commitments with the approximate contractual obligations at June 30, 2024 as

follows:
(in $ thousands) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter
Gas Transportation Agreements $ 4848 $ 9,696 $ 9,696 $ 9696 $ 9,696 $ 122,820
CSA payments 230 471 483 495 508 2,735
AMA - related party 744 1,525 1,563 1,602 1,642 3,408
PILOT payments 1,412 2,903 2,982 3,064 3,149 68,937

Total contractual obligations $ 7,234 $14595 $14,724 $14,857 $14,995 $ 197,900

The Company from time to time is party to certain claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company is of the opinion that the final disposition of these claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s interim consolidated financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows.

(8) Related-Party Agreements

a. Asset Management Agreement

b.

The Company is party to an Asset Management Agreement (the AMA) with Competitive
Power Ventures, Inc. (CPVI) to provide asset management services through December 31,
2030. The AMA includes a fixed fee escalated annually by a defined inflation index, an
incentive fee, and the reimbursement of expenses. The Company incurred $0.5 million
under the AMA for each of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and
$0.9 million for each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is
classified as Operating expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company owed CPVI $0.2 million, $0.3
million and $0.1 million as of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. See Commitments table in note 7(h).

Energy Management Services Agreement

The Company is party to an Energy Management Services Agreement (EMSA) with CPV
Energy and Marketing Services, LLC (CEMS) to provide certain services related to the
sale of merchant energy, capacity, and ancillary services products, through December 15,
2025. The EMSA includes a five-year renewal provision, which can be executed by the
Company in its sole discretion up to two times. The EMSA includes a fixed fee escalated
annually by a defined inflation index, plus reimbursement of expenses during the term of
the agreement. The EMSA also provides reimbursement to CEMS for services provided by
third parties on behalf of the Company. The Company incurred $0.1 million under the
EMSA for each of the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and $0.3
million for each of the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and is classified
as Operating expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of
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operations and comprehensive income (loss). As of June 30, 2024, December 31, 2023,
and June 30, 2023, the Company owed CEMS $44 thousand, $0.1 million and $43
thousand, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

(9) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2024
and August 12, 2024, which is the date the interim consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued, for possible disclosure and recognition in the interim consolidated
financial statements.

No subsequent events were identified that necessitated disclosure and/or adjustment to the
Company’s interim consolidated financial statements as of and for the three-months and six-
month periods ended June 30, 2024.
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